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 1 going to get this introduced.  We're not -- we're not going 

 2 to hear the case today.  We have dates that we're going to 

 3 hear it, and we'll be announcing those dates before the 

 4 hearing ends.  

 5 And so at this time, Staff, go ahead and -- we do have 

 6 a Level A, what has already been approved, and then we have 

 7 Level B, which we're going to be hearing.  So I just want 

 8 everybody to understand that we're not going to rehear Level 

 9 A.  We've got Level B, and it's very specific as to what 

10 we're going to be hearing for this thing, and everybody will 

11 probably be getting all the notices from Staff.  

12 So go ahead, Staff.  

13 MS. KELLY:  Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.  I don't 

14 think I got that handout, the one that I just -- 

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  This handout was given to me just 

16 a while ago, and she's going to present it right now.

17 MS. KELLY:  Okay.

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And then we'll get everything 

19 else, and then, also, we're setting up the dates for the 

20 hearing, how we're going to break it up into almost four 

21 different hearings.  

22 MS. KELLY:  And then I wanted to restate what I 

23 said at the last meeting, because the parties are present 

24 now.

25 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Go ahead, for the record.
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 1 MS. KELLY:  When should I do that?  Right now?  

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yeah.

 3 MS. KELLY:  Okay.  At our last meeting when the 

 4 Santolina topic was briefly discussed, I disclosed that I 

 5 spoke against approval at the Level A plan at one of the 

 6 County Commission hearings held about a year ago and that I 

 7 had made a donation to one of the organizations opposing the 

 8 master plan at that time, the Southwest Organizing Project.  

 9 Like many people, I read articles in the papers and 

10 online and expressed my opinion at various times whether 

11 correct or incorrect, but in honesty, I can say that I never 

12 took the time to fully read or digest the Santolina 

13 proposal, but I did look at the materials for today.  

14 The concerns I have expressed were regarding the 

15 ability of the County to support additional pressures on 

16 fiscal and natural resources and my view that the project 

17 should be considered in the conjunction with the City of 

18 Albuquerque perhaps through the Comprehensive Plan update 

19 process, but I never significantly engaged in the details of 

20 the proposal before or after the County Commission hearing 

21 or with any of the parties, pro or con.

22 In any event, any opinions expressed by me in any form 

23 predated my appointment to the CPC.  I understand that in a 

24 CPC process we are only to consider items that are presented 

25 here, and I have been and will be very careful to avoid 
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 1 communications regarding the Santolina matter.  I feel that 

 2 I will be able to consider the issues in an objective manner 

 3 within the parameters of the Commission's approval of the 

 4 Level A plan.  

 5 Also, and here I may be erring on the side of too much 

 6 information, but in the interest of full disclosure, I'd 

 7 like to mention that I formerly was employed by the City of 

 8 Albuquerque, Public Works Department, Water Resources 

 9 Division, which was the predecessor division to the 

10 Albuquerque Water Utility, and I dealt with water rights.  

11 This has been many years ago, and I left in 2001.  

12 Also, several times at the hearing the MRGCD, the 

13 Conservancy District was mentioned, and I'd like to mention 

14 that my husband is on the board of the MRGCD.  

15 Last, I have a small project working for the City of 

16 Albuquerque Parks Department to promote establishment of 

17 native grasses along the urban trails, and I think that's 

18 it.  I have a lot to learn as I'm now looking at the details 

19 of the proposal for the first time, and it is extremely 

20 complex.  I accept that the Bernalillo County Commission has 

21 approved the Level A plan conditions and that we are to 

22 review and act upon the Level B plan within those 

23 parameters.  I will be diligent and objective in considering 

24 the matters at hand, and I will do my best to contribute in 

25 a positive manner to the process abiding by the duties and 
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 1 responsibilities of the Planning Commission.

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  And, you know, as 

 3 Chairman, I want to thank you for doing that and disclosing, 

 4 you know, everything that -- and I think that we have -- 

 5 there's no reason for you to recuse yourself from this case.  

 6 We feel that you will do your job here as a Planning 

 7 Commissioner, and we're glad to have you.

 8 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you very much.  

10 Okay.  Staff, go ahead.

11 MS. VEREECKE:  Okay.  Good morning, Mr. Chair and 

12 Members of the Planning Commission.  My name is Catherine 

13 VerEecke, and I'm with County Planning.  

14 This is SPR2016-0001.  The applicant is requesting 

15 approval of a Planned Communities Level B Master Plan called 

16 the Santolina Level B Master Plan within the Santolina 

17 master plan area, which is shown here.

18 The Level B plan is generally bounded by Interstate 40 

19 to the north, 118th Street and the escarpment open space to 

20 the east, Dennis Chavez Boulevard on the south and the 

21 escarpment area adjacent to the Rio Puerco valley on the 

22 west containing approximately 4,243 acres.

23 As many of you may recall, the Santolina Level A Master 

24 Plan together with planned community zoning was adopted by 

25 the Board of County Commissioners on June 16th, 2015, for 
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 1 the entire 13,700 acre Santolina property.

 2 The Level A Development Agreement between Bernalillo 

 3 County and the developer, Western Albuquerque Land Holdings, 

 4 was approved on June 24th, 2015.  For the Level A plan, the 

 5 County Commission agreed that the plan had adequately 

 6 addressed the criteria and the policies for such a 

 7 community.  And as some of you may be aware, this request 

 8 goes through three steps of review, the Level A, which is 

 9 the general conceptual plan, the Level B, which is specific 

10 portions or areas within the plan, and then Level C is the 

11 actual site plan and subdivision for the final development 

12 of the site.  So this is the document that we're following 

13 that includes criteria and policies to guide this type of a 

14 master plan development.

15 So one of the things and I'm -- Francine, how do you do 

16 this, zoom out?  Actually, so this is a summary, and I don't 

17 know if people -- 

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Excuse me, before we start, do 

19 you have more copies of this?  

20 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, no, I don't.  I just 

21 completed this this morning.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  This is -- 

23 MS. VEREECKE:  I can -- I can read what it is.  

24 Just to say that in the planned communities document, there 

25 are lengthy lists of criteria or standards that must be met 
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 1 at each stage of the development, Level A, Level B, and 

 2 Level C, and they are fairly lengthy.  I have them just as 

 3 an illustration to show you.  This would be Level B, and 

 4 it's quite lengthy.  The criteria are very detailed.  

 5 Level A is listed on this side of the page, and I don't 

 6 think at this stage that we need to be getting into the 

 7 specifics.  When we come back for other hearings, then we, 

 8 Staff and the community, can be looking at the precise 

 9 language and how it is addressed in the Santolina Plan, but 

10 just at this stage, to make a distinction between Level A 

11 and Level B, which is on this matrix, and I know it's 

12 difficult to see it here, but let's see if I can zoom in so 

13 people can see it.  So hopefully you can see this here.  

14 This is a summary of some of the main criteria that 

15 appear in Level A and Level B.  So for Level A, which has 

16 already been considered and it has already been approved by 

17 the County Commission, the plan covers the entire site.  It 

18 can have up to 10,000 acres or more.  A conceptual plan must 

19 be provided for the entire community.  It must include a 

20 general land-use layout such as residential, commercial, 

21 industrial uses, parks and open space.  It must also include 

22 a phasing plan for those uses.  Must show the activity 

23 centers; meaning, the main commercial -- the main commercial 

24 and industrial areas that will be located at the 

25 intersection of some of the main -- the main streets, 
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 1 location -- location of activity centers -- let me move that 

 2 here -- and residential areas.  The -- the general 

 3 transportation network must be laid out, a transportation 

 4 analysis.  The general transportation grid must be provided.  

 5 Also, conceptual utility plan, water, wastewater, and other 

 6 facilities at the conceptual level.  I don't know.  Did you 

 7 want me to go further out or -- identification of main site 

 8 features such as topography, slopes, any other, you know, 

 9 particular geographical features, documentation of water 

10 availability, a general level one archeological survey and 

11 then a general funding strategy.

12 So this is a summary of the Level A criteria that were 

13 considered when the Level A Master Plan was -- was reviewed 

14 beginning in 2013 and was approved by the County Commission 

15 in 2015.  So this has been approved.  

16 For Level B we'll be looking -- following up on these 

17 particular criteria but in greater detail and then for more 

18 specific areas within -- within the Level A Plan.  So just a 

19 summary of -- of the criteria that the request would pertain 

20 to a portion of the entire site and would be for specific 

21 areas such as villages, large subdivisions, employment 

22 centers, potentially specific corridor development, but that 

23 it's not for the whole site.  It's for a portion of the site 

24 up to a smaller, smaller size, up to, at least from the 

25 criteria, about 12 -- 1,200 acres, and then Level B is much 
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 1 more specific to the site; meaning, that it's getting down 

 2 to the ground level of development rather than like the 

 3 bird's-eye view of the whole site.  This would be the actual 

 4 plan for development of the community.  

 5 So it would include a site-specific plan that includes 

 6 neighborhoods, densities for specific sections of the 

 7 community in greater detail by land use.  So it should be 

 8 almost to the parcel level by this time rather than the 

 9 community-wide or big land-use area-wide.  Must include 

10 specifics of proposed open space, including ownership, 

11 management, and maintenance of open space, information on 

12 specific streets and the design of streets and intersections 

13 so that the actual streets to the ground level must be -- 

14 must be planned and approved, so not just the general 

15 streets, the major streets but the actual streets in the 

16 development.

17 Design of the activity centers, what they'll look like, 

18 the buildings, the parking, the landscaping, the character 

19 of the activity centers, so not just a general blob on a 

20 map, but it actually has to have the specific design 

21 features, and design of any commercial areas that aren't in 

22 the -- in the activity centers, like neighborhood 

23 commercial.  There has to be information showing how they'll 

24 be designed.  Design of residential areas, what will -- what 

25 will the residential subdivisions look like, different types 

TR- 55
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 of residential areas, high density, low density.  This 

 2 information should be provided at this level.

 3 Specific transportation analysis that ties in with the 

 4 more specific transportation network, and is the 

 5 transportation that's being proposed adequate to serve the 

 6 land uses that are being proposed, and then how will this 

 7 network tie into or impact the wider network outside of the 

 8 development, and then the specific provisions that are being 

 9 made outside the network, because this -- this or any master 

10 planned community is large, and it does have a far-reaching 

11 impact.  

12 Identify specifically the transit system, more specific 

13 utility plan for specific uses and to serve the population.  

14 I think one thing I may not have added here that should be 

15 included would be a terrain management plan addressing the 

16 specific -- specific areas of the site.  

17 A statement of water availability and availability of 

18 public services, so by this point it's getting much more 

19 specific in terms of availability of water, schools, 

20 electric, gas, telecommunications, that there has to be more 

21 specific planning, documentation, and even agreements that 

22 these utilities and services that are being proposed are 

23 acceptable to the providers.  So hopefully you'll see it's 

24 getting more specific than what it was at the Level A.  

25 More detailed analysis of site features, a strategy for 
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 1 management of the features, not just where the features are 

 2 but how they're going to be impacted or changed in the 

 3 process of this development.  More specific air quality 

 4 plan, more specific archeological study, and then more 

 5 specific funding strategy than was required for the Level A 

 6 plan, and also, a facilities plan.  So, again, this was just 

 7 an overview of the differences between Level A and Level B.  

 8 The criteria themselves are more specific.  We can get into 

 9 them at the time we talk about the specific areas, the land 

10 use, the transportation, environment, and open space, and 

11 then public service and infrastructure.  

12 So we'll be taking some time to go through these in 

13 detail, but just the point to be made, too, that like 

14 Commissioner said, that we've already gone through the 

15 review of the Level A plan, and we have discussed how the 

16 Level A plan addressed those specific criteria, and the 

17 request was approved by the County Commission, because it 

18 did meet these criteria.  So hopefully that's a general 

19 introduction to this.

20 So now we're looking at the Level B request, and just 

21 visually to -- to show you, so this is the Level A plan, and 

22 you can see the general boundary, the scope of the plan and 

23 the general land use areas that were considered at that 

24 time.  

25 For the Level B plan, we're now looking at a portion of 
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 1 that property.  So you can see it includes a community in 

 2 the eastern portion of the site and then an industrial area 

 3 in the western portion of the site.  So generally the Level  

 4 B plan builds upon the concepts and frameworks identified in 

 5 the Level A plan and provides for more specific plans for 

 6 development within these two portions of the Santolina.

 7 The development eventually will include the following 

 8 main use areas:  A 570-acre town center that's in red here, 

 9 195-acre business park, which is here, residential villages 

10 that are shown in the yellow and the orange here, village 

11 commercial centers that are either shown here or they're not 

12 detailed in this -- in this level of plan, and then a 

13 portion of the urban center, which will be built here, and 

14 then, as I said, in the westerly portion of the site near 

15 Shelly, an industrial park will be developed.  In addition, 

16 a total of about a thousand acres of open space will be 

17 provided within the Level B development.  

18 More specifically, this plan provides more specific 

19 land uses, including low, medium, and high density 

20 residential uses, provisions for elementary schools, a 

21 primary education campus, which I believe is in this area 

22 here, and that would be an APS facility.  And then, also a 

23 provision for university campus, possibly for CNM.  It also 

24 includes corresponding zoning districts, which have a list 

25 of conditional and permissive uses and specific area 
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 1 requirements such as lot size, density, floor-area ratio, 

 2 and building setback requirements that in some ways, I saw, 

 3 were similar to those in County zoning, except that there 

 4 are more residential zones being created to allow higher 

 5 density than what we now have in the County.

 6 The Level B plan also proposes the next level of 

 7 phasing for the transportation -- planning for the 

 8 transportation network including more specific roads and a 

 9 transportation analysis to ensure that the network is 

10 adequate.  It also provides a plan for other infrastructure 

11 to include water, wastewater, drainage, storm water, and 

12 other utilities, and it includes a more detailed fiscal and 

13 economic analysis to show the possible benefits and revenues 

14 for the development.

15 The main justification as with Level A continues to be 

16 compliance with the Planned Communities Criteria and the 

17 Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Comprehensive Plan policies 

18 for the Reserve Area.  The application states, "It 

19 encourages relatively predictable planning for the area and 

20 will provide many benefits for Bernalillo County in terms of 

21 economic development, high quality residential, parks and 

22 open space, and infrastructure development."

23 So the Staff Report has been done as best we could 

24 given the limited time to review this request.  And the 

25 Staff Report does provide an overview, both Level A and 
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 1 Level B for people who read it, and it also has noted many 

 2 comments from Staff and agencies.  Comments cover such areas 

 3 as land use, zoning, density, design, building design, site 

 4 design, transportation, drainage, water issues, open space, 

 5 and many more issues, and these are things that we'll get 

 6 into in the subsequent hearings.  

 7 So overall, the response of Staff is that the Level B 

 8 plan needs more work on the part of the applicant and the 

 9 agent, and then it also deserves more -- more time for 

10 discussion as well, and where Staff, agencies, the public 

11 can all weigh in.  So Staff is proposing continuance of this 

12 request for several reasons.  This is a large, complicated 

13 request that will require lengthy presentation and 

14 discussion, preferably over the course of three to four 

15 specialized hearings, and Staff has put together a schedule 

16 that we think would be appropriate, focusing on three 

17 specific topical areas and then another hearing that would 

18 allow for general discussion, so potentially four -- four 

19 special hearings for this case is what we feel.  May be one 

20 a month starting in April.  So I do have that schedule.  

21 I've shown it to the Chair, and that's something that you 

22 may discuss at the end.  

23 But just to continue with my discussion to say that the 

24 request was submitted in late January, and Staff, agencies, 

25 and the public did not have a lot of time to review this 

TR- 60
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 case.  Meetings with some Staff and agencies are taking 

 2 place, but some have not, or they've just been preliminary 

 3 meetings.  So more time is needed.  

 4 Also, I wanted to point out the conditions for the 

 5 Level A plan have not been addressed, not all of them.  Some 

 6 have been addressed.  Some have not been addressed that 

 7 really need to be addressed prior to discussion of this 

 8 case, and then there are a number of conditions that need to 

 9 be addressed prior to Level B approval.  

10 So the applicant is still in different stages of 

11 addressing conditions of approval that were -- were imposed 

12 by the County Commission and also this Commission.  For 

13 those of you who were here, you remember working on them.  

14 So there are a couple of conditions that were supposed 

15 to be addressed prior to Level B submittal, such as the 

16 platting of the property, and then also, a drainage and 

17 storm water management plan to address EPA standards.  So 

18 there are two that really need to be worked on right away, 

19 and then there are a number of conditions that will need to 

20 be addressed prior to Level B approval.  So just to let you 

21 know, too, that while we're proceeding with the Level B 

22 discussion, that the applicant is still -- and agents are 

23 still working to address some of the conditions from Level 

24 A, and that's something, you know, maybe as we get into the 

25 specific areas, we can -- we can revisit that and make sure 
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 1 that those conditions are being -- are being addressed.

 2 Let's see.  We also, like I said, need -- we, including 

 3 Staff, needs more time to look specifically at the Planned 

 4 Communities Criteria for Level B to make sure that those are 

 5 being addressed, so that when we have these discussions, we 

 6 can really get into whether or not this application meets 

 7 those criteria.  

 8 And, Mr. Chair, that concludes my presentation, but I 

 9 stand for questions.  Like I said, there is a schedule that 

10 you -- at some point you may want to consider it.  There are 

11 some Staff here.  Some Staff, knowing that this was a 

12 preliminary discussion, were not able to attend today, so -- 

13 but they will attend when they get to their specific areas.

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

15 MS. VEREECKE:  I stand for questions.

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any questions?  Okay.  You know, 

17 we do have a schedule that we're going to have, and I heard 

18 from you a lot of -- some things are not complete, and with 

19 this schedule that we're going to have, there's -- and we're 

20 going to break it up into four different hearings, three 

21 actual hearings for things at Level B, and the last one for 

22 us to make a decision.  All I'm saying is that for -- 

23 especially the applicant is what's required for Level B when 

24 we have these hearings, they better be prepared, and they 

25 better have them, because we're not going to be going back 
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 1 to fix things.  You know, it's their job to present to us 

 2 and to make sure that they -- they send you all their 

 3 criteria that's required.  

 4 Some of these conditions that you're talking about that 

 5 they haven't met, now, those are conditions that the County 

 6 Commission put on them; is that correct?  

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, yes.  

 8 Those are conditions of approval.  The Planning Commission 

 9 and Staff, Staff worked on findings and conditions with the 

10 County Planning Commission, and then the Planning Commission 

11 made a recommendation of conditions of approval, and those 

12 were -- some of them were kept.  Some of them were modified 

13 as the County Commission reviewed the request, but those are 

14 part of the decision made by the Board of County Commission, 

15 so --

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Exactly, and that's what I'm -- 

17 MS. VEREECKE:  -- there were 20 -- 22 conditions 

18 of approval.  

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  That's what I'm talking about is 

20 those conditions, it's not that we have to approve them or 

21 disapprove them.  They're conditions that the County 

22 Commission put on them, and you're saying that those 

23 conditions have to be met before Level B is considered?  Is 

24 that what you're telling me?  

25 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, that's correct.  That's 
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 1 the way that they were worded and prior to Level B approval 

 2 and then for the different -- the different conditions, 

 3 they're lengthy conditions.

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  So before -- before -- 

 5 we're talking about two different things for the Level B to 

 6 be heard?  For Level B to be approved?  

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner, a majority 

 8 were prior to Level B approval.  There were a couple that 

 9 should be addressed prior to Level B plan or zoning 

10 submittal.  There were two that needed to be addressed prior 

11 to Level B plan or zoning submittal, and that was the 

12 platting of the property, and then drainage plan and storm 

13 water management plan shall be submitted at the time of any 

14 Level B submittal with provisions for revision as needed to 

15 ensure consistency with any EPA issued municipal separate 

16 storm water systems.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  What I'm hearing there 

18 is that they had to have those things when they submitted 

19 their -- 

20 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, that is how I read it, 

21 yes.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

23 MS. VEREECKE:  The others, and there are nine 

24 others that need to be addressed prior to approval.  So I 

25 assume that they're working on -- 
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  To approval.  So that's when we 

 2 do our -- 

 3 MS. VEREECKE:  -- prior to Level B approval.  

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Commissioner Chavez.

 5 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Sort of along those same 

 6 lines, so this is new, you know -- I mean, new, kind of old 

 7 stuff, but how common is it -- or have we done it before 

 8 where we've started the process when those conditions of a 

 9 Level A plan have not been approved?  That's the first 

10 question.  Second question is maybe to the applicant is how 

11 close are they to meeting those conditions of approval or 

12 submittal, being able to submit the Level B plan?  

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  We'll ask the applicant when he 

14 comes up.  

15 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, 

16 this is -- this is unprecedented.  This -- we have not had 

17 one of these before, but my understanding -- and I have 

18 spoken to the agent, and we know that they are diligently 

19 working to work out those, the outstanding conditions during 

20 this process, and I know they'll tell you more about that 

21 when they give their presentation.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Commissioner Malry.

23 MR. MALRY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

24 First of all, I would like to thank Staff for bringing 

25 a much better project to us than they did in A.  Now, B is a 
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 1 lot better, more detailed.  Now, this is -- I want to make 

 2 sure I understand.  This is -- B is about one-third the size 

 3 of A; is that correct?  

 4 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Malry, 

 5 yeah.  It's about a third.  So this site is about 4,200, and 

 6 the whole site is close to 14,000.

 7 MR. MALRY:  Mr. Chairman, I look forward to 

 8 listening to the presentations.  Let me just say that I just 

 9 -- again, I want to thank the Staff, because they've done an 

10 outstanding job working with the applicant on this, and I 

11 just want to give them credit for what they've done, 

12 Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  One -- and the reason I'm 

14 bringing all these conditions is because I want the ground 

15 rules to -- so everybody understands them, both the 

16 applicant and the audience, that we're going to be hearing 

17 this case, and we're going to split it up into three 

18 different meetings before we make the final decision.  We 

19 already have the dates that we're going to be hearing this, 

20 and we want those applications or whatever has to be had 

21 complete when we're going to hear.  For instance, when we 

22 hear transportation, we're going to hear transportation that 

23 day.  We're not going to come back to another date and hear 

24 that again.  So we want everything complete, and if it's not 

25 complete, we're not going to hear it, and every application 
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 1 that comes to us should be complete.  Everybody has their 

 2 own responsibility, and we're talking about a lot of 

 3 conditions that they haven't met yet with the County 

 4 Commission and what they required of them, and that's why I 

 5 was asking if it has to be when they apply or when it's 

 6 approved.  There's two different dates there, you know.  So 

 7 those things we got to -- we got to make sure.  

 8 And I am going to announce the dates that we're going 

 9 to have a hearing so everybody knows what dates we're going 

10 to have them.  We're going to have the first hearing, it's 

11 going to be on April the 11th, and everybody should be able 

12 to get this from Staff once we do that, and what we're going 

13 to be hearing at that -- is transportation at that hearing, 

14 everything that has to do with transportation.  

15 Our next meeting is going to be May the -- May the 

16 26th, and at that meeting we're going to hear land use and 

17 zoning, and then other next meeting is going to be on June 

18 the 23rd, and that's when we're going to hear environmental 

19 and open space and government and public services.  

20 And then on July the 21st is where we're going to meet 

21 and make a decision and send it up to the County Commission, 

22 whatever recommendation we're going to have.  So I just want 

23 everybody to understand when we're -- so even the audience, 

24 when they want to speak towards something, we're going to 

25 have this thing, transportation, zoning, so they don't -- 
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 1 they don't have to think that they're going to have to come 

 2 up here and talk about everything in one meeting, so they 

 3 know what the schedule's going to be and what we're going to 

 4 be discussing.  

 5 And at those meetings we're not going to make no final 

 6 decision.  They're going to be hearings, and on the 21st of 

 7 July is when we're going to make our final recommendation to 

 8 the County Commission.  So I'm just saying that everybody 

 9 here, applicant, audience, everybody be prepared for those 

10 days, and that's what we're going to hear.  

11 So I appreciate, and I want to echo what Commissioner 

12 Malry said, that Staff has been working very hard with this 

13 thing, and I hope the applicant has been working just as 

14 hard to get us the information that we need up here.  So -- 

15 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, just to 

16 say, too, I don't know if we have any extra copies, but -- 

17 and for people who are new to this process, that on the 

18 County's website, www.bernco.gov/santolina, we have been 

19 trying to keep all of the main documents that have been 

20 submitted.  So there are copies of the Level B submittal 

21 that we're starting to talk about and all the associated 

22 documents, the Staff Report, and even everything from Level 

23 A is still on the website.  So hopefully you'll be able to 

24 go and specifically look at -- look at this request and 

25 realize that we are talking related to specific criteria 
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 1 that are listed in the Planned Communities Criteria for 

 2 Level B.  And we will try to get this schedule posted this 

 3 afternoon or tomorrow, and we may have some additional 

 4 copies that we'll pass around, too.  But -- you know, and I 

 5 think this is good that it allows Staff more time to work on 

 6 this, because it is getting very detailed at this level.  We 

 7 have to read it really carefully, and then also for the 

 8 applicant and the agents to continue working on the areas 

 9 that they have been -- or the issues that are being raised 

10 by Staff, and then, also, for the community to follow the 

11 discussion.  So -- and so I think it's good this is spread 

12 out over time, too.  That allows everybody to contribute.  

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And those dates are not just 

14 dates we have picked out of the air.  Those are dates when 

15 this room is available, and we had to kind of schedule it so 

16 that we can have these hearings.  So I appreciate 

17 everybody's cooperation in these hearings.  You know, we 

18 want to have good hearings.  You know, what we recommend to 

19 the County Commission we want it to be a good recommendation 

20 that people -- not everybody's going to agree to everything 

21 on both sides, so -- but that's what we're here, to make a 

22 decision and send to the County Commission, so -- 

23 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, just to say, too, there 

24 may be some Staff that want to speak really briefly, or they 

25 may not even want to speak, but I know Mike Garcia wanted to 
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 1 say a few words, too, related to the ground rules and the 

 2 background of this discussion.  So when we finish, if there 

 3 are any other questions, but I wanted to -- 

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Commissioner Malry.  

 5 MS. VEREECKE: -- invite Mike to speak, too.

 6 MR. MALRY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I just 

 7 wanted to make sure we have the time with the dates.  Are we 

 8 talking 9:00 a.m. each -- each --

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  All our hearings will start 

10 at 9:00 a.m.  

11 MR. MALRY:  9:00 a.m.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

12 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman.  

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.

14 MS. KELLY:  I have a question of Catherine and 

15 then -- 

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.  

17 MS. KELLY:  -- just a comment about the schedule.  

18 So I saw in the Staff Report numerous times that there was a 

19 short timeframe, and all the Staff hadn't had a chance to 

20 thoroughly review it.  Is there a particular reason for 

21 that?  Why was that on such a large plan?  

22 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Kelly, so 

23 sometimes when we have large master plans or sector plans, 

24 we allow additional time for review, that they may be 

25 submitted and then have an additional month, but in this 
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 1 case, we scheduled it when it -- when it was submitted, so 

 2 it really -- you know, we didn't allow that additional time, 

 3 but then thinking that this is probably going to be like the 

 4 Level A that there will be more time available later on, but 

 5 also in developing the scheduling, we took into account what 

 6 has been provided in the plan and where we saw -- there's a 

 7 lot of information in transportation, that it seems to be 

 8 fairly complete, a lot of meetings.  We thought that was the 

 9 most ready to go, and then land use and zoning we put 

10 second, because we thought that was an area that could use 

11 some additional time for both Staff as well as the agent, 

12 because it is developing almost like a zoning code for this 

13 property.  So that's where we scheduled that in May so that 

14 it would allow some additional -- additional time to work on 

15 land use and zoning.  

16 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

17 Mr. Chairman, is the schedule set in stone?  

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Well, one of the --

19 MS. KELLY:  I'm going to be out of the country in 

20 April, that date.  I had kind of planned some of my schedule 

21 around regular Commission dates, and I know that this is a 

22 huge issue.  I'm just asking if that's set in stone.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  April, you're going to be 

24 gone on the 11th?  

25 MS. KELLY:  Yes.  
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  We do have this room, and 

 2 that's the only date we have two different choices for 

 3 April.  

 4 MS. KELLY:  I'm going the 2nd --

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And that's April the 27th.

 6 MS. SERNA:  And I'm gone on the 11th.  

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Oh, and you're gone -- so the 

 8 27th would be better for everybody?  

 9 MS. SERNA:  That would work.  

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Then the April meeting, 

11 we're going to change it to the 27th, and that day this room 

12 is available, too, to us, so -- 

13 MS. KELLY:  And Commissioner -- Mr. Chairman, I 

14 had -- I had kind of thought along the same lines that 

15 you've been thinking about, trying to group things and have 

16 one meeting dedicated to different issues.  I guess I had a 

17 few more on my list like drainage, water.  

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Staff, where do we have 

19 that scheduled?  I'm sure it's in here.

20 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman, just -- just to finish 

21 my other question, so one of the things that you said at the 

22 last hearing, because I wasn't part of the -- what all you 

23 went through in terms of a CPC process last time, you had 

24 said you'd like a really good overview of what the County 

25 Commission approved, and so I thought it would be really 
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 1 useful to dedicate one period of time to actually looking at 

 2 the Development Agreement and actually thinking about what 

 3 all is involved with going to Level B, so --

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Do we have the Development 

 5 Agreement in here?  I mean, it's something that we have no 

 6 control over.  

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, that --

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  That's between them and the 

 9 County Commission but -- 

10 MS. VEREECKE:  Yeah.  So the findings and 

11 conditions and the Development Agreement are in Attachment 3 

12 in the Staff Report, and I did send them to you separately, 

13 and they're also on the website, you know, and I don't know 

14 if you want to have a separate hearing for that or if that 

15 might be appropriate for a study session where we could give 

16 a general overview of --

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Now, the Development Agreement is 

18 nothing that we decide on; is that correct?  

19 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, that's 

20 correct.  It's just that it is part of the history of this 

21 case to where -- 

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yeah.  It's part of the history, 

23 and we have in the record -- 

24 MS. VEREECKE:  -- some parameters and some 

25 elements were clarified in the Development Agreement that 
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 1 we'll need to carry through, but it would likely carry 

 2 through to the next Development Agreement for Level B, which 

 3 is not something that -- 

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So there's another one that the 

 5 County Commission is going to negotiate with the applicant?  

 6 I'm not too familiar with the Development Agreements.  

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, that's correct.

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Because we don't hear them here.  

 9 MR. GARCIA:  Yes.  That is correct, Chairman 

10 Chavez.

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  But we do have it in 

12 there, and there's no reason why at one of these meetings 

13 that we're having and you, as a Commissioner, wants to 

14 discuss that -- Commissioners can discuss whatever they 

15 want.  So we can bring it up and have some kind of 

16 discussion at one of those hearings that we have here, but 

17 it is in our packet, and it's -- everybody can read what it 

18 is, and if there's something that we need to -- want to talk 

19 about it, but it's not something that we're going to decide, 

20 vote on, because it's not something that we have any 

21 jurisdiction over.  

22 And that's one of the reasons that the schedule is so 

23 important, and what we're discussing is the Level B, and -- 

24 because if we get back into Level A, we're discussing 

25 something that's already been approved by the County 
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 1 Commission and we have no control over.

 2 Now, those conditions that they were supposed to meet, 

 3 those I want them clarified by maybe the attorney.  If we -- 

 4 they've got to be clarified by the time we do our 

 5 recommendation or what?  So that's one thing that needs to 

 6 be looked at.  Okay?  

 7 So is there any other questions?  The --

 8 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Kelly had 

 9 another question.  You said that you didn't see drainage and 

10 water -- 

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Oh, okay.

12 MS. VEREECKE:  -- listed, and I'm seeing for the 

13 hearing number 4, under Environment and Open Space, there is 

14 a discussion of the drainage plan and then -- and then also 

15 government and public services, statements of water 

16 availability and availability of public services.  So I 

17 think water would be covered under that.  But just to say, 

18 too, that there were specific plans, technical plans that 

19 were submitted for drainage and also for water.  So -- so 

20 that would be in the third hearing that we would be 

21 discussing those, and I mean, generally, we'll follow the 

22 Planned Communities Criteria, but then as Staff gets up, 

23 too, they'll also be looking at this request from the 

24 perspective of their -- of their areas or disciplines, too.  

25 So our drainage engineer, our hydrologist will definitely be 
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 1 participating when we get to that particular section.  We 

 2 may have the Water Utility Authority involved as well.  So 

 3 those areas will be covered.

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Any questions?  

 5 MS. VEREECKE:  I think Mike --

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Staff, is that --

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  Mike.  

 8 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, Members of the 

 9 Commission, I just wanted to say a few words about the 

10 litigation that's pending in court right now concerning the 

11 Level A Master Plan zone, PC zone, and Development 

12 Agreement, and because the question has been raised whether 

13 we should continue to hear the case while litigation is 

14 pending, and the short answer to that is that, so far -- 

15 like we had a hearing yesterday, that the Court has done 

16 nothing so far to reverse anything that the BCC has 

17 approved, and there's no stay ordered by the Court.  There's 

18 no stay requested by the opposition, and accordingly, 

19 there's really no reason -- there's no legal reason why the 

20 CPC should not or cannot hear the Level B application at 

21 this time.

22 So we have a hearing -- I think the next hearing is set 

23 April 26th, and there's also going to be one the 27th in 

24 court on statement of appeal issues and some other motions 

25 that are before the State District Court, and those will be 
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 1 heard at the same time.  Even if they're heard that day, we 

 2 still may not have a ruling on those -- on those issues on 

 3 those days.  So the -- I guess the short answer is at this 

 4 point there's no reason not to hear the Level B application 

 5 at this time.

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  The applicant.  And do we 

 7 have a list of the people that are going to -- will 

 8 everybody that's going to speak on this case please stand up 

 9 so I can swear you in.  

10 (Note:  Witnesses sworn.)

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  How much time do you 

12 think you're going to need?  

13 MR. STROZIER:  I have a -- I have a presentation 

14 that's really just designed to be an overview of the Level B 

15 and kind of an update on some of the questions that just 

16 came up in the last -- in the recent conversation, so if -- 

17 I think it will take me about 20 minutes -- 

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  That's fine.  

19 MR. STROZIER:  -- to go through that, and -- and 

20 before I start I did want to just -- Mr. Chairman and 

21 Commissioners, we did provide a letter dated January 25th as 

22 part of our application where we addressed each of the 

23 conditions that were placed on the project on the Level A 

24 approval by the County Commission, and that's a part of our 

25 application, and it includes updates, and we're continuing 
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 1 to update those things as we go, but just wanted to 

 2 reference the question of the plat.  

 3 That was condition no. 19, and it says, "Prior to or 

 4 concurrent with the first Level B plan approval."  So that 

 5 condition allows us -- so we're actively working on that.  

 6 We've met with Staff.  We will have that completed, but it's 

 7 a large piece of property, and a lot of this land was 

 8 previously unplatted land.  So this is -- it's a little bit 

 9 more complicated than a typical plat might be.  So we are -- 

10 we are actively working on that, and I think that the 

11 condition, the way it's worded, allowed us -- oops.  Sorry.  

12 I got the -- there we go.  When you log in, it takes you 

13 right to the City's activity calendar.  

14 So with that, I just wanted to make sure that you all 

15 were aware that we did provide that as part of our 

16 application, and we certainly also appreciate Staff's work 

17 on this, and we have had a number of meetings, and I'll talk 

18 a little bit about those as part of my presentation and 

19 continue to have those on specific areas related to the 

20 different departments and agencies that have relationship 

21 with this planning effort.  

22 So this -- yes, it's the Level B plan.  I want to talk 

23 a little bit about our team.  They are actively involved in 

24 all aspects of this.  Garrett Development Corporation, Matt 

25 Look is here today from that organization.  They're the 
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 1 asset managers for Western Albuquerque Land Holdings.  

 2 Bohannan Huston are the civil engineers, our engineers on 

 3 the project.  Both James Topmiller and Eric Rhage are here.  

 4 They have taken care of the Terrain Management Plan, all of 

 5 the transportation analysis; that is, not only the update to 

 6 Level A, but the additional and new analysis in association 

 7 with the Level B application and water and wastewater 

 8 planning that's been done.  

 9 SEC planning is another planning organization that's 

10 out of Austin, Texas, and they've been helping us with 

11 aspects of the master plan as well.  Ourselves, Consensus 

12 Planning.  David Tausig and Associates is an economic and 

13 financial fiscal impact analysis firm out of California, and 

14 they've not only did the Level A analysis, but they've 

15 provided the Level B analysis for this, and then John 

16 Salazar is here with the Rodey Law Firm as well, and so 

17 that's our team that's been working on this.  I don't think 

18 I'll spend any time -- that's what we're doing now.  

19 But my presentation today, once again, the Santolina 

20 area is about 14 -- just under 14,000 acres on the south 

21 side of I-40.  The purpose of this graphic is really to show 

22 the relationship of Santolina with not only what we refer to 

23 as Estrella, which is Western Albuquerque Land Holdings' 

24 property north of I-40 but also the area that was covered 

25 under the old Westland Master Plan.  A portion of that is 
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 1 within the City of Albuquerque city limits, and a portion of 

 2 that is also in the unincorporated County, and that's a plan 

 3 that's been approved and amended a number of times since 

 4 1999, and that's area that's seeing a lot of development 

 5 activity now, especially in the City portion.  That's where 

 6 the new APS football stadium, the new baseball complex, the 

 7 Dell Web project is under way out there.  So there's a lot 

 8 of activity taking place there.  Just wanted a reference in 

 9 terms of that.

10 I'm not going to spend a lot of time -- once again, we 

11 provided a letter that detailed our response and a status 

12 update, if you will, on each of those conditions that were 

13 placed on the Level A plan.  One of the things that I will 

14 talk about because it was -- there was a lot of effort that 

15 has gone into that was the transportation plan.  

16 Those of you that were part of the Level A discussion, 

17 that was an area where not only did we have a lot of 

18 conversation about the transportation network, but we also 

19 made changes to the plan in response to those comments, and 

20 those comments came from the DOT.  They came from MRCOG, and 

21 they came from County Public Works Staff, and we addressed 

22 those as we went through that process, and one of the 

23 conditions was to reanalyze, basically run the 

24 transportation model again with that updated plan and 

25 updated information.
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 1 The other thing that happened kind of concurrently with 

 2 the Level A approval process was the adoption and approval 

 3 of the 2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan, or MTP, which 

 4 was also adopted.  So that provided us with a point where we 

 5 could reanalyze with the approved data sets, population 

 6 projections, job projections.  So that was done, and that 

 7 has been submitted, and we've had meetings with all of the 

 8 transportation parties to review that analysis that was done 

 9 simultaneously with the analysis of the Level B plan, and 

10 that basically looked at a 2025 horizon, a 2040 horizon, and 

11 then a full build-out, depending on which of those parts you 

12 were looking at.  So a lot of -- a lot of efforts have been 

13 going on related to that.  So I wanted to take a moment to 

14 speak to that.

15 So one of the things just to -- that was also an 

16 important aspect of the Level A discussion and approval was 

17 the jobs/housing balance, and that's something that is 

18 addressed in that Development Agreement.  This Body spent a 

19 lot of time talking about that.  We spent a lot of time 

20 talking about that at the County Commission.  So we set -- 

21 within that Development Agreement it set certain parameters 

22 as to what needed to be happen by when as development 

23 occurs, and I wanted to show that to you relative to -- 

24 there's specific dwelling unit thresholds and number of jobs 

25 that are required.  So at 2000, for instance, on this table, 
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 1 when you get to that threshold, you need to have 300 jobs, 

 2 and it increases over time, and this slide basically shows 

 3 you where we would be at the build-out of this Level B plan.  

 4 So you can see where we fit, and that's at 1.25 jobs per 

 5 dwelling unit.  

 6 And that's important to note because, while it's not at 

 7 the full two jobs per dwelling unit that we anticipate at 

 8 full build-out, it is still a lot higher than where the West 

 9 Side is today.  So we continue to have a strong emphasis on 

10 job creation, job-producing land uses, and in fact, we're 

11 responding to an AED request this week that -- and working 

12 with your staff on responding to that.  So there are -- we 

13 continue to work on those aspects, and we understand the 

14 importance of job creation as a part of this project, and so 

15 I wanted to show you that and sort of bring that to your 

16 attention, and I'm sure we'll talk about that more.  

17 So this graphic takes the Level B plan area and 

18 superimposes it onto that approval, Level A plan, and I 

19 won't spend a lot of time on this.  Ms. VerEecke, I think, 

20 went through our Level B area, but another part of that -- 

21 so this just overlays that on the aerial photo, and you can 

22 kind of see on this, it gives you a very clear relationship 

23 between the existing developed community to the east below 

24 the escarpment, and you can see the Anderson Hills 

25 neighborhood, which is probably the closest actual 
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 1 residential neighborhood to our -- to our site, and you can 

 2 see the relationship.  The existing roadways that are out 

 3 there today are Atrisco Vista Boulevard and Dennis Chavez 

 4 that actually come into this Level A, and you can see that 

 5 obviously those two roadways were used as an organizing 

 6 element for this first Level B area.

 7 This next graphic shows the Level B more detailed plan 

 8 superimposed on the transportation network for Level A, and 

 9 as those of you who were here at the time, you recall that a 

10 lot of that conversation about transportation was talking 

11 about the grid and the need to make sure that we not only 

12 had the sort of supergrid laid out with the main arterials 

13 for the project, but that there would be the next level of 

14 grid for that street network that would occur in the plan, 

15 and this just shows you how that transportation network has 

16 been refined and developed as part of our Level B plan and 

17 what was modeled in that transportation analysis that I 

18 talked about earlier.

19 Another aspect of -- and I'll show you some of those 

20 exhibits later, but in terms of the roadways and thinking 

21 about that, one of the things that is integral to the 

22 transportation plan, the transportation network, and the 

23 specific roadways that are proposed out here is that they 

24 have all been developed around this idea of "complete 

25 streets."   So those -- those roadways incorporate potential 
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 1 for future transit.  They incorporate bike lanes, and the 

 2 larger streets, those are protected bike lanes with a buffer 

 3 built in like you have on -- if you're familiar with Coors, 

 4 the section over there by Saint Pius where they have a 

 5 stripped buffer between the roadway, the travel lanes, and 

 6 the bicycle lane makes for a much safer and a much more 

 7 comfortable condition for the cyclists.  

 8 So those -- those issues are incorporated into this 

 9 process and into the plans that we've provided.  So not only 

10 do we have the grid, but we've got the "complete streets" 

11 aspect on that as well.  

12 So the Level B land-use plan, once again, looks at 

13 incorporating a significant amount of non-residential land 

14 uses, the industrial, the business park, and the town center 

15 and the urban center, which we see in this phase as being 

16 primarily an education focus.  All of those uses are 

17 potential job-producers for the project.  

18 The other thing, and Ms. VerEecke mentioned, is there's 

19 almost a thousand acres of open space in this initial Level 

20 B plan.  As you recall, we talked a lot about the 

21 escarpments, the open space on the east side and the open 

22 space on the west side.  We wanted do make sure that part of 

23 our commitment to the project was to bring forward those 

24 open space and escarpment areas as part of the initial Level 

25 B plan, because we spent a lot of time talking about that, 
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 1 and so we have the eastern escarpment and then the western 

 2 escarpment, a portion of each of those, that makes up the 

 3 bulk of the Level B plan.  

 4 We've also identified residential areas and broken 

 5 those residential villages into low, medium, and high 

 6 density areas.  The higher density areas are on those -- 

 7 along those major routes and in conjunction with the 

 8 commercial village centers areas, and then we've also 

 9 started to think about -- and this is where some of that 

10 dialogue -- and this will get refined as we go through.  We 

11 recognize that -- is we've identified school sites.  We've 

12 identified park sites.  We've identified fire and sheriff 

13 locations.  So obviously we're going to be working with 

14 those staff individually as we move through.  Once again, an 

15 overview of the land uses.  

16 So typically in a planned community type of project, 

17 you would probably have somewhere -- a little bit higher 

18 than half of the land uses would be allocated to residential 

19 uses.  That's kind of a typical -- a typical scenario if 

20 you're just looking about taking care of the community 

21 itself.  You'll see we have about 33 percent of the area 

22 devoted to residential, significantly less than what would 

23 be normal, because we have a much higher percentage than 

24 normal devoted to those job-producing land uses that I 

25 mentioned.  We also have 22 percent of the area as open 
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 1 space.  So a significant component of that is open space 

 2 lands, and then another significant component is the 

 3 job-producing land uses.  Slightly different.  We've broken 

 4 that out in detail in a table.  I'm not going to go through 

 5 this.  It's in the report, but all those different aspects 

 6 of those land uses that I talked about are broken down 

 7 within the plan area.

 8 The Level B zoning, once again, we've got seven 

 9 land-use districts, and that zoning has been identified for 

10 each of those districts, and as Ms. VerEecke pointed out, we 

11 spent a lot of time -- probably where we had to spend the 

12 most time customizing those land-use districts, zoning 

13 districts was related to the residential.  That's where we 

14 found the disconnect between the existing County zoning and 

15 the plan's intent to have more higher density, different 

16 types of products than are typically seen in Bernalillo 

17 County and in your zoning districts for residential.  We 

18 tried to follow as much as possible the framework of your 

19 zoning districts and also borrow a little bit from the City 

20 of Albuquerque on some of their residential zones that we 

21 think work pretty well.  So we tried to look at some best 

22 practices there.  

23 Transportation, once again, we've updated the Level A 

24 traffic analysis.  That's been completed to conform to the 

25 2040 MTP projections.  A big component of that is working on 
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 1 the demographics, and Kendra Watkins at the Mid-Region 

 2 Council of Governments is their demographer.  We spent a lot 

 3 of time working with her and with her group and making sure 

 4 that we were incorporating those numbers appropriately into 

 5 the traffic model and the modeling exercise that was used, 

 6 and that relates, once again, to that 2025, 2040, and full 

 7 build-out thresholds.  

 8 Planned and modeled is a multi-modal transportation 

 9 system, once again, "complete streets," we utilized.  So 

10 once -- MRCOG is the keeper of the transportation model.  

11 It's not our model.  Mike Corlette was part of our team, and 

12 he is the person who basically interfaces between the plan 

13 and MRCOG's model.  He's licensed to do that and approved by 

14 them to do that, and so that's how that works.  It's their 

15 model.  We utilize their model and update it to bring in 

16 those demographics both dwelling unit and job assumptions 

17 over time, and that's what's brought in.  And, once again, 

18 that was done for Level B and the update to Level A at the 

19 same time.

20 We look -- the Level B plan looks at a number of 

21 environment and open space issues.  Some of those we've 

22 completed, and they're part of the submittal.  Some of them 

23 are under way.  At this time biological resources, 

24 archeology, we're initiating the class II, which is a 

25 sampling archeological report.  SWCA is going to be 
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 1 performing that work.  Air quality, which is included.  

 2 Storm water and terrain management, there's a detailed 

 3 technical appendices that addresses that.  Both -- once 

 4 again, related to that, there's both an update to the Level 

 5 A document and a new document for Level B, the technical 

 6 analysis that brought it into more detail for that.  Energy 

 7 and soils and terrain management, that's kind of all woven 

 8 in together with that.  

 9 Process.  Working with the Water Utility Authority, as 

10 we talked about in Level A, they're their own political 

11 entity.  They have their own board which consists of both 

12 City and County representatives.  We are -- we are working 

13 with them.  That process is happening.  As you might 

14 imagine, that's probably a -- that is a complicated aspect 

15 in terms of how that agreement is getting structured and 

16 being worked on.  So that is in progress, and we're working 

17 on that at this time.  What we're -- as you are aware, those 

18 of you that were part of the Level A discussion and for of 

19 you who weren't, an update.  So there's been a significant 

20 both financial commitment and construction of backbone water 

21 and wastewater infrastructure on the West Mesa that was 

22 funded primarily by Western Albuquerque Land Holdings in 

23 coordination with the Water Authority, and that system is in 

24 place.  It's been built.  I think it was around $40 million 

25 worth of infrastructure that's been constructed on the West 
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 1 Mesa.  We're proposing to utilize that infrastructure as at 

 2 least an initial phase of bringing Santolina's water system 

 3 online.  

 4 Let's see.  Water and sanitary sewer -- so one of the 

 5 things we've been working with them on is -- and it's 

 6 obviously an important aspect of this entire project is 

 7 water conservation, water usage, and so that's incorporated 

 8 in the plan that you have.  

 9 Once again, when we talk about government and public 

10 services, we've looked at the public facilities that are 

11 existing that are nearby.  We've also looked at the need for 

12 new facilities.  We just met yesterday with the Park Staff 

13 in talking in more detail about some of those thresholds and 

14 their service numbers in terms of number of people served by 

15 different types of parks, different community facilities, 

16 and we will be refining this plan as we work with them in 

17 preparation for -- I think that's the June -- June hearing, 

18 and hopefully we'll have some of that worked out and 

19 addressed as part of the May hearing as well.

20 Looking at solid waste, looking at, once again, 

21 transportation and schools, we have had a meeting with APS, 

22 and we will continue to met with them, with their planning 

23 group, and we have also met with CNM with their facilities 

24 planning group, and we anticipate having joint meetings with 

25 APS and CNM at the time table together, because they're 
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 1 doing a lot of work at this -- at this time looking at 

 2 programs where they interface with one another with their 

 3 Two-Plus-Two program and things like that.  So we want to 

 4 make sure we're getting them both at the table at the same 

 5 time.  

 6 The fiscal and economic impact analysis has been done.  

 7 And, once again, I think you all probably got a hard copy of 

 8 the Level B plan, but there's a stack about this tall of 

 9 those technical appendices that are also -- that have also 

10 been submitted.  They're all available on the website, and 

11 I'm sure they're all available to you all.  Especially if 

12 you're having trouble sleeping, I highly recommend the 

13 transportation analysis.  It works really well.  No offense, 

14 Eric.  

15 But so with the fiscal analysis, that looks at 

16 specifically the question of no net expense and revenues, 

17 and so just to clarify, once again, for everyone, the key 

18 word is "net expense."  It's not "no expense."

19 I think I just have a couple more -- 

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.  

21 MR. STROZIER:  I can go through them really 

22 quickly if that's okay.  

23 So I invite you to take a look.  I think the fiscal and 

24 economic analysis is important and certainly invite you all 

25 to look at that in more detail.
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 1 So Ms. VerEecke talked about the Level A, Level B, and 

 2 Level C.  Obviously that is a part of we're at the Level B 

 3 stage.  At Level C is when you start to see site plans, 

 4 subdivision plans, actual layouts for specific uses.  I 

 5 won't spend a lot of time on that.  

 6 Once again, this just shows the approval level, and so 

 7 Level A and Level B are designed to be reviewed and approved 

 8 by the Planning Commission and adopted by the County 

 9 Commission, and then at Level C, those are intended to be 

10 done at the Staff level, CDRA.  So once you have this plan 

11 in place, the idea is it would be efficient to go through 

12 and get -- actually get those more detailed plans 

13 accomplished.  

14 One of things that we've also submitted as part of our 

15 application -- I'm not going to go through this in detail, 

16 but we've prepared a matrix similar to what we did at Level 

17 A that goes through each of those criteria and where it's 

18 addressed in the application materials to date.  So those 

19 are either related to a chapter in the document, a technical  

20 appendices or both, and so -- but we have gone through those 

21 in detail.  You can see there's quite a few of them.  

22 In conclusion, we really appreciate the opportunity to 

23 work with you all as the Planning Commission and not only 

24 County Staff but the various agency staffs, because as -- as 

25 we go through this, you know, it's important that it's not 
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 1 just a County project.  Schools have a role.  MRCOG has a 

 2 role.  We're interfacing with all of those various agencies, 

 3 and we are committed to being prepared for each of those 

 4 individual scheduled hearings.  We didn't have the schedule 

 5 until today, but we are committed to being prepared for each 

 6 of those hearings that you've identified, and Staff has 

 7 identified the specific items that we will go through, and 

 8 we will -- we will be prepared to go through each of those 

 9 items related to not only the criteria but any of the 

10 conditions that may have been related to that topic and make 

11 sure that we provide you all with and Staff with the data 

12 necessary for them to review and hopefully report back that 

13 we're in good shape on each of those items.  Thank you.

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Questions of the 

15 applicant?  Commissioner Kelly.

16 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman.  

17 Jim, the Planned Community Criteria chart that you 

18 showed -- 

19 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.

20 MS. KELLY:  -- is that in our materials somewhere?  

21 MR. STROZIER:  It should be.  We provided that 

22 matrix as part of our application submittal materials, and 

23 -- I'm sorry.  There you can see my dad and I when we went 

24 skiing, but each of those -- these are basically just taken 

25 right out of the -- of the Level B criteria and then where 
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 1 those have been addressed, and --

 2 MS. KELLY:  Will you share that PowerPoint with 

 3 us, just because I haven't seen -- 

 4 MR. STROZIER:  Certainly.  I think we always -- 

 5 and typically Staff will post it on the website, too.  So, 

 6 yeah.  We have no problem sharing -- 

 7 MS. KELLY:  And then the stack of technical 

 8 documents that you mentioned for nighttime reading, is that 

 9 -- I don't see that on the website.  Is that somewhere?  

10 MR. STROZIER:  It should be on the website.  

11 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair and Commissioner Kelly, 

12 those are on the bernco website.  We did not add them in 

13 MiniTrack because of their size.  What happens with 

14 MiniTrack is that everything gets all put together as one 

15 document, and if they're really large in memory, you won't 

16 be able to open them.  So that's where we've kept the 

17 technical appendices separate.  So you would need to go to 

18 the website to look at them.  

19 MR. STROZIER:  And if -- I would just add to that.  

20 If anybody is -- you need to have a hard copy, I think we 

21 provided a certain number of copies to the various technical 

22 agency staff, but if anybody -- let us know through 

23 Catherine.  We'd be happy to provide you with additional 

24 hard copies if that's -- if that works better for you as 

25 well.
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Any questions?  If not, 

 2 thank you very much.

 3 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you.

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Now, we have the folks 

 5 that are going to be speaking.  So we'll call you two or 

 6 three at a time, so that you can come and sit up here and 

 7 then you can come up here next.  Go ahead.

 8 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  So, excuse me, Rod Mahoney 

 9 followed by Margaret Lopez and Sara Newton Juarez.  

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Name and address for the record, 

11 please.  

12 MR. MAHONEY:  Good morning.  My name is Rod 

13 Mahoney.  I live at 1838 Sadora Road, Southwest.  I'm the 

14 current president of the South Valley Coalition of 

15 Neighborhood Associations, and we would also like to thank 

16 the Staff for actually proposing these hearings moving 

17 forward.  I mean, clearly this is a very complicated 

18 endeavor in addition to Level A.  

19 What I'd like to do is to -- I took a quick scan over 

20 some of the items here for those various meetings moving 

21 forward, and there's a couple of things that are not 

22 explicitly stated in there that I think I would propose for 

23 you to do.  On the land use and zoning items, it was 

24 mentioned briefly, but they need to really have the 

25 jobs-to-housing balance matrix discussed.  I mean, that 
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 1 comes directly out of the Development Agreement.  

 2 Also, another thing associated with this is the PCC 

 3 criteria relative to the Reserve Areas for making us sure 

 4 that we only have three dwelling unit per acre associated 

 5 with that.

 6 Also, then Mr. Strozier touched on the fact of the no 

 7 net cost or expense of this.  That probably should be 

 8 residing in the government and public sectors or services 

 9 piece and sort of an assessment of what that is, and also 

10 then, a little bit more detail and analysis of the fiscal 

11 and economic impact part of that.  

12 And then finally on item no. 3, certainly the water 

13 issue has been one of the paramount issues that was 

14 discussed in Level A.  Certainly I think we'll also talk 

15 about it in Level B.  So there's a statement on water 

16 availability, but also, I believe there needs to be also at 

17 least a discussion on the impact of what water rights are 

18 and also sort of the associated economics connected to those 

19 water rights.  Thank you very much.

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  

21 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Margaret Lopez.  

22 MS. JUAREZ:  I don't think she's here.  

23 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Then Sara Newton 

24 Juarez, Roberto Roybal.  

25 MS. JUAREZ:  My name is Sara Newton Juarez, 933 
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 1 Nashville, Southwest.  Staff has done an amazing job.  I 

 2 agree with everybody, and I'd like to just mention a few 

 3 things.  

 4 As I understand it, the Development Agreement was done 

 5 in secret, not following the Open Meetings Act.  And then 

 6 onto water, Albuquerque and Rio Rancho have water shortages 

 7 now.  Considering the drought we have been in for the last 

 8 five years, the impacts of climate change, this is a project 

 9 that's out of scale with reality.  Young people are leaving, 

10 and there are no jobs to speak of.  Where is the scientific 

11 proof that there is enough water to serve 93,000 more 

12 people?  Level B should be deferred until we have written 

13 proof of the availability of water for 93,000 people.  Thank 

14 you.

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  

16 MR. ROYBAL:  Hello.  My name is Roberto Roybal.  I 

17 live at 2233 Don Felipe Road, Southwest.  I work with the 

18 Southwest Organizing Project, and I am also President of the 

19 Pajarito Village Association.  That's our neighborhood 

20 association in the deep Valley -- deep South Valley.  

21 We're here today -- actually we were here in 2014 in 

22 front of this Body, this Planning Commission, opposing the 

23 Level A plan, master plan, and we're here today, and we also 

24 oppose the Santolina Level B Master Plan.  And we'll 

25 probably already oppose the Level C plan as well.  But we 
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 1 think that -- we have many concerns.  Obviously the water 

 2 issues in the South Valley, we depend on agricultural.  

 3 That's our economy down there.  We depend on the water for 

 4 our farms, for our stock, for our animals, and for our 

 5 gardens, and it's -- we're very concerned about the plans, 

 6 because they -- Santolina says there's going to be no net 

 7 expense.  Yet, for Level B, we're understand they're going 

 8 to be asking for 40 public improvement districts, which is 

 9 going to be taking money, tax money away from the rest of 

10 the County, which means we have to take it up.  The schools 

11 are going to cost a lot of money that we're going to be 

12 picking up.  So we just don't believe that there's going to 

13 be no net expense, and we want to discuss that later in the 

14 following hearings.  

15 We're also concerned about the transportation.  Rio 

16 Bravo Boulevard right now is horrendous in the morning and 

17 the evening, getting home from work.  It's going to worsen 

18 with their plan.  Right now, this morning you deferred the 

19 Valle del Sol plan for 90 days.  That is an industrial park.  

20 There's going to be a lot of jobs there over by Mesa del 

21 Sol.  That's going to be in direct competition with the 

22 Santolina, with them building their industrial zones and 

23 commercial zones.  We'd hate to see people having, if they 

24 live in the Santolina area, having to travel down Dennis 

25 Chavez to Rio Bravo over to the Valle del Sol to get jobs.  

TR- 97
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 We also still doubt the jobs-to-homes analysis, and we 

 2 oppose this, and we would ask you to extend these schedules 

 3 for these plans.  They're overly ambitious.  We need a lot 

 4 of time.  It took over a year for you to consider the Level 

 5 A.  Level B we would hope that we'd be every couple months 

 6 and starting in June.  I don't know if you've all read the 

 7 68,000-page record from the previous Commission and County 

 8 Commission plan, but there's a lot of information there.  

 9 The Development Agreement is a nightmare.  That's why we're 

10 suing the County, the County Commission.  The Southwest 

11 Organizing Project, Pajarito Village Association, and 

12 several individuals are suing the County, because we oppose 

13 those plans.  The development Agreement is a nightmare.  It 

14 ties in zoning -- as a contract, it ties in zoning so that 

15 the County cannot change zoning once that Development 

16 Agreement is set in stone.  

17 And we also think that you should hold the hearings 

18 after the litigation has finished within District Court, 

19 because obviously we hope that we're going to win in court 

20 and throw the master plan, Level A, back to you here to 

21 reconsider.  So we think this could be just a waste of time 

22 for everybody involved, and we would hope that you could 

23 delay this further, and just want to thank you very much.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you very much.  

25 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Just want to make sure.  
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 1 Marsha Fernandez, you don't want to speak?  And Jay Feland 

 2 doesn't want to speak?  Don Hyde?  No.  And Santiago 

 3 Maestas, last speaker.  

 4 MR. MAESTAS:  Can we put that on?  Yeah.  Thank 

 5 you.  My name is Santiago Maestas.  I'm President of the 

 6 South Valley Regional Association of Acequias.  I'm a 

 7 Commissioner, the Pajarito Acequia and a mayordomo of the 

 8 Acequia de Don Gabino Andrade.  

 9 Water, of course, is my primary concern, water for our 

10 farms and our houses and our landscaping "hay" in the South 

11 Valley.  What makes the Valley green is water.  Without 

12 water, there's no life.  This article that I'd like to 

13 provide a copy to the Commission for I think states it very 

14 clearly.  No water, no problem.  Santolina is going ahead 

15 with its plans.  

16 Most recently, the last 30 days, there has been really 

17 no moisture, no more rain, no more snow, and the snowpack 

18 has started already to melt up in the mountains.  So we're 

19 not really out of this drought.  The El Nino phenomena is 

20 not going to happen every year.  So we continue to object to 

21 the Santolina plan and its threat to our community in the 

22 South Valley.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, Members of 

23 the Board.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  That's it.  

25 Staff, will you get that from him for the record?  
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 1 The applicant, closing comments.  No closing comments?  

 2   Staff.

 3 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I have no further 

 4 comments, but I stand for any questions.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any questions of Staff?  

 6 MS. KELLY:  I have one.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead, Commissioner.

 8 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman.  

 9 Catherine, I sort of feel like the timeline is pretty 

10 ambitious, too, and maybe that's because I haven't looked at 

11 it until now, but it's awfully complex for 4,000 acres of 

12 land.  Would you just comment on that as the pros and cons 

13 of adding some additional meetings.  I realize that you guys 

14 have looked at schedules and such, but to me, it strikes me 

15 as being condensed for such a large decision or 

16 recommendation to the County Commission.  I'd like to send 

17 whatever we send to the Bernalillo County Commission to be 

18 really well thought out and fleshed out here.

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Maybe I should answer that, 

20 because this is just a recommendation from the Staff, and I, 

21 as Chairman, my job is to set these meetings up.  You know, 

22 we're setting up into four meetings, and it's not going to 

23 end here.  It still has to go to the County Commission, and 

24 they'll probably have four or five.  I don't know.  Last 

25 time, how meetings did they have?  

TR-100
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 MS. VEREECKE:  Excuse me.  How many what?  

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  County Commission, how many 

 3 meetings did they have?  

 4 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I don't recall, but 

 5 there were probably like five, maybe.  

 6 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, Members of the 

 7 Commission.  I believe there were six meetings before BCC.

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Six meetings.  So there's going 

 9 to be a lot of meetings.  I mean, we can stretch this for -- 

10 last time we had almost a year, and we went -- you know, a 

11 lot of meetings were just talking about the same thing, and 

12 I think that -- and I know for you, Commissioner, that just 

13 came on, it's probably a little harder, because you didn't 

14 -- you know, you didn't go through Level A, but you know, 

15 we're setting these meetings up besides our regular 

16 meetings, too, and so, you know, we have another meeting 

17 that goes on every month, and we're volunteers here, too.  I 

18 mean, we can't be doing this day in and day out per our 

19 meetings, but I think that what we're going through and 

20 we're seeing -- and we'll have -- we'll have them as long as 

21 we want to, the meeting, when we're up here, but I don't 

22 think that prolonging it for a lot more meetings is going to 

23 -- is going to change anything as long as we get all the 

24 information that we need to make, you know, a decision on 

25 this thing.
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 1 MS. KELLY:  Can I ask you if during the regular 

 2 meetings that we'll have, between the scheduled meetings, we 

 3 would be able to get any updates from Staff as to how 

 4 various aspects are coming along such as --

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  One thing I do as Chairman 

 6 is that we have a schedule of meetings, but I don't limit 

 7 any of the Commissioners of asking any questions.  Okay.  So 

 8 I think the Commissioners -- as Commissioners, you need to 

 9 know that you have the right, as far as I'm concerned, and 

10 I'll recognize you for anything that you want to ask, 

11 because we want everybody to ask, the Commission here.  

12 Now, the meetings, we have to schedule them, because 

13 last time, we had sometimes over a hundred people here for 

14 the meetings.  So, you know, we have to have a time.  We'll 

15 never finish our meetings, but as far as the Commissioner 

16 goes and you approve -- you request something, that is open 

17 to every Commissioner here.  I think every Commissioner 

18 should, when we make our final decision, that we're happy 

19 with the decision that we're making for for or against it.  

20 It doesn't matter.  So, yes, you will be able to ask 

21 anything you want to.  

22 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioner Kelly, 

23 just a couple of thoughts on that question.  If we're going 

24 to have a discussion about Santolina in our regular CPC 

25 meetings outside of the scheduled Santolina meetings, we 
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 1 will want to notice those if they're -- for the updates, 

 2 just so all the parties will have notice we're discussing it 

 3 at the meeting.  

 4 But on that same point, Commissioner Kelly, you're 

 5 perfectly free to talk to Staff at any time if you have 

 6 questions and you want an update that way, but if we're 

 7 going to talk about it here, we do need to notice it.  

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No.  We won't be talking in our 

 9 regular hearings.  I mean, we have four hearings that are 

10 scheduled.  They're detailed.  Now, if you want to put more 

11 detail into it, you can get with Staff as a Commissioner, 

12 and -- you know, and then we can talk about it, and we can 

13 put them in there, but as a Commissioner, you can ask 

14 anything you want to from this podium.  Okay.  Thank you.

15 Any other questions?  Okay.  So the next meeting for 

16 Santolina is going to be in April the 27th, 9:00 o'clock, in 

17 this meeting room right here, so -- and we have the topics 

18 that we're going to be discussing at that meeting.  We're 

19 going to -- we're going to be talking about transportation 

20 at that meeting.  So anything else, Commissioners?  If not, 

21 we're -- could I have a motion to adjourn?  

22 MS. SERNA:  So moved.

23 MR. MALRY:  So moved.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  We're adjourned. 

25 (Note:  Hearing adjourned at 11:53 a.m.) 
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 1 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  In the matter of CSU2016-0030, 

 2 I move to approve subject to the eight finding and six 

 3 conditions submitted by Staff.

 4 MS. SERNA:  Second, Mr. Chairman.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Been moved and second.  Any 

 6 discussion?  All those in favor signify by saying aye.

 7 COMMISSION:  Aye.

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Opposed?  Motion carries.  We're 

 9 going to take a five-minute break.  

10 (Note:  Deposition in recess at 10:26 a.m.  

11 and reconvened at 10:38 a.m.) 

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Staff, are we ready?  

13 MS. VEREECKE:  Just about.  

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Before we get started, we 

15 have some time -- time things here that I'm going to bring 

16 up.  So the Staff, and all the audience knows.  They have 

17 case update, five minutes.  Staff, outstanding issues, ten 

18 minutes.  Agents, it's going to be 15 minutes, and I then 

19 allocated 30 minutes to the public.  So public will have two 

20 minutes each to make their presentations.  I don't know.  How 

21 many people do we have up here?  Do we have the list?  Is 

22 that -- is that it right there?  Okay.  And then we have ten 

23 minutes for closing comments by the applicant and the Staff.  

24 So, Staff, get it started.

25 MS. VEREECKE:  Okay.  Good morning, Mr. Chair and 
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 1 Members of the Commission.  My name is Catherine VerEecke, 

 2 and I'm with County Planning, and this is SPR2016-0001, and 

 3 this is a request for approval of a planned communities Level 

 4 B Master Plan within the Santolina Master Plan area.

 5 As you know, this -- this request, as we just said, has 

 6 -- has been around for a while.  So this is for a Level B 

 7 Master Plan.  The plan includes more specific details for 

 8 land use, zoning, transportation, environment, and open space 

 9 and government and public service.  The plan was first 

10 submitted in January.  The Level A Plan was approved last 

11 year for the entire property.  So this particular plan, as 

12 you can see shown here on this map, covers more specific 

13 area.  

14 There have been four special hearings, which gave 

15 details on specific areas, specific topics within the plan 

16 related to the planned communities criteria, and at each 

17 point, Staff and agencies provided comments that have been 

18 included in the Staff Report.

19 Most recently comments were also compiled into a matrix 

20 that documented how the comments were being addressed.  At 

21 the time of the hearing in July, there were outstanding 

22 comments from Staff and agencies, zoning, transportation, 

23 drainage, parks and recreation, NMDOT, APS, MRCOG, the 

24 Utility Authority, and then also Planning.

25 So the issues related to such areas as zoning and design 
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 1 standards, water availability, funding of infrastructure and 

 2 facilities, phasing, language related to the transportation 

 3 system, the Region's long-range transportation plan and also 

 4 the plan for and funding of schools through APS.  Based on 

 5 these issues and quite a few comments not having been 

 6 addressed at the time, the CPC continued the case to this 

 7 hearing with work on the issues to continue.  

 8 So during that time -- or from that time, work has 

 9 continued.  On September 30, a revised plan was submitted.  

10 The changes are summarized in the Staff Report.  In 

11 particular there were major changes to the zoning chapter and 

12 the approval process chapter.  Changes included the addition 

13 of specific language that had been agreed upon with Staff for 

14 zoning and design, language for parks and open space, and 

15 also a sequencing plan for how the development will take 

16 place over time and spatially.  So this is the sequencing 

17 plan.  Language regarding the class II archeological study 

18 were also added.  

19 The matrix dated 9-30 that was submitted the same time 

20 as the revised plan indicated that there was progress made 

21 but that there was still comments that needed to be addressed 

22 and comments in various stages of resolution.  So from that 

23 time, which would have been like two weeks ago, I estimated 

24 that about 60 percent of the comments had been resolved.  

25 Based on the revised plan that was submitted, additional 
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 1 comments came in from Staff, but these continued to show that 

 2 progress was being made but that there were some issues.  On 

 3 October 20th, which is after the official submittal deadline, 

 4 we did get some additional documents submitted.  There was a 

 5 -- a document which just included the revisions to the plan, 

 6 so this is like a 60-page document with green line of where 

 7 additional language had been added based on discussions with 

 8 Staff.  Also, at that time, a revised matrix was submitted.  

 9 So this was dated, again, October 20th.  So we did add these 

10 to the -- to the Staff Report packet that was uploaded last 

11 week.

12 So by the bit time that these documents were submitted, 

13 there were outstanding comments from APS, the Utility 

14 Authority, Public Works.  Planning also had some comments, so 

15 -- but there was general progress being made again.  Language 

16 for conditions of approval were also starting to come in from 

17 the different departments.  So the review indicated that a 

18 majority of the comments had been addressed by a couple of 

19 weeks ago.  So -- so that's kind of where we were as of the 

20 last few days where many departments had indicated that their 

21 comments had been addressed.  This was Public Works, 

22 transportation, drainage.  Zoning indicated that their 

23 comments had all been -- for the most part had been 

24 addressed.  

25 However, as of a few days ago, outstanding issues 
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 1 including unmet Level A conditions, unmet Level B planned 

 2 community criteria and unaddressed -- a few unaddressed 

 3 comments from Staff were noted.  These are related to the 

 4 platting of the subject property, water and sewer 

 5 availability and associated water and utility plans and also 

 6 an agreement over the plan for schools with APS.

 7 In addition, there were several comments that Staff had 

 8 requested to be implemented in the document.  Some language 

 9 that we found was not acceptable that still remained in the 

10 plan.  We still have some questions related to the language 

11 for the archeological study, and the name of the plan, which 

12 still hasn't been clarified.

13 So although significant progress has been made with the 

14 requested revisions to the Santolina plan, there are still 

15 some issues with the plan related to conditions of approval, 

16 unmet comments, a few planned communities criteria that at 

17 least as of yesterday had not been met and where the changes 

18 that are included in this -- in this document haven't been 

19 incorporated into the main document.  So the feeling is that 

20 there's still some cleanup to be done.  

21 So Staff has recommended continuance of this request but 

22 has also drafted findings and conditions that were just put 

23 together and forwarded out yesterday, which show that there 

24 are still --

25 (Note:  Meeting interrupted by Spectators.)
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Enrico -- Rico, call security.  I 

 2 don't have a problem with public opinion.  I do have a 

 3 problem when they come and interrupt our meeting, and we have 

 4 a procedure here.  If you want to speak, you sign up, and 

 5 when the time for people to come up and speak, that's when 

 6 the time is, but I don't know what kind of game you're 

 7 playing or what you're doing, but it's not acceptable here.  

 8 SPECTATOR:  Mr. Speaker, the signup sheet was 

 9 pulled sometime ago, so I was a little late.

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No, it's not pulled.  The signup  

11 sheet is right up here.  If you want to sign up, we have a 

12 sheet right here.  

13 SPECTATOR:  So may I ask for some clarification?  

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Sure.  

15 MS. SUAREZ:  That's page 2 of the original signup 

16 sheet.  So that's another additional sheet.  

17 SPECTATOR:  Okay, but I have a quick -- like, I'm 

18 not sure which column.  

19 MS. SUAREZ:  If you're in favor of the request -- 

20 SPECTATOR:  Is the request for a continuance?  But 

21 what the request?  

22 MS. SUAREZ:  For Santolina.  

23 SPECTATOR:  Right, but what is the request?  Is the 

24 request to continue it?  

25 MS. SUAREZ:  I don't know that.
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 1 SPECTATOR:  Then how can you know if you're in 

 2 favor of or opposed to --

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No, ma'am.  Would you please sit 

 4 down.  I mean, we're over here trying to have a meeting.

 5 SPECTATOR:  Yes, I'm trying -- 

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You know, and you're asking a 

 7 question that we don't know, because we're going to hear the 

 8 case, and then this Commission decides what they want to do.

 9 SPECTATOR:  But we're asking to be -- sign up to 

10 speak in favor --

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  To speak in favor or against it or 

12 for it.  

13 SPECTATOR:  But we don't what the request is.

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  The request is -- we're hearing -- 

15 SPECTATOR:  The request is approval.  Thank you for 

16 answering that question.

17 MS. VEREECKE:  But it's just like any case.  

18 SPECTATOR:  Any you zombies want to sign?  

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  You three guys, can you 

20 stand up?  Are you through with your protest?  

21 SPECTATOR:  Yes.  

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Well, if you sit back 

23 there, I'll go ahead and allow you for you to sit down and 

24 participate in this meeting.  I'd appreciate it if you don't 

25 interrupt our meeting anymore.  
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 1 MS. VEREECKE:  Okay.  Mr. Chair, so I'll continue 

 2 with my presentation.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yeah, go ahead.

 4 MS. VEREECKE:  I was almost done.  Just saying that 

 5 Staff has recommended continuance of the request for the 

 6 outstanding items to be addressed and finalized.  However, 

 7 Staff has drafted findings and conditions that were 

 8 circulated yesterday that were drafted by various Staff, 

 9 which show, on the one hand, the possibility that this 

10 request might be recommended for approval today, that it is 

11 possible.  It shows that many items have been worked out, but 

12 it also shows that there are still a few gaps in areas that 

13 should be worked out.  There are ongoing discussions, 

14 particularly I understand discussions with the Utility 

15 Authority.  APS still has some concerns.  

16 So the recommendation is continuance, but then it will 

17 be up to the Commission to decide how to proceed.  Staff is 

18 requesting Staff with outstanding issues to get up and speak.  

19 Like I said, many issues have been resolved, so there's not a 

20 need to get up and discuss those.  So let's just focus on the 

21 ones that are outstanding and see where everybody is with 

22 everything.  So with that, Mr. Chair, I stand for questions.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any questions of Staff?  

24 Commissioner Kelly.

25 MS. KELLY:  Catherine, the draft findings and 
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 1 conditions were distributed to us yesterday at about 4:00 

 2 p.m.  I was able to skim them.  Has the public received 

 3 notice of those?  

 4 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Kelly, they 

 5 have not been posted publicly.  I did forward a copy to Rod 

 6 Mahoney at the South Valley Coalition.  That was the extent 

 7 of the communication with the public.

 8 MS. KELLY:  So in my opinion, it's just really not 

 9 appropriate to consider acting on those findings and 

10 conditions without having the public at least had a chance to 

11 review them.  They're six pages.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions, 

13 Commissioners.  

14 MS. HERTEL:  In your additional Staff comments, 

15 there is something that concerned me that says, "It appears 

16 from discussions with Staff that recent comments as an 

17 example from Public Works were not properly incorporated into 

18 the matrix dated 10/20 in the language that's provided by 

19 Staff," and was apparently changed by the agent or somehow 

20 didn't show up properly, and that some of the comments listed 

21 as "pending" were then changed to "completed."   Has that 

22 been addressed and revolved since then, or is that kind of 

23 still hanging out there?  

24 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Hertel, I 

25 believe that there were efforts made to correct that.
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 1 MS. NELSON:  What does that mean?  

 2 MS. HERTEL:  So do you think it's corrected or 

 3 should Public Works address that, because they were the 

 4 example here?  

 5 MS. TANNER:  Good morning.  I'm Christie Tanner 

 6 with Public Works.  I wanted to state that all of the 

 7 conditions and all of the -- let me see.  The matrix was 

 8 created based on comments that all agencies put into Accela.  

 9 At this time, in Public Works, all comments have been 

10 addressed except for one transportation, and that's been a 

11 condition.  It's not -- it's in your list of findings and 

12 conditions.  And then the rest of them are pending based on 

13 Natural Resource Services, and that's just based on the water 

14 development plan.  Hopefully after hearing what Dan has to 

15 say, we can try to move forward on that depending on -- 

16 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  So things that are listed that 

17 you believe are pending are indeed listed as pending in that 

18 matrix document?  

19 MS. TANNER:  Correct.  It's basically all of 

20 Natural Resources.  All the drainage has been addressed.  All 

21 of transportation except for one item, and that's going to be 

22 conditioned, and then the rest of the pending are only for -- 

23 based on that Development Agreement.  That's all.

24 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  And that's fine.  I'm just 

25 really trying to confirm that we can rely on the matrix for 
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 1 accurate information.  Okay.  That was kind of where I was 

 2 going with that.  Thank you.

 3 And then, Catherine, I have another question for you, 

 4 please.  So on a previous review, you thought about 60 

 5 percent of the comments in the matrix had been addressed, and 

 6 now, I think, we're up to, like, 85 percent?  About 85 

 7 percent of the comments are addressed appropriately; is that 

 8 a correct percentage?  

 9 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Hertel, 

10 that's approximately what I calculated as of about a week 

11 ago, and the remainder was either items that were pending.  

12 Like Christie said, a number of them were from Natural 

13 Resources, and then there were also items that needed to be 

14 forwarded as conditions of approval that were just things 

15 that, for instance, related to the Level B Development 

16 Agreement, that that would serve as the mechanism for 

17 addressing those -- those concerns, but yes, that's correct.

18 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  So ballpark is about 15 percent 

19 of the comments that are addressed that are still open in the 

20 matrix or they turned up in the conditions of approval?  Is 

21 that -- I just want to make sure.

22 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Hertel, 

23 that's correct.

24 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Thank you.

25 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So, Catherine, a lot of these 
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 1 conditions that Staff has -- wants answered, have they -- 

 2 have they answered to them and maybe they're not to your -- 

 3 you know, Staff's satisfaction or what are we talking about 

 4 here?  

 5 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, the -- 

 6 and, again, we're jumping to what's in the findings and 

 7 conditions, but a number of the conditions were related to 

 8 clean up of language in the plan that would need -- that 

 9 could take place if the CPC decides to recommend approval 

10 today and then when the County Commission hears the request.  

11 So many of them are related to things that -- that should be 

12 done between now and the time the BCC hears this.  So there 

13 were a limited number of conditions that would be ongoing -- 

14 going beyond the approval and adoption of the plan, like, 

15 what Christie said related to the transportation plan, that 

16 more information is needed or the Development Agreement, but 

17 a majority of the information in the draft of the conditions 

18 relates to clean up of the plan before the County Commission 

19 sees it.  

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  And what I'm trying to get 

21 at let's say the applicant says I've -- you know as far as 

22 I'm concerned, I, you know, I put in what I'm going to put 

23 in.  Where do we take it from there?  I mean, at some point, 

24 Staff is going to have to recommend approval or disapproval 

25 or if there's some things that nobody -- for instance, Water 
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 1 Authority, they don't want to send anything.  So where are we 

 2 at with that, you know?  I mean --

 3 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, there are 

 4 also findings and conditions in what was drafted that address 

 5 the status of the discussions about water availability at 

 6 least as of yesterday, but my understanding is there -- there 

 7 have been additional discussions that Staff is going to tell 

 8 you about now.  So maybe we can proceed with this and see 

 9 where everything goes, and then after the discussion, if you 

10 you're interested in going over the findings and conditions 

11 in greater detail, then we can -- we can work through those 

12 with you, too.

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  I'm just saying that if an 

14 applicant comes and says, "This is my packet.  This is all 

15 I'm going to submit.  I want it voted up or down," what do we 

16 do then?  

17 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, then we can decide if it 

18 meets the requirements or if it doesn't, but that's what 

19 we've been working towards over the last six -- nine months 

20 on this case is that there was an initial submittal, and 

21 there have been a series of submittals and discussions with 

22 Staff and agencies to try to get it to the point that the 

23 plan document and the technical appendices are acceptable to 

24 both the applicant and to Staff and that there would be a 

25 minimum of conditions of approval that would need to be met 
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 1 after, assuming that the plan is approved.  So that's --

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So there's a checklist that you 

 3 give an applicant, and he has to meet those conditions in 

 4 order for it to be approved; is that --

 5 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, yes, and this request has 

 6 been following the Level B planned communities criteria, 

 7 which has really helped to structure this request and has set 

 8 some requirements that need to be addressed, so that that -- 

 9 that has been the guiding document and criteria for this 

10 request.  

11 And then in addition to that, Staff has also worked with 

12 the applicant and the agent related to their particular 

13 technical standards, like street standards and drainage 

14 standards, conservation standards, zoning in relation to the 

15 County Zoning Ordinance.  So those also have informed the 

16 submittal and then the revisions that have been made to this.  

17 So we --

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  One of the biggest issues that we 

19 had is, of course, water, you know, and we haven't been able 

20 to get the Water Authority to move either way.  I mean --

21 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, the Water Authority is 

22 here today, and my understanding --

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yeah, but I'm not -- 

24 MS. VEREECKE:  -- is that there have been 

25 discussions.  
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Let me finish my question.  Okay.  

 2 That we've had that.  We have a condition from the County 

 3 Commission that says that in order for it to be approved, the 

 4 Level B, that there has to be a Development Agreement or an 

 5 agreement between the applicant and the Water Authority, and 

 6 that hasn't happened, and it really puts us in a position 

 7 where they put a condition with no guidelines to it.  

 8 Agreement to what?  I mean, we don't even know that, what 

 9 kind of agreement with this.  The other thing is that this 

10 Commission doesn't approve or disapprove a plan.  We just 

11 recommend to the County Commission as to what needs to -- you 

12 know, to look at.  

13 And we've been going through this.  It's going to be a 

14 year already, and I know these plans are -- take a long time, 

15 but -- and I'm just trying to get to what Staff wants -- 

16 wants it.  Have they met all the check marks that we -- we 

17 need for them to meet, or do we want added things, or do we 

18 have some other departments?  Because this is like a -- it's 

19 a moving target everytime -- I don't know how many meetings 

20 we've had, and you know, at some point, I'd like to get to a 

21 decision where we send it up to the County Commission so that 

22 they can work it out, because most of those agreements we 

23 can't -- we can't -- we can't agree to anything, because 

24 we're just a recommending Commission.  So --

25 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I believe that Public 
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 1 Works would like to respond to your question.  So unless you 

 2 have something more specifically for me, it may be 

 3 appropriate to have Staff let you know what they've been 

 4 working on.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Because I sent a letter to the 

 6 Water Authority.  Did they ever respond?  

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  MR. chair, they're here today, so -- 

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No.  I'm talking about the letter 

 9 that I sent.  Did they ever respond to that letter?  

10 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I'm not aware that we 

11 received any letter.  

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  We never have.  

13 MS. VEREECKE:  But, again, the -- I think you 

14 requested in your letter that representatives from the 

15 Utility Authority be here, so they are here today.

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

17 MS. VEREECKE:  And there have been discussions 

18 taking place.  So our Staff is all ready to let you know what 

19 they've been discussing and where they are with everything.

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

21 MS. VEREECKE:  All right.  Thank you.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Just a minute.  Hold on.  

23 Commissioner.  

24 MS. HERTEL:  I have kind of a general question for 

25 her.  
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 1 Catherine, I have a general question, and that is 

 2 someplace in the information that we were provided it said 

 3 that there was a question about whether if there's conflict 

 4 between Level A language and Level B language, then what 

 5 prevails.  And later on, I believe I saw someplace that Level 

 6 A prevails.  Is that what the legal opinion is on that?  

 7 Sorry, Mike.  I know you're -- 

 8 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioner Hertel, 

 9 I just heard the last part about the legal opinion.  I was 

10 worried about the sound.

11 MS. HERTEL:  Right.  I should have started with 

12 that.  If there's a conflict between language of Level A and 

13 Level B, which prevails?  

14 MR. GARCIA:  Well, the -- if you're -- if you're -- 

15 do you have a specific example in mind?  

16 MS. HERTEL:  It was -- I think it was in parks and 

17 open space.  I'm not 100 percent sure.  I think that's where 

18 I read it first.

19 MR. GARCIA:  It's hard to answer the question in a 

20 vacuum, but I think the -- probably the shortest answer, at 

21 least a precise answer is going to be that the Level A 

22 criteria, we cannot override here, because the BCC approved 

23 that.  That said, I think it's possible that there should be 

24 a way to reconcile anything that appears to be a conflict 

25 between Level B and Level A, and at least -- at the very 
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 1 least we should try to do that.

 2 MS. VEREECKE:  She's saying that Level A should 

 3 prevail.

 4 MR. GARCIA:  With the Development Agreement?  

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  I think that we can't change it 

 6 here, but I think the County Commission can.  

 7 MR. GARCIA:  Right.  

 8 MS. HERTEL:  Right.  It's just in the language 

 9 proposed by the developer, and he's proposing something 

10 that's in conflict with Level A.  Yeah, I'm not suggesting 

11 that we're going to change anything from Level A, no.  

12 MR. GARCIA:  So, Chairman Chavez, Commissioner 

13 Hertel, I'm not sure if I answered all of your questions, but 

14 I think until the BCC changes something at Level B or Level 

15 A, the Level A will control.

16 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Level A regardless of what is 

17 -- I mean, typically what is more stringent or things like 

18 that, but Level A is what we're going to refer to?  

19 MR. GARCIA:  For the -- for the time being, yes.

20 MS. HERTEL:  All right.  Fine.  

21 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chair.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Hold on.  

23 Go ahead, Commissioner.  Do you have a question of 

24 somebody or --

25 MS. HERTEL:  I did find a specific example in 
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 1 the --

 2 MS. KELLY:  Well, I wasn't going to bring this up 

 3 right now, but since we're talking about it.  I think the 

 4 language that you're referencing is in Section I, the very 

 5 last paragraph of 1.1, where it says, "Nothing in this Level 

 6 B plan shall be construed to increase any limitation on 

 7 development established by the Level A plan," and I was going 

 8 to suggest as an alternative language that instead the plan 

 9 say that the Level B approval has to match the requirements 

10 for a Level B submittal, which includes quite a long list and 

11 includes more detail for funding and provision of 

12 infrastructure payments, phasing.  So it's more detailed.  

13 It's not -- it shouldn't be construed as being in conflict, 

14 but I don't -- I would hate to see a situation where the 

15 developer says, "Oh, well, that detail wasn't required at 

16 Level A," so now it is in conflict.

17 MS. HERTEL:  No, I understand what you're saying.

18 MS. KELLY:  So I think it ought to just reflect the 

19 criteria that's required for the Level B submittal.  That's 

20 what the language should be instead of, "Is there a 

21 conflict."

22 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Well, this is -- this is what I 

23 was referring to in the example:  It says, "Parks and Open 

24 Space and Planning have expressed concerns about the language 

25 level -- about the language Level A plan prevailing over the 
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 1 Level B plan when there's a conflict between the requirements 

 2 in the two," and it's referencing page 18 of the September 

 3 30th draft, and that's -- that's where my question 

 4 originates.  

 5 MR. GARCIA:  Okay.  Chairman Chavez, Members of the 

 6 Commission, I think that what Commissioner Kelly said was 

 7 very accurate in terms of how you should construe it.  First 

 8 of all, the language of -- even of Level B that I believe 

 9 Commissioner Kelly read, that I have here on the overhead, 

10 basically states that Level A will control, but more to the 

11 point, just because something is any different or more 

12 specific doesn't necessarily entail a conflict, and if 

13 there's not a conflict, the more specific will generally 

14 control, will usually control but supposing that there's not 

15 a conflict.

16 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Fine.  Thank you.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Water department?  Public 

18 Works.

19 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioners,  

20 thanks for the opportunity today.  It's been an very 

21 interesting week.  So what I like to do is there is 

22 basically, I think, three, maybe four areas of discussion we 

23 need to go through to help understand where we're at with the 

24 Water Utility Authority, the situation that the applicant may 

25 be in with regard to the Development Agreement, and hopefully 
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 1 we have a way forward if that is the direction that this 

 2 Commission would choose to go.

 3 The first thing I'd like to do is in the findings and 

 4 conditions that were handed out to you earlier, no. 18, those 

 5 are the ones that Catherine provided.  It basically is a 

 6 statement of fact of where we're at with the Water Utility 

 7 and the applicant, and I do want to point out first off with 

 8 regard to the conditions that we had which were 8, 9, 10, and 

 9 11, they were conditioned and stylized as required prior to 

10 approval of the Level B, and as the applicant has pointed out 

11 to me in several discussions, the locus or the point of that 

12 approval wasn't spelled out or specified, and further, if we 

13 look at the ordinances for the formation of the CPC, my 

14 understanding is that the duties of the CPC are to recommend 

15 and to study, and it does not specifically say approve; 

16 whereas, the duties of the Commission do hinge and are 

17 focused on approval.

18 So I think there is a certain legitimacy to the 

19 applicant's request that we figure out a way through, and let 

20 the BCC make that determination about the Development 

21 Agreement.

22 That said, what I will say is the condition no. 8, which 

23 is the Development Agreement and condition no. 11, which is 

24 resolution of issues between the applicant and the ABCWUA, 

25 those have not yet been satisfied.  I think conditions no.   
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 1 9 and 10 have been completed or substantially enough complete 

 2 that I am comfortable moving forward with those.  So the 

 3 following discussion we're going to have is basically focused 

 4 on conditions no. 8 and no. 11, and to put it in a quick 

 5 summary, I think the applicant's in a little bit of a bind 

 6 not necessarily of their own making, and the problem is we 

 7 have -- we do have two different governmental entities that 

 8 have an overlapping responsibility.  The County obviously is 

 9 to make land-use decisions.  That does entail considering 

10 water use.  How do we interface with utilities, that sort of 

11 thing.  The Water Utility has its own process as well, and 

12 unfortunately with regard to Development Agreement, water 

13 availability statements, those two processes are not playing 

14 well together.  And that's what the discussions this last 

15 week have been about with the Water Utility Authority.

16 So with that said, I believe Christie just handed out a 

17 three-page document to you real quick that I'd like to kind 

18 of take you through.  Originally we had written the first 

19 page as findings, but after discussions with Mike this 

20 morning, when we get to talking about findings, we'll 

21 condense those down, but I think for purposes of this 

22 discussion it may be helpful to you.  

23 The first thing I wanted to point out is that when the 

24 planned communities criterias were adopted by the County 

25 Commission back in 2012, they specifically called out the 
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 1 formation of the Water Utility as being something that would 

 2 have to be recognized, and we're at the point where we need 

 3 to recognize that these processes don't kind of play well 

 4 together.  And the Level A planned criteria -- or planned 

 5 communities criteria specifically calls out to provide 

 6 documentation for physical and legal availability of water, 

 7 and we have satisfied that based upon Mr. Sanchez's letters 

 8 saying that they had the capacity, but there were certain 

 9 legal and contractual elements that the applicant was going 

10 to have to go through, and that was sufficient for us to get 

11 through Level A, and I will stand by that decision.  

12 Where we're at right now is there's also a Level B 

13 requirement to provide a water availability statement and a 

14 facilities plan that addresses water and wastewater phasing, 

15 and where we get into conflict is that the Water Utility has 

16 certain policies of what has to be in place before they can 

17 issue those sort of statements, and the Development Agreement 

18 would be on those same -- same criteria.  

19 So the second finding, which I use that term loosely 

20 here, basically talks about what those Water Utility policies 

21 are, and we met with Mr. Stomp on Monday to go through these, 

22 and this is just a very quick summary, but specifically it 

23 states that, "For extensions of service outside of the 

24 existing service area, a Development Agreement shall be 

25 required of all expansion," which is where condition 8 
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 1 originated from.  But the Utility has also established in 

 2 Policy 20 with regard to service consistency with approved 

 3 land-use plans that the size, scale of the utilities have to 

 4 be consistent with an adopted land-use plan, and that's where 

 5 we're getting hung up between the two processes.  From 

 6 discussions with the Utility, they're -- the situation that 

 7 they're placed in right now is at a minimum, they need the 

 8 level detail consistent with the Legal B planning effort for 

 9 them to be able to start and engage in a full technical 

10 review, which would eventually lead to a water availability 

11 statement and for a Development Agreement.

12 So if the County Planning Commission were to recommend 

13 an approval conditioned as you deem warranted, this would at 

14 least allow the Water Utility to start but not complete those 

15 negotiations, reviews, and studies, but then, again, for the 

16 Utility, for them to actually take  a Development Agreement 

17 and get approval from their board, they have to have BCC 

18 approval of the Level B Master Plan.  Otherwise, Mr. Stomp 

19 and his Staff will be going before their board, and they're 

20 going to ask the same question in reverse.  So, again, even 

21 if we had made significant progress, even if we continue 

22 without a recommendation for approval, the Utility can't 

23 engage in the studies they need to engage in, and without 

24 some sort of land-use approval from the BCC, the Utility 

25 can't take the draft agreement back before their board to get 

TR- 83
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 it approved.  That puts the applicant in a bind.  Doesn't 

 2 mean that they can't be working on it, but they're not going 

 3 to be able to get a fully executed Development Agreement 

 4 until the BCC has taken some sort of approval action.

 5 And so what that results in -- and I'll just read this 

 6 specifically into the record, it says, "The timing" -- and 

 7 which would be one of the findings that we might be 

 8 discussing later, "The timing of the PCC Level B requirement 

 9 for water availability statement and an ABCWUA accepted 

10 infrastructure phasing plan is incongruent with the timing 

11 required to comply with ABCWUA policies and need for level of 

12 detail.  An adjustment to the timing/process for meeting the 

13 PCC requirements is needed to facilitate the concurrent 

14 County ABCWUA process for this application."

15 And then the fourth  finding basically just kind of 

16 reiterates where we're at -- reiterates where we are at, and 

17 that is that we have the Level A criteria satisfied, but 

18 Level B, realistically, we can't move forward without coming 

19 up with some sort of concurrent process.  

20 So that said, we've spent the -- I've spent the last 

21 couple of days with help from Christie and from the Deputy 

22 County Manager looking at a series of steps that we could use 

23 to move forward, which are presented on the second and third 

24 page that you have in front of you.  We can go through those 

25 individually if you'd like.  It is rather lengthy, or we 
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 1 could just submit them into the record, whatever Mr. Garcia 

 2 would prefer to do.  

 3 Basically, what it calls out for is that in the future, 

 4 what we would need in a good world is some sort of capacity 

 5 letter to meet the Level A requirement similar to what 

 6 Mr. Sanchez previously provided.  We have that for this 

 7 particular case.

 8 The second step in the process as appropriate would be a 

 9 CPC recommendation to the BCC for approval, which would then 

10 free the Water Utility to go ahead and start their processes.  

11 The third step would be kind of an interim period wherein the 

12 Utility and the applicant were able to sit down and come up 

13 with a draft agreement, a preliminary draft.  That 

14 documentation would then be presented back to Bernalillo 

15 County Staff as part of a packet, then, that would, as a 

16 whole, be moved up to the BCC for decision, and the basis of 

17 that is we haven't gotten to a Level B approval yet.  We do 

18 have a draft agreement, which is a reasonable request to see 

19 what the utility is going to be requiring to make sure that 

20 everything is consistent, and then that's put before the BCC, 

21 which is the Board that does do approvals and land-use 

22 approvals.  Presuming that does go forward, then the Utility 

23 could go back to their board, make any other little 

24 adjustments that might be need based on BCC conditions or 

25 recommendations, go back before the Utility Board and then 
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 1 actually then fully execute a document, and then it would 

 2 have to return back to the BCC for approve -- a final 

 3 approval and consideration of the County's Development 

 4 Agreement.  So that's kind of the five step process.  

 5 The initial BCC approval, you know, in my mind would be 

 6 limited to a land-use and zoning approval, so that the 

 7 Utility has an approved land-use plan in which they can go 

 8 back before their board.  So that's kind of it in a summary.  

 9 We can talk about findings and conditions now.  I think it 

10 might be more beneficial to wait depending on the action of 

11 the Board and discuss how we can distill those down into 

12 appropriate finding and conditions.  With that, I'd stand for 

13 any questions.

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  So what -- I'm trying to 

15 understand this, because it's been since we began -- 

16 MR. McGREGOR:  It's a confusing process.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- a confusing process is this 

18 water thing, issue, and it's been kind of complicated, 

19 because you know, the Water Board is a different board.  I 

20 mean --

21 MR. McGREGOR:  It is.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- we can't tell them what to do.  

23 Just like the County Commission can't tell them what to do, 

24 but this condition that the planning -- the County Commission 

25 put on Level A -- and it says that there shall be an 
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 1 agreement before it's approved, the only thing that can be 

 2 approve it is the County Commission, and what I'm saying is 

 3 that we can argue here until we turn blue.  We're not -- this 

 4 is not -- and I don't know the intent of that condition or 

 5 how it was written or what, but what I'd like to know is that 

 6 what do we do here?  You know, we've engaged the Water Board 

 7 to try to give us answers to this thing, and like you said, 

 8 you explained that it's more complicated than, you know, 

 9 we're dealing with here, but it's -- 

10 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioners, and 

11 I do appreciate the quandary.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And what complicates it more is 

13 that the County Commission is the Water Authority, you know, 

14 so -- 

15 MR. McGREGOR:  Right.

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- that complicates for me is why 

17 can't we get an answer, you know.  

18 MR. McGREGOR:  And I will let Mr. Stomp address in 

19 details.  I think the short answer to the question is the 

20 Utility, with the policies they operate under, can't move 

21 forward without some sort of approved land-use plan.  They 

22 can't enter into development agreements without that.  So we 

23 have two competing processes that just don't mesh.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Well, one other process -- one 

25 other thing is that on the Water Authority agreement with the 
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 1 County, because the County created them and gave them 

 2 authority to become a Water Board, there is a section there 

 3 where they say that they shall provide water to any County 

 4 resident, or I don't know the exact words it says.  What does 

 5 that mean?  I mean, it says that they have to supply water.

 6 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, again, I'll defer, 

 7 you know detailed discussion with that to Mr. Stomp.  That is 

 8 a general statement but then there are operating policies 

 9 about defining service areas, what to do if they're having to 

10 move into new service area, and those policies were 

11 established particularly for these sort of situations.  So I 

12 don't know that they are saying they won't provide.  I think 

13 quite the opposite.  

14 I think they're saying the applicant has certain 

15 requirements that they have to meet in order for the Utility 

16 to provide, and in terms of moving forward, I think the only 

17 thing that is available to us at this point, given condition 

18 8, is to allow or make a decision if -- again, if that's the 

19 appropriate decision to make sufficient for the Utility to 

20 engage in that process with the applicant.  

21 The best that we're going to be able to do at this point 

22 in time with the two processes is to have a draft agreement 

23 go forward with the BCC.  We're not going to be able to get 

24 the fully executed agreement.  Does that satisfy condition 8 

25 to the letter?  No, it doesn't but is the best we can do 
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 1 given the processes that we have.

 2 The other point that I would make out here is that it 

 3 was the BCC that imposed that condition.  The CPC and Staff, 

 4 we can make our best efforts to see those through, and at 

 5 some point we have to say we've done what we can do and hand 

 6 it up to the BCC to make the determination whether that was 

 7 sufficient, and then for the BCC to figure out how they're 

 8 going to deal with condition no. 8.  

 9 Again, the locus for the approval, I believe, truly does 

10 lie with the BCC, and I hate to say this, but it's probably a 

11 reasonable course of action, given the conflict, to hand it 

12 back up to the BCC as complete as we can make it.  

13 So what the basic proposal here is, is if the Commission 

14 today should decide to recommend an approval, that possibly 

15 one of the conditions in that approval is that it not -- the 

16 applicant not take it before the BCC until such time as a 

17 drafted agreement with the Utility is able to be presented.

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I think the condition is in 

19 Level A, and that's a condition that we cannot change.  

20 MR. McGREGOR:  That's my understanding.  

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And it says on the condition that 

22 they have to have approval -- you know, an approval from the 

23 people.  So my answer -- my question to the attorney, does 

24 that mean when they say -- and the condition -- can you read 

25 the condition to me that they have on --
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 1 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, I don't have it in 

 2 front of me.

 3 MR. McGREGOR:  I do, Mike.

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  He probably has it there, so --

 5 MR. McGREGOR:  And particularly we're talking here 

 6 about condition 8 from the Level A findings.  It says, "Prior 

 7 to approval of any Level B or Level C" -- let's see -- 

 8 "planning document, the applicant will provide a fully 

 9 executed Development Agreement with the ABCWUA.  The 

10 Development Agreement should be structured to ensure 

11 compliance with the ABCWUA's existing guidelines, policies, 

12 and ordinances and as may be amended from time to time.  The  

13 development agreement should at minimum address" -- and 

14 there's a list of things that we provided there.  I can read 

15 those if you would like.  "The Development Agreement should, 

16 at a minimum address those items," and again, it says, you 

17 know, those items, "And a phasing plan consistent with ABCWUA 

18 policies.  This condition shall in no way constrain the 

19 ABCWUA from imposing such requirements as it may deem 

20 necessary."   

21 And I think, for me, the key phrase here is, "Prior to 

22 any Level B or Level C approval," and the -- passing an 

23 application on up with a draft Development Agreement is, I 

24 think, an honest attempt, good-faith attempt to satisfy that 

25 condition, and from my perspective -- and, again, I'm playing 

TR- 90
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 legal here, and Mike has cautioned me about that -- I think 

 2 that is within the jurisdiction and decision of the CPC to 

 3 do, because it is not the CPC's duty as described in 

 4 ordinances to approve.  It is to recommend and study.  

 5 I think in good faith a condition requiring that draft 

 6 agreement would basically be the recommendation essentially 

 7 saying there is a draft agreement.  You know, we've studied 

 8 it.  Given that we have a draft agreement now or that the 

 9 applicant does, it's ready for your review.

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

11 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, I agree with what Dan 

12 McGregor just said, because the condition itself calls for 

13 the approval of the water Development Agreement.  The only 

14 people -- the only board that can actually grant the approval 

15 will be the Board of County Commissioners.  This -- this 

16 Commission can make a recommendation that's subject to their 

17 obtaining a water agreement that would then be approved.  So 

18 I think we can -- I think you can do that without doing any 

19 violence to the Level A condition 8.

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  What's that, Commissioner?  

21 MS. HERTEL:  I'm sorry.  Are you suggesting that 

22 step two of your written proposal here is saying that you 

23 would have a draft water agreement prior to CPC 

24 recommendation for approval?  

25 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioner 
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 1 Hertel, actually I believe what we would be saying is the 

 2 condition would come out of step 3.

 3 MS. HERTEL:  So after CPC recommendation?  

 4 MR. McGREGOR:  Correct.  Basically you would impose 

 5 that condition on the applicant that before they could go 

 6 before the BCC, there would have to be a draft agreement to 

 7 take with them.

 8 MS. HERTEL:  Oh, okay.  Thank you.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So one more time, that condition 

10 is already put into Level A.  We cannot change that 

11 condition, because it was approved by the County Commission.  

12 So that condition goes with -- whatever recommendation we 

13 make, they still -- that condition's still going to be on 

14 there for the Bernalillo County Commission to decide or have 

15 an agreement.

16 MR. GARCIA:  Chairman Chavez, if I understand your 

17 question correctly, I think that the answer is that we're 

18 sort of doing something in between.  We're creating something 

19 that's in between the requirement for a water Development 

20 Agreement, and we're sort of making a contingent, provisional  

21 approval, recommendation of approval subject to the applicant 

22 getting a water Development Agreement.  

23 That said, the condition or - yeah, sorry, condition 8 

24 of the Level A is not violated, because it's the BCC that 

25 will ultimately grant the approval.  By recommending approval 
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 1 subject to if the CPC decides to do that it's not -- it's not 

 2 overriding or violating condition 8 in Level A.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Now, an agreement between the 

 4 Water Board and the applicant that's going to be approved by 

 5 the County Commission, are those agreements complicated?  I 

 6 mean, there's been things that -- because see, we don't have 

 7 no direction as to what kind of agreement they wanted.

 8 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, I'm not sure I 

 9 quite understand.  Are you asking about the agreement between 

10 the Utility and the applicant or the County and the 

11 applicant?  

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  The agreement between the Utility 

13 and the applicant that the County Commission has to approve.  

14 MR. McGREGOR:  Okay.  The County Commission -- or, 

15 Chairman Chavez, the County Commission will not be approving 

16 that Development Agreement.  That agreement has to be 

17 approved and executed by the Water Utility Board.  They're -- 

18 we need to be somewhat constrained in that the Level A 

19 Development Agreement with the County specifically limits the 

20 County from engaging in the discussions between the applicant 

21 and the Utility.

22 Now, there obviously is some level of responsibility to 

23 make sure that the subdivision -- or the master plan has 

24 water provided.  There are certain interfaces with County, 

25 with funding, those sort of things.  So it's not a total 
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 1 hands off but in terms of the contractual agreement between 

 2 the Utility and the applicant, that's between the Utility and 

 3 the applicant, and that's the reason condition no. 11 from 

 4 the Level A is in place.  And then, again, as I say, in the 

 5 Level A Development Agreement with the County, basically it 

 6 kind of sets a fence to which we need to be respectful.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So it's not something that the 

 8 County Commission has to approve?  The agreement doesn't have 

 9 to -- it just has to be an agreement?  

10 MR. McGREGOR:  There has to be an agreement yes, 

11 sir.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

13 MR. McGREGOR:  And, again, for clarity, I think 

14 what can be taken forward in a reasonable amount of time 

15 would be a draft agreement so that the County Commission does 

16 understand what terms of being requested and has the 

17 opportunity to evaluate to make sure that that doesn't have 

18 some direct conflict with County policy.

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And that agreement can be done 

20 between when it leaves here and before it gets to the County 

21 Commission?  Is that what you're saying?  

22 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioners, yes, 

23 that's my understanding, and with respect, I think that may 

24 be the only path forward.  I've learned enough over the year 

25 to never say there's only one way, but after this last week 
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 1 and having wrestled with this in multiple ways, I think that 

 2 is the cleanest way to move forward that honors condition 8 

 3 and also honors the policies and duties of the Water Utility 

 4 as well as the County.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I agree that now at least 

 6 we're getting direction here as to what to do, but we've been 

 7 going through this for the whole year, no answers either way, 

 8 you know.  So I'm glad that you're clarifying some of these 

 9 things and that you're already -- I guess you met with the 

10 water department, I guess, in the last few days?  

11 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, myself, Christie 

12 Tanner, Roger Paul, Enrico, and John stomp and Chris Cadena 

13 with the Water Utility met on Monday, and I think Mr. Stomp 

14 and I recognize maybe a week or two before that that what we 

15 had here was a before that that what we had here was a 

16 process problem rather than, strictly speaking with the 

17 County, it wasn't a problem.  It was a colliding process.  

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  I agree.  

19 MR. McGREGOR:  And we have been maybe perhaps 

20 asking the wrong question in terms of how to get through this 

21 until we recognize that.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

23 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman, can I --

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.  

25 MS. KELLY:  -- ask a question or two?  
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  

 2 MS. KELLY:  So I wasn't involved in Level A 

 3 discussions, but it seems to me that there were parties, the 

 4 Water Utility sending a letter that provoked the approval of 

 5 Level A, and the applicant being very sophisticated and aware 

 6 of processes, that everybody went in with their eyes wide 

 7 open.  So I guess I'm feeling like your approach as outlined 

 8 in your steps is just kicking the can down the road; that 

 9 we're making a condition of a previous condition.  I think 

10 that's bad policy.  

11 But my question is this draft agreement, what I had 

12 understood from previous discussions was that that was a very 

13 complex issue, that there had to be a water and sewer master 

14 plan that looked at infrastructure, service, funding, 

15 maintenance, and that some of that was contingent on 

16 long-range planning considerations like alternative water 

17 supplies.  So if we're talking about a Development Agreement 

18 that's contingent on a water and sewer master plan, that 

19 could be a long time in coming, why would we be rushing this 

20 up to the County Commission without having some of that basic 

21 information?  

22 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioner Kelly, 

23 I appreciate your concerns, and I want to make it clear that, 

24 first off, the recommendation is entirely -- I'm not 

25 recommending approval, denial.  I'm just providing a 
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 1 potential path forward if that is the way you want to go.  

 2 The issue you raise is correct.  The applicant has 

 3 provided a facilities plan as part of the Level B whether 

 4 that plan is acceptable to the Water Utility Authority at 

 5 this point, we don't have an opinion.  That is why the Water 

 6 Utility Authority needs the time to sit down and work with 

 7 the applicant to address those very concerns.  I don't know 

 8 that recommending an approval is rushing particularly if you 

 9 condition it by saying that they have to have a draft 

10 agreement in place.  Could they do that in a month?  Maybe.  

11 Could it take another year before they take it up to BCC?  

12 Maybe.  But, again, we're getting to that fence that's been 

13 drawn between the Utility and the applicant.  That's the best 

14 response I have for you.  

15 There's nothing that says that that -- a recommendation 

16 for approval means that in three months it's going back to 

17 the BCC.  It could be a year.  It really depends on where the 

18 applicant and the Water Utility Authority can get to and the 

19 time schedule in which they can do it.  

20 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Commissioner.  

22 MS. HERTEL:  I guess this is a long the lines of 

23 what Commissioner Kelly brought up, but I know in a previous 

24 discussion in this room that --

25 SPECTATOR:  Can you use the microphone, please.
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 1 MS. HERTEL:  In a previous discussion in here, in 

 2 one of these meetings, that it was mentioned that this was a 

 3 six-month, more likely year process to get an agreement in 

 4 place.  Now, I understand this is just a draft, but it seems 

 5 if this Board was to recommend approval and yet it's 

 6 conditioned on this draft being in place before it goes to 

 7 BCC and that's just kind of on the back burner then for year 

 8 before it goes to BCC, that seems like an odd process, too, 

 9 and I get it that you're trying to come up a solution to move 

10 this forward.  We all are, but that just seems like an odd 

11 way to go forward having a condition on a process that our -- 

12 you know, the Water Board -- or I can't recall exactly who 

13 said that when I asked that question a while ago, but to know 

14 that it's going to be likely a year.  So it's just a comment.

15 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioner 

16 Hertel, and I'm going to say something.  I mean it very 

17 respectfully.  Autobiography from Charles Lindbergh crossing 

18 the Atlantic, he was having to make repairs in flight, and 

19 actually one of the -- one of the tools is actually in the 

20 Smithsonian for that very reason, and we do find ourselves 

21 somewhat in that situation, that we are in the middle of an 

22 application process.  We found -- have found that those two 

23 processes don't mesh well, and so we are having to try to 

24 find a way to fix it, and I don't disagree with your 

25 statement.  I really don't have any other solution to offer.
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I think we're not making the 

 2 condition.  It's already been made by the County Commission.  

 3 They put the condition on Level A.  They're going to have to 

 4 figure it out.  I mean -- I mean, it's not -- I mean, we 

 5 can't change it, the condition that they put on Level A.  It 

 6 says that they're going to have to have an agreement.  Now 

 7 the only people that can change that agreement is them there, 

 8 so -- but I don't think that any -- and I think that we're 

 9 going to leave it.  We're not trying to change the condition 

10 from Level A.  It's going to stay there.  It's going to go to 

11 them, and they're the ones that put it in.  Okay.  It wasn't 

12 put by this Commission before it went to them last time.  

13 They put it in, so they're going to have to, you know, figure 

14 it out.  

15 MS. HERTEL:  No.  I understand that.  It's just 

16 that the process that he was recommending was that we added a 

17 condition.  As Commissioner Kelly said, a condition on a 

18 condition.

19 MR. McGREGOR:  And Chairman Chavez, Commissioner 

20 Hertel, that's correct.  What we're -- if the recommendation 

21 for approval were to go forward, what we would suggest, one, 

22 is that we not address condition 8.  That is for the BCC to 

23 address, but I think to facilitate their doing that, there 

24 may be a need to then condition your recommendation with the 

25 item out of step three.  So Commissioner Hertel's 
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 1 interpretation of what I'm saying is correct.  We are asking 

 2 maybe for another condition that's kind of intermediate 

 3 before they can take it up to the BCC.

 4 MS. HERTEL:  Is there an estimate of how long it 

 5 would take to do this draft agreement in conjunction with the 

 6 waste and wastewater issue as well?  

 7 MR. McGREGOR:  Chairman Chavez, Commissioner 

 8 Hertel, again, I have been trying to honor that fence between 

 9 the Utility and the applicant.  So, no, I do not have an 

10 estimate.  That would be an appropriate question, I think, 

11 for the Utility or the applicant.

12 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Thank you.

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  Thank you.  

14 MR. McGREGOR:  Thank you.

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Who's next?  

16 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board, 

17 excuse me, my name is John Stomp.  I'm the chief operating 

18 officer for the Water Utility Authority, and I'm here to 

19 clarify the mud so to speak, I guess.  We'll see.  

20 It is at your request, Mr. Chairman, that we are here, 

21 and we've had a lot of discussions about this, and I think 

22 some of the confusion arises from the fact that the planned 

23 communities criteria was developed prior to the Water 

24 Authority coming into existence, and when you're developing 

25 these planned communities criterias and you have such a large 
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 1 development and when you're asking somebody to provide 

 2 service, our Board has clear policies about getting involved 

 3 with land-use decisions, and that is they do not get involved 

 4 with land-use decisions.  Those decisions belong to you and, 

 5 excuse me, and the other governing boards.

 6 So there's a clear separation of powers between the two, 

 7 and that clear separation of powers, however, becomes 

 8 confused when the two come together, and I think hopefully we 

 9 can try to resolve that today.  

10 Mr. Sanchez did provide a letter.  In that letter that 

11 he talked about the ability for the Water Authority to serve 

12 the development as a whole in terms of the Level A.  It was a 

13 statement of capability.  It was not a statement of service.  

14 It was a statement outlining those issues that would need to 

15 be addressed in the event that a Development Agreement was to 

16 be negotiated between the two parties, and there was a lot of 

17 steps involved with that, particularly the approved land-use 

18 plan, and to put it in perspective, they're asking us to 

19 provide service to them.  We need to know what that means, 

20 and you need to know what that looks like, too.  We're in the 

21 same situation you are.  The Level A agreement, 14,000 acres 

22 colors, kind of just a description of what could be served, 

23 37,000 homes and some demand number as high as 14,000 acre 

24 feet a year, that's not enough specifics for us to say, "Yes, 

25 we can provide this level of service, and here's what it 
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 1 means," because the details are where the actual 

 2 infrastructure requirements are, and as Mr. Sanchez pointed 

 3 out in his letter, those infrastructure requirements are 

 4 going to be very detailed and a lot of -- a lot of 

 5 infrastructure.

 6 Our board just approved a hundred year water plan called 

 7 Water 2120 in terms of securing our water future, and there's 

 8 62 policies in that document that relate to how we are to 

 9 provide a water supply to this community for the next hundred 

10 years.  There's demand projections in there that have 

11 certainly enough demand to service this development and other 

12 population increases in the future or demand increases in the 

13 future, but how that water's allocated will be up to our 

14 Board and at the discretion of our Board.

15 So we're not making a distinction in terms of where that 

16 demand could be served.  It could be inside the service area 

17 or outside the service area.  That's up to our elected 

18 officials to make that decision.  As a staff, we need some 

19 certainty, and our policies dictate very clearly that we need 

20 to have an approved land-use plan before we can enter into a 

21 discussion about service.  We need to be able to go to our 

22 Board and know what we're recommending in terms of the actual 

23 level of service.  The Level B that's before you provides 

24 that level of detail, but there are still many opportunities 

25 for that to change until it gets to the County Commission and 
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 1 we have some sort of concurrent process.  With Mesa del Sol 

 2 who has the same plans community criteria for the City, we 

 3 ran into the same problem there, and we did a concurrent 

 4 process with the Environmental Planning Commission with an 

 5 approval before the City Council and the Development 

 6 Agreement to be approved at the -- sort of concurrently with 

 7 that.

 8 That is a process, which I believe Mr. McGregor is 

 9 trying to follow, is that concurrent process, but I'm not 

10 here before you to make a recommendation.  I'm here to answer 

11 questions about you and to try to -- for people to understand 

12 that when we're making a recommendation to our Board, our 

13 policy is clear that without your land-use decision, we can't 

14 get -- we cannot provide service, and that's a clear 

15 separation of powers, because we don't want to have people 

16 come to us and say, "We're guaranteeing you water/sewer 

17 service," before a land-use plan, and that puts you in a bind 

18 in terms of your ability to make a decision.  "Well, we've 

19 already got water and sewer service guaranteed.  Go ahead and 

20 approve the land use."  So the idea is take a step wise 

21 approach.  You guys make the decision in terms of the land 

22 use.  We'll look at what the demand requirements are, and 

23 just to put some numbers out there, the Level B is asking for 

24 some 2,200 or 2,300 acre feet of water in terms of demand.  

25 The Level A was somewhere around 14,000 acre feet of water, 

TR-103
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 and you can see, if it was a quarter of that demand, you can 

 2 see the discrepancy between the two numbers.  We're not going 

 3 to use those numbers.  We're going to calculate what we 

 4 believe the demand is going to be based on the actual land 

 5 use.  We have a requirement for each single-family 

 6 residential home to meet our 180 gallons per household per 

 7 day.  That number, if you multiply it times the total number 

 8 of households is half the demand that they projected into the 

 9 future.  So there's a lot of questions that we have to ask 

10 before we just say, "There's this water that's available, and 

11 here it is."  There's a lot of requirements.

12 With the new policy direction by our Board, our Board is 

13 looking at alternative water supplies, additional 

14 conservation, groundwater management, new infrastructure   

15 associated with indirect potable reuse or direct potable 

16 reuse.  That is taking our effluent and actually treating it 

17 and drinking it.  So there's a lot of issue and policy 

18 statement that our Board is saying, if we're going to approve 

19 a Development Agreement, here's the steps, and here's the 

20 policy framework that you're going to have follow before we 

21 can even take that to our Board, and that process just ended 

22 in September.  So that was about a year-and-a-half or 

23 two-year process just to get to get to that point.

24 So I'll be glad to answer any questions, Mr. Chairman.  

25 I feel your frustration.  I apologize to you and this Board 
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 1 for the creation of this frustration by the separation of the 

 2 powers and trying to understand how those two could work 

 3 together, and I think we had a copycat sort of a way to do it 

 4 when we did the Mesa del Sol agreement, and I think this is 

 5 somewhat the same thing, but you weren't involved with that, 

 6 and it was a very detailed discussion decades ago.  More than 

 7 a decade ago.  

 8 So -- so I think the parallel process and the concurrent 

 9 process is the way to go, but I can't answer the questions 

10 about the conditions that have been placed or what issues 

11 they might have with respect to the conditions.  And, 

12 Mr. Chairman, also I apologize to you personally.  I know 

13 that you were frustrated with this process and asked us to be 

14 here, and unfortunately we weren't.  We did provide comments.  

15 We've been working with your Staff.  The County Staff has 

16 been excellent in terms of our ability to communicate and 

17 work together.  We see this as a team effort.  You're the 

18 land use.  We take the water/sewer.  We're a team.  You make 

19 the conditions in which the land use goes forward, and we 

20 provide the service, and we think -- we think it's a team 

21 effort working together with you.  

22 So with that, I'll be glad to answer any questions, and 

23 I'm sure there's a lot of questions.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead, Commissioner.

25 MS. KELLY:  Well, you know, I've got one, John.  So 
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 1 one question would be, do you think that given the timeframe 

 2 involved in developing a Development Agreement most likely 

 3 because of all the considerations, regardless of whether it's 

 4 this Level A land or something different, is it beneficial to 

 5 think about doing some work to figure out how to integrate 

 6 this separation of powers?  I hear what you're saying, and 

 7 it's been going on for a long time, even before the Water 

 8 Utility I think because of the way the water system was 

 9 structured, the same dynamic existed.  Is there a way to 

10 integrate it, and is this a chance to take a pause and do 

11 that since we've got a long time frame anyway?  

12 MR. STOMP:  Well, Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, 

13 that's really more of an opinion statement by myself.  I have 

14 to follow the policies of our Board, and the policies of our 

15 Board are pretty clear.  How long would this take to 

16 negotiate a Development Agreement, Mr. Chairman?  I don't 

17 have an answer to that, because I don't know that we'll 

18 actually be able to enter into an agreement.  I don't know 

19 what our infrastructure requirements would be compared to 

20 what they believe that they're responsible for.  So there may 

21 be a huge gap between what we think they need to build and 

22 what they think they need to build.  I can't -- I cannot 

23 predict that.  

24 We could -- the master plans that have been provided to 

25 us, we viewed those, and those could provide service to the 
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 1 community the way that they're put together now, but they're 

 2 not consistent with the policies that our Board adopted and 

 3 so there's issues that we have those.  So those master plans 

 4 are capable of serving the community, just as they are today, 

 5 but with respect to taking a pause, I don't want to step on 

 6 that.  I don't believe that's m role here today.  And, 

 7 Mr. Chairman, I'd be held for that for a long time I think.

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I understand that, because you 

 9 know, the Water Board is created by the County Commission, 

10 and you know, you guys have a ten-year agreement, and every 

11 ten years it's another negotiations that go on, you know, 

12 and that's something that if somebody has questions about 

13 that, they should talk to their Commissioner, and -- you know 

14 but -- 

15 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chairman, I do have an opinion.  

16 The only issue I would say is that the Water Authority Board 

17 and with the commissioners and with the city councils 

18 together have worked very, very well together.  We have been 

19 in existence now for 12 years.  Our Board meets on a monthly 

20 basis.  Ninety-nine of all the decisions that are made are 

21 consents and unanimous, and so I believe that the 

22 functionality of the Board is good.  

23 Getting pass this planned communities criteria as it 

24 relates to trying to fix something after something's been 

25 created is just causing a little bit of grief, but I believe 
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 1 that there's a way forward for that.  I hope there's a way 

 2 forward.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Well, thank you for coming down, 

 4 and I think we have some -- 

 5 MS. NELSON:  Oh, I do -- I do have a question.  

 6 Thank you again for coming down.  We've been going around in 

 7 circles for while, so that helps.  Would do you expect that 

 8 the level of specificity in the Level B plan would be 

 9 sufficient for the Water Authority to make a decision?  

10 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, I 

11 believe that if the land use plan was approved or --

12 MS. NELSON:  Understanding that.

13 MR. STOMP:  -- the land-use plan was approved for 

14 -- yes, there is enough specifics in that to be able to 

15 decide how that Level B process fits into the big picture and 

16 the differences and discrepancies between the demand 

17 forecast, for example, for the Level B versus the entire 

18 development, and I would envision a Development Agreement 

19 that would structure -- excuse me, that would be a big 

20 picture Development Agreement somewhat like looking at the 

21 big picture Level A and then individual infrastructure 

22 requirements associated with the Level B, but I can't predict 

23 that, because my Board is the one that -- our Board is the 

24 one that -- would be the ones that would approve that, but 

25 yes, I think there is enough specifics.  If it was to move 
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 1 forward, at least we could have some concurrent path, but it 

 2 is clear that we -- our board is not going to approve a 

 3 Development Agreement without an approved land-use plan.

 4 MS. NELSON:  Oh, I think we do understand that.  

 5 MR. STOMP:  I know.  I know.  I apologize for 

 6 saying that again.

 7 MS. NELSON:  Okay.  So -- no.  That's all right.  

 8 You want to make sure you're on the record good and firm.

 9 So the part that bothered me was that -- and I don't 

10 know what you were referring to, perhaps just in general, 

11 that sometimes the master plans can specify service, but it 

12 isn't the right kind of service or rather it doesn't conform 

13 to your requirement, and so there is going to have to be a 

14 redesign period, because conforming to Bernalillo County 

15 land-use requirements are obviously different, and so I was 

16 wondering if you had found that to be true, and if so, 

17 whether it's significant, just in general?  I know you can't 

18 state in specific.  

19 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chair and Members of the 

20 Commission, I think that the master plan that were developed 

21 are in accordance with our policies and our service 

22 guidelines in terms of pressures and zones and that.  Where 

23 the water comes from and how the sewage is taken care of, no, 

24 they don't address those, and I think that's probably where 

25 the biggest contention is probably going to be, but I think 
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 1 they do meet our criteria.  I think the consultants have been 

 2 working our consultants that have been doing business in this 

 3 community for a long time.  So I believe there's -- that 

 4 conflict doesn't arise in terms of the levels of service or 

 5 the criteria in which those systems would be designed would 

 6 be in accordance with our standards.  I don't question that, 

 7 but I do question how we're going to get the complete service 

 8 to the entire development.

 9 MS. NELSON:  Okay.  But that's not something that 

10 you can discuss with the applicant until that part of the 

11 process begins?  

12 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chairman -- 

13 MS. NELSON:  Is that correct?  You can't -- we 

14 can't predetermine that?  

15 MR. STOMP:  That is correct, and without some 

16 process and some level of comfort in terms of what you've 

17 actually approved so we'll know what we're actually serving, 

18 that's -- that's the conundrum here.

19 MS. NELSON:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  

21 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chair.

22 John, is the phasing plan that's presented in the latest 

23 draft something that will change depending upon the water 

24 master plan?  

25 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, I 
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 1 haven't -- I haven't looked at that in great detail, but I 

 2 think the infrastructure phasing might -- may or may not be 

 3 consistent with the actual phasing of the development.  In 

 4 other words, there may be infrastructure up front that could 

 5 serve the entire development that would need to be built 

 6 first before any of these other phases go on.  

 7 So I think the infrastructure phasing related to water 

 8 and sewer might be different than that actual phasing, but 

 9 clearly, we would not go outside of the boundary of being 

10 able to serve Level B only first until we move forward with 

11 the next phase of the development.  So we would follow your 

12 phased approach.  Whatever that phasing approach was 

13 approved, that would provide the guidance that we need in 

14 terms of what are the next steps in the development, and then 

15 how we would phase the infrastructure might be a little bit 

16 different than that though.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you, Mr. Stomp.  Appreciate 

18 it.  You know, I also remember the plans that -- that were 

19 done through the City, because I was Chairman of the Planning 

20 Commission at that time.  So I've been through this once 

21 before so -- and I know it's complicated.  It's a big 

22 development, you know.  

23 MR. STOMP:  Mr. Chairman, it's always been a 

24 pleasure before you.  I've been before you many, many times, 

25 both with the EPC and CPC.  I appreciate all the work that 
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 1 you've don and the Commission as whole.  These are difficult 

 2 decisions.  So I appreciate that that you're --

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And my whole goal to getting 

 4 information was to -- so that the whole Board understands 

 5 what we're doing.  And I understand the separation of powers.  

 6 You know, you've got the Water Board.  They're in charge of 

 7 water, and we're in charge of zoning.  

 8 MR. STOMP:  Yes, sir.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Hopefully we can work together, 

10 you know, on these plans.  

11 MR. STOMP:  I do believe it's a team effort, sir.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  

13 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I'd like to invite John 

14 Barney from Parks and Recreation.

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

16 MR. BARNEY:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the 

17 Commission, my name is John Barney.  I'm planning manager for 

18 Parks and Open Space with the County.  Good morning, almost 

19 after -- or is it afternoon.  So good afternoon.  

20 So what I just wanted to -- to pick up on a discussion 

21 of that clause -- I'm going to put that back up here briefly.  

22 This clause was actually in the community facilities portion 

23 of the plan, which is Section II, and I worked closely with 

24 the applicant and the applicant's agent, and we eventually 

25 asked that to be removed, and it was, and so I -- and it was 
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 1 only recently that I was told that -- to look at Section I, 

 2 and there it was again.  

 3 Now, the reason why it's of concern to us is because a 

 4 lot of -- there's a lot of specifics that we negotiated 

 5 relative to parks and recreation, and so they cut both ways.  

 6 In some cases we're waiting on some things onto the next 

 7 Level B, and other things we're wanting to make sure that we 

 8 -- we get specifically what we're -- what we're needing, and 

 9 there's been an -- like I said, it's a negotiation.  I don't 

10 want to be subjecting somebody in the future in my position 

11 to have to renegotiate, because it's pointed out to them by 

12 -- you know, by another agent that, "Oh, well, this is -- 

13 this looks more stringent than the Level A plan is 

14 requiring."  I don't want that ambiguity to be there.  It 

15 really needs to be clear that this is the language going 

16 forward, and it disturbed me initially when that clause 

17 showed up there, because it seemed to sort of -- sort of -- 

18 because it wasn't in there originally.  It actually got put 

19 in there in order to -- it seems to me, in order to make sure 

20 to give that, you know, that possibility in the future that 

21 that could be renegotiated, and I -- so that's the basis for 

22 my concern with that language. 

23 I think we've spent all this time negotiating these 

24 terms in the Level B.  I mean, it basically does go further 

25 than the Level A agreement.  I don't want to be debating 
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 1 whether it's a conflict or not a conflict in the future or 

 2 having my successor do that.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Do we have any questions?    

 4 Go ahead.

 5 MR. BARNEY:  So -- yes, Commissioner.

 6 MS. HERTEL:  So are you good with the way the 

 7 language is now or not?  I wasn't sure what the conclusion 

 8 there was.  

 9 MR. BARNEY:  Commissioner Hertel, Mr. Chairman, 

10 I've asked -- I've requested that be stricken from the plan.  

11 That's actually my condition.

12 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  And it's still in there?  

13 MR. BARNEY:  Yes.

14 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

16 MR. BARNEY:  And just part of, you know, in my 

17 process, I also wanted to -- there were a couple of other 

18 items that I -- in rereviewing the whole section on the 

19 phasing, I got very concerned that, again, we're -- and, 

20 again, I mean, part of the process has been there's been a 

21 lot of, you know, separate discussions between separate 

22 groups of Staff.  It really hasn't been always the ability 

23 for all of us to get together.  I think that's part of 

24 Catherine's concern, Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, in terms 

25 of recommending that there be, you know, a continuance.  
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 1 So in looking -- so once I saw that this language had 

 2 been put back into this in a different place in the section 

 3 that I went back and looked through a lot of the other 

 4 changes, and I saw something that, again, maybe I missed it 

 5 the first time.  I don't know when it was put in there, 

 6 because all of this is happening in -- you know, in multiple 

 7 places, but there -- I have a concern with this language, 

 8 which basically suggests -- again, creates this ambiguity 

 9 where in terms of what's available funding, that they had 

10 actually -- that the developer could seek, you know, through 

11 this process or through the political process to have the 

12 County pay for some of the -- some of the project 

13 infrastructure, and again, I would like to see that, you 

14 know, changed if not stricken from the plan itself, because 

15 project infrastructure, even based on a Level A language is 

16 going to be paid for completely by the developer, period.  

17 And so I don't know why, again, this language is reintroduced 

18 into there except to create ambiguity where -- you know, and 

19 the ability to negotiate or use the political process to 

20 effectuate something else, and that's again -- and by doing 

21 so, then it would also be, again, not at no net expense to 

22 the community. 

23 So that's my those are my two major concerns.  I have a 

24 couple of other conditions that really just clarify, you 

25 know, how -- how the dedication process is going to work.  
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 1 The agent has said that they have the same language in there.  

 2 I haven't been able to find it.  It may be in there, but 

 3 again, probably need to be meet one more time with them, and 

 4 I think we can iron a lot of these things out.  Those are -- 

 5 those are my concerns, Mr. Chairman.  

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

 7 MR. BARNEY:  Stand for questions.

 8 MS. HERTEL:  One question.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yeah.  Go ahead.

10 MS. HERTEL:  Those two major concerns, are they now 

11 conditions of approval that have been submitted to Catherine 

12 and included in her recent list?  

13 MR. BARNEY:  Mr. Chairman and Commissioner Hertel, 

14 yes, they have been.  

15 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  So striking the language 

16 regarding Level A, B language and striking the language 

17 regarding how things are paid for.

18 MR. BARNEY:  Yes, I -- Mr. Chairman, Commissioner, 

19 I actually provided other language that just creates --  it 

20 makes it really clear it's at the discretion of the various 

21 governing entities.

22 MS. HERTEL:  As long as it's covered in the 

23 condition.  All right.  Thank you.  

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you very much. 

25 MR. BARNEY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, 
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 1 Commissioners.  

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Catherine, is that it?  We need to 

 3 move this a long.  Otherwise I'm going to lose some 

 4 Commissioners here real quick.  

 5 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I'd just like to make 

 6 sure that APS is not here.  You are.  Okay.  There's Alvira 

 7 is here from APS.  I didn't see them, from APS, and then that 

 8 would be it.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Do they want to speak.

10 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, APS has stated that 

11 they're here just to answer questions.  

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Are there questions?  If 

13 not, don't matter.  Okay.  Who's -- is that it?  

14 MS. VEREECKE:  That's it.

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  The applicant.  

16 MS. KELLY:  Could I ask a couple of questions of 

17 Staff before we get the applicant?  

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Sure.  Let me swear everybody in 

19 here.  The applicant and anybody that's going to speak on 

20 this case, please stand up so I can swear you in.  

21 (Note:  Witnesses sworn.)

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  

23 Commissioner here is going to ask a question, and I'm 

24 going to -- I'm going to -- you know, applicant, you're going 

25 to have 15 minutes, and we're going to keep it to that, and 
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 1 everybody that's going to speak is going to have their two 

 2 minutes, and we're not going to go over that, because we have 

 3 the time that -- some of my Commissioners need to leave, too.  

 4 MS. KELLY:  I thought Christie was going to speak.  

 5 So my question's for her.

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Christie who?  

 7 MS. KELLY:  Jenner (sic).  But I guess my question, 

 8 and maybe Richard can answer it, that transportation is okay 

 9 with the condition of approval that says that -- I think it's 

10 condition 2 that says that, "The applicant will provide a 

11 list of 2025 and 2040 transportation projects identifying 

12 Level B, 1 improvements to be built and the share of private, 

13 local, and regional public funding for each project within 30 

14 days of BCC approval."  And I guess my question is, this has 

15 been in the works since presumably June of 2015.  Isn't this 

16 information that would be really helpful now?  And why -- why 

17 is the -- what's with the 30 days of approval?  I mean, it 

18 seems like we should have it now, and then putting 30 days 

19 after BCC approval is not a significant amount of time.

20 MR. MEADOWS:  Mr. Chairman and Commissioner Kelly, 

21 this -- this is an item that has been brought up, I think, 

22 since we got Level B transportation plan and also the site 

23 impacts, the on-site and off-site impacts, which of those 

24 transportation projects would be paid for as system 

25 infrastructure and which would be more of the project 
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 1 infrastructure, and so our understanding from the applicant 

 2 and the agent is that that is something that they could -- 

 3 that they would have to provide after the plan is approved.  

 4 So it's always been a condition in there, and so we've -- 

 5 we've been fine with that to leave that as a condition as 

 6 long as we, you know, have that -- that information at some 

 7 point so that we can begin to prepare for funding those 

 8 projects as they come forward.

 9  MS. KELLY:  My point is just that if they could 

10 have it within 30 days of BCC approval, they could have it 

11 now, and it would be important information towards phasing 

12 and the no net cost requirements.

13 MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Thank you.  

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  

15 Applicant.  

16 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners.  

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Fifteen minutes.

18 MR. STROZIER:  Got it.  So I had a -- I had a 

19 little presentation that I'm going to forego, because I want 

20 to get into the meat of the discussion, and that presentation 

21 -- so once again, my name's Jim Strozier, principal with 

22 Consensus Planning, 302 8th Street.  

23 So what I would like to do is just very quickly, I 

24 think, acknowledge the work that's gone on from the last 

25 hearing until now.  We've been working on all sides with the 
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 1 different agencies and with Staff very diligently to come to 

 2 resolution on all of the outstanding issues that were -- were 

 3 there, and we've resolved -- I'm happy to say, I think we've 

 4 resolved almost all of them.  

 5 Now, the 85 percent, I think, that came up before, a lot 

 6 of those -- those comments that we were trying to address 

 7 that were still pending, many of them were related to the 

 8 condition and the Water Authority agreement.

 9 So that took -- if you take that off the table, we've 

10 really addressed almost all of the comments and issues that 

11 have been provided.  Not to say that there aren't a couple of 

12 agree-to-disagree items, and I'm going to try and focus on 

13 those as we move forward, and some of this we just got this 

14 -- the draft findings and conditions last evening.  We've 

15 been looking at those and addressing those, and I'll go 

16 through those with you.  

17 I did also have a couple of comments on the -- and maybe 

18 just start with the Water Authority comments, and we're also 

19 very appreciative that everybody is talking, and the 

20 communication is happening.  I think that's a very positive 

21 step towards getting these resolved.

22 In terms of the findings that Mr. McGregor read, I had a 

23 couple of comments on those, and one, I think it's kind of 

24 fundamental, and he started off in his -- in his 

25 presentation, and Mr. Stomp also mentioned it, is 
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 1 acknowledging the fact that when the County readopted the 

 2 PCC, the planned communities criteria, they acknowledged that 

 3 adjustments to the PCC process may be appropriate since -- 

 4 and one of the items that they specifically called out was 

 5 that the Water Authority was not in existence when the 

 6 planned communities criteria were developed, and if you look 

 7 at the planned communities criteria and read them as they 

 8 were prepared in the late '90s, it was all predicated on the 

 9 fact that these -- these areas would be annexed into the 

10 City.  The City provided the water.  There would be an 

11 annexation agreement.  That would been part of the process.  

12 Well, we know that that's not the world we're living it now, 

13 and so I think it would be appropriate to have a finding that 

14 at least acknowledges that the County Commission acknowledged 

15 that when they readopted the planned communities criteria.

16 The other -- on process, I think we're also very 

17 appreciative of the process information that has been 

18 provided that tries to put the County's process and the Water 

19 Authority's processes together in a way that makes sense.  

20 And I think that the -- I wasn't sure where Mr. McGregor was 

21 going with the Lindbergh flight, but I get it, and I think 

22 it's actually very apropos to this discussion.  

23 We knew that there was going to be an issue.  We've been 

24 trying to figure out a way to work through that issue in a 

25 manner that the Board of County Commissioners can address it 
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 1 and the Water Authority Board can address it and figure out 

 2 how those two systems can work together, and I think that 

 3 this process that we've been provided makes a really good 

 4 start to get -- to get that really put together in a way that 

 5 I think is very workable for both sides.

 6 I think -- and it's the fundamental issue, and I think 

 7 we raised this at the time of Level A.  I think it's very 

 8 difficult to have conditions for a County approval where 

 9 there's another outside entity that neither the County nor 

10 the applicant have control over.  We all -- we're -- and I 

11 think this is a good step to get those two entities working 

12 together along with us to try and come up with a solution for 

13 that.  

14 Also, then, I want to talk about the -- the statement at 

15 the very beginning of the document, and this is -- some 

16 discussion has been in -- and this is in Section 1.1.  So do 

17 a couple things, just to relate to.  So there were two parts.  

18 We had -- we had an area where we had some language similar 

19 to this in the parks section that we removed, and then we had 

20 this in the initial section.  They're similar but different 

21 purposes, and so -- and it's up to you all how you would like 

22 us to respond to this, but I wanted to explain our thoughts 

23 on this.  

24 So during the Level A and during this Level B approval 

25 process, there have been a number of concerns that have been 
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 1 expressed about how we were going to relate our density caps, 

 2 the Comprehensive Plan, how that gets translated from Level A 

 3 down to Level B when we have these very specific zoning 

 4 districts, and how are we going to be assured that we don't 

 5 exceed basically -- the Level B plan doesn't exceed what was 

 6 authorized at Level A from some of those -- with some of 

 7 those very critical aspects.  

 8 And specifically in the planned communities criteria, 

 9 under the Development Agreement this is talking, but it 

10 includes -- under C it includes a statement that says, "Any 

11 limitations on development established at Level A cannot be 

12 increased at Level B."   So we can't be allowed to have a 

13 certain density at Level A, and then come back with Level B 

14 and do one-and-a-half times that, or we can't have agreed to 

15 a jobs-housing balance and change it at this point in terms 

16 of those limitations that were put in place, and so that was 

17 the purpose of this paragraph that we added.  And I think you 

18 have to read if with the first sentence which says, "Nothing 

19 within this Level B plan shall be construed to increase any 

20 limitation on development established in the Level A Master 

21 Plan entitlements and Development Agreement."  So that's two 

22 things that related to the density and the overall number of 

23 dwelling units, and then also related to the jobs-housing 

24 balance.  

25 And then it goes on to say, "If there's a conflict 
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 1 between the Level B entitlements or Development Agreement for 

 2 Santolina and the Level A Master Plan entitlements or 

 3 Development Agreements for Santolina, the Level A Master Plan 

 4 entitlements or Development Agreement shall control."

 5 That's second sentence builds on the first, but it's talking 

 6 about those limitations.  

 7 So we added that in there specifically to address that 

 8 concern, and it's something that can be addressed in the 

 9 Development Agreement obviously.  That's why we put that in 

10 there in this location as an overall statement, and it really 

11 directly related to that statement in the PCC criteria, and 

12 so it's your pleasure as to whether you want that to stay.  

13 There's a condition, proposed condition that that be removed, 

14 but I thought it was appropriate for me to explain what we 

15 were trying to -- why we put that in there in the first 

16 place.

17 I then want to go through the draft conditions.  So -- 

18 and do you all have these?  I speak directly to the draft 

19 findings and conditions.

20 MS. NELSON:  Which version exactly?  

21 MR. STROZIER:  Well, I have one that's dated 

22 November 2nd, and it has 22 findings and 15 conditions.  Is 

23 that the same one?  

24 MS. NELSON:  Maybe.

25 MR. STROZIER:  Okay.  Do we all have the same -- 
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 1 same version?  Yes?  Yes.  So just real quickly,  I'm going 

 2 to go through these quickly.  I also have a copy of these 

 3 markups for you as well.  So finding no. 3, we think it would 

 4 appropriate to add, "And the Level A Development Agreement," 

 5 to finding no. 3.  We also, on finding no. 9, think it's 

 6 appropriate to add the word "gross acre" at the very end of 

 7 that finding.  

 8 Skipping ahead to 17, I think it's appropriate to just 

 9 expand a little bit on that, because not only has a request 

10 for the overall boundary plat been submitted, it's actually 

11 been submitted, reviewed, and approved by the CDRA subject to 

12 -- final signature has been delegated to the manager.  So 

13 it's been through the process up until the final signature on 

14 that.  So it's not -- it hasn't just been submitted.  We're 

15 really close to getting that done, and I thought that was 

16 appropriate to be clear about that.

17 MS. KELLY:  Jim.

18 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.

19 MS. KELLY:  Would you show me what you're talking 

20 about, the boundary plat?  

21 MR. STROZIER:  It is -- it says Santolina Level A 

22 condition 19 related to the platting of the Level A property.  

23 It's your finding 17 at the top the third page.

24 MS. KELLY:  Because -- 

25 MR. STROZIER:  That was a condition of approval.
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 1 MS. KELLY:  Right, of -- approval of Level A made 

 2 that A condition of approval that Level B --

 3 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.  

 4 MS. KELLY:  Does the boundary plat show access to 

 5 all tracts within Santolina?  Because I think that was the 

 6 wording in the Development Agreement.

 7 MR. STROZIER:  I believe that it does.  I haven't 

 8 been intimately involved in the plat itself.  I know that has 

 9 gone through -- once again, I think my comment was to clarify 

10 that it's not just -- hasn't just been applied for.  It's 

11 been through that process and reviewed by the CDRA and that 

12 body which is similar to the City's DRB.  

13 And let's see.  So findings 19 and 21 relate to the 

14 specific -- that specific paragraph that's in 1.1 that I just 

15 reviewed our thoughts on.  So we would suggest that those -- 

16 if you -- if it's your choice to leave that language in 1.1, 

17 then those would need to go away.  If your choice is to 

18 delete that, then those would -- those would need to remain.  

19 I have a little wordsmithing getting into the conditions 

20 of approval.  For condition 1, I think it should state that, 

21 "A Level B.1 Development Agreement shall be executed between 

22 the landowner," not developer.  It's really between the 

23 property owner and Bernalillo County in accordance with the 

24 planned communities criteria, and you can strike, "Submittal 

25 criteria at the time of the adoption of the Santolina B.1 
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 1 Master Plan."  I think we have -- that is what it is.  

 2 With regard to condition no. 4 regarding changes to the 

 3 zoning.  We have made those changes.  Those are incorporated 

 4 into the document.  So if they stay or are deleted, condition 

 5 no. 4 related to lighting and streetscapes as those have been 

 6 -- made those changes into the documents.

 7 Once again, condition no. 6 relates directly to that 

 8 paragraph in section 1.1.  I believe that conditions 7 and 8 

 9 -- let's see.  Conditions 7 and 8, yes, regard -- with 

10 regards to the language on phasing and implementation 

11 specifically as it relates to the Parks and Recreation 

12 facilities, I'm not really sure.  These are really 

13 complicated conditions, and we've gone through that language.  

14 It's in the document.  We feel that the language in the 

15 document is clear, and I'm not sure the purpose of this.  

16 And specifically condition no. 8, which deals with 

17 mechanisms for funding, that that's probably more 

18 appropriately refined in the Development Agreement as opposed 

19 to in the -- in the document, and this is on -- these don't 

20 have page numbers but --

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Hold on, Jim.  She has a question.

22 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Sorry, Jim.  You are moving 

23 pretty fast up there.

24 MR. STROZIER:  Okay.  Sorry.  

25 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  I just -- I just want to back 

TR-127
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 up a little bit.  You said in condition no.  4 that you had 

 2 already taken care of that.  These were issued last night, 

 3 right?  So when did you take care of it?  

 4 MR. STROZIER:  Oh, well, we had -- that comment, we 

 5 had had that comment for quite a while.  Condition no.  4, if 

 6 you look at the -- at the document, it is -- let's see.  

 7 There's two places on there.

 8  Okay.  So let's see -- so on page 48, number -- item B.3 

 9 it says, "Sites," and "shall" is crossed out and "should" is 

10 in its place, consistent with the word on B, "lighting," 

11 three, the word "shall" is to be replaced with "should."   So 

12 that's done.  We had gotten that comment before, and somewhat 

13 -- so just in part of this whole process, as we've been 

14 trying to -- and Mr. Barney alluded to this.  We get comments 

15 from all these different people, and we meet, and we make 

16 changes, and things move page numbers, and we're adding, 

17 especially in terms of keeping track of all the changes.  So 

18 it gets somewhat difficult sometimes to keep track of every 

19 one of these little changes, but I just wanted to -- so that 

20 one is on page 48.  The other one is specifically on page 50, 

21 and that is number 2 that adds, "By no less than four feet."   

22 It requested a limitation on the meandering of the sidewalk, 

23 so we have a minimum that it can be separated from the wall, 

24 and then we have a maximum deviation that that sidewalk in   

25 terms of meandering walkway can do, and you may have seen 
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 1 some that are -- have a nice and gentle curve and look very 

 2 pleasant are very nice to walk on, and some that are more -- 

 3 they just wiggle or they go too far one way or the other.  

 4 They're not that pleasant to actually walk on.  So that was 

 5 the -- that was the intent of that, and I just wanted to make 

 6 that point.  

 7 I have  a -- I have a couple more if I might just try 

 8 and get through these very quickly.  So condition no. 9, so 

 9 this is -- this is related to a connection that we have been 

10 working with Parks on, and we expressed a willingness to work 

11 with them on this.  I don't think it's appropriate within 

12 this document as a condition, because it's really making -- 

13 if my understanding is correct, it's making reference to a 

14 connection that would actually be outside of the Level B plan 

15 area.  It's a connection through part of the open space that 

16 may be part of Santolina.  We're willing to work with them.  

17 I just don't know that it's appropriate to have a condition 

18 in the Level B document that makes reference to something 

19 that's happening outside of the plan area.  It's a connection 

20 between Santolina Level B and a County -- what the County's 

21 trying to do off site.  

22 Let's see.  So with regard to archeology, and 

23 Commissioner Hertel you had -- you had raised some of these 

24 questions.  So what we've -- what we've done -- I want to 

25 take just a second if I can.  So in reference to your 
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 1 question at the last hearing, we went back to the SHPO, and 

 2 we followed up on the Class II Archeological Survey that was 

 3 complete, and they have reviewed it, and they have approved 

 4 it.  We went back to them with -- and asked them to provide 

 5 us with process language as to how we move forward from what 

 6 we have for Level B to getting to where we have a Level C, a 

 7 subdivision or a site plan approved, and there's really a 

 8 distinction.  We added a bunch of language, which is 

 9 basically directly from the email that we got from the SHPO 

10 as to how that would work, and that is added in green on page 

11 79 under Archeology. 

12 One of things that we've talked about, we don't put site 

13 specific information into the Level B plan.  We try and keep 

14 the archeological reports and everything separated from this 

15 -- this document, so we speak somewhat in generalities, but 

16 the County and the State have that information on file, and 

17 so I think we've addressed that, and some of the language 

18 concerned me in this proposed condition, because it talks 

19 about site specific -- 

20 MS. HERTEL:  What number are you on.

21 MR. STROZIER:  I am on condition no. -- proposed 

22 condition no. 10.

23 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.

24 MR. STROZIER:  "Along with a specific mitigation 

25 plan shall be provided" -- so what we have incorporated into 
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 1 the Level B plan is directly what we got from the SHPO in 

 2 terms of how they advised us the process should work moving 

 3 forward.  

 4 I -- I'm not an archeology expert.  We rely on them.  We 

 5 have our consultants, which was SWCA that provided the 

 6 report.  I think what it tries to do is put in place  

 7 parameters that for those areas that have had a class III 

 8 full pedestrian survey that are part of the class II, that 

 9 that work is complete.  We know where those sites are.  For 

10 Level C plans that come forward on areas that were not done, 

11 we have to come back and do that class III pedestrian level 

12 survey for those properties prior to anything happening, and 

13 that's what we tried to express in the -- in the language 

14 that was added to page 79, and once again, that's not my 

15 language.  We basically incorporated the language from the 

16 email.  It was actually a back and forth -- several emails, 

17 because I kept asking for more clarification as to how that 

18 fits in, but that's -- that was the intent of what we did.  

19 And I just wanted to make sure that you were clear what 

20 we -- what we've incorporated into the document and how I'm a 

21 little concerned with the language expressed in that 

22 condition.  If we don't think we've met it with this 

23 language, I'm not sure what we need to do to get there, 

24 because we -- once again, we rely on them to kind of guide us 

25 as to how things should go forward from Level B prior to 
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 1 Level C and any construction.  So is that -- and if you have 

 2 specific -- and if you have specific questions, that's great.  

 3 I may or may not be able to answer them, but I will try.  

 4 MS. HERTEL:  Let me just that a comment, and that 

 5 is that, you know, there's the author of this condition no. 

 6 10, and you ought to be communicating and sharing any of the 

 7 emails that you might have gotten from Andrew -- and I can't 

 8 think of his last name, SHPO guy, so that everybody does 

 9 agree that that's appropriate.  

10 MR. STROZIER:  We have shared that with Staff, but 

11 we can -- we can make sure that it's clear.

12 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.

13 MR. STROZIER:  Okay.  Thank you.

14 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chair, I have a question about 

15 finding 16.  

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.

17 MS. KELLY:  It says that, "In order to map the 

18 Santolina B planned communities zoning districts, legally 

19 platted parcels are required."

20 So the zoning districts are Exhibit 3.

21 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.

22 MS. KELLY:  You're intending to plat those?  

23 MR. STROZIER:  That's correct.

24 MS. KELLY:  And they have strange, squiggly 

25 boundaries or undefined boundaries I guess I would say.  
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 1 So that would not come back to CPC?  That would go directly 

 2 to --  

 3 MR. STROZIER:  CD --

 4 MS. KELLY:  -- subdivision?  

 5 MR. STROZIER:  I don't know.  I'll take a stab at 

 6 it, and Staff can jump in, but my understanding is the 

 7 concern is that the County wants to be able to map those 

 8 specific districts, and in order to do that, we need to do a 

 9 plat.  It's not a development plan, per se.  We can't build 

10 anything based on that, but it defines those zoning 

11 districts, and they're basically centerlines of roads and 

12 differences between, like, the open space and the residential 

13 area, and so -- and these are the big picture district.  When 

14 you look at the land-use plan, you see many -- a higher level 

15 of -- higher grain, but once again, this is really just to 

16 map the zoning, and then once development comes forward with 

17 Level C plans, there will be subsequent platting that 

18 actually would enable something to get built.  You can't 

19 build anything with this yet.

20 MS. KELLY:  Well, I'm just trying to understand the 

21 process.

22 MR. STROZIER:  Yeah.

23 MS. KELLY:  So this would go to subdivision --

24 MR. STROZIER:  CDRA, yes.  

25 MS. KELLY:  But it would not come back to us.  
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 1 MR. STROZIER:  I don't believe it would.  I guess 

 2 if it's a major subdivision, it might.

 3 MS. KELLY:  Presumably those parcels could be 

 4 conveyed at that point, because they'd be platted parcels.  

 5 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.

 6 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

 7 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.  I agree with that.  Okay.  All 

 8 right.  Let me get back to my place.  I'm almost done.  And I 

 9 appreciate your -- so, okay, condition -- the previous 

10 condition no. 12 I think is superceded by our conversation on 

11 the Water Authority stuff.  I'm not sure that condition stays 

12 as it was written.  I will leave that to -- to Staff.  

13 And then just the only -- the last one, condition no. 

14 15, and I just want to be clear, it's not necessarily that we 

15 don't agree with it, it says, "The Santolina Level B.1 

16 development shall comply with all applicable Bernalillo 

17 County ordinances and standards."  We have with this Level B 

18 done things that are above and beyond or different from the 

19 standard Bernalillo County -- so we have our own custom 

20 zoning districts with setbacks and uses, and we've really 

21 tailored those through discussions with the Staff, and so you 

22 can't -- so I just want to make sure that we're all clear 

23 that as we move forward, that some of the places within the 

24 Level B document, we have criteria and rules that may differ 

25 from the standard County ordinance, and I'll let Mr. Garcia 
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 1 maybe speak to that, but that's -- I just wanted you all to 

 2 be clear that that exists.  Well, you can't look at the 

 3 County's Zoning Code and find the zones -- the zoned 

 4 districts that we have in this Level B document with all the 

 5 rules and regulations, because they only exist here.  We 

 6 customize all of those.  We have processes.  The 

 7 archeological process that's in here is not anywhere else in 

 8 the County process, so that's -- we just want to be clear 

 9 that we have place where we differ from the standard County 

10 ordinances, rules, and regulations, if you will, because we 

11 needed to have them, and it was appropriate to have them 

12 embedded in this document.  

13 So with that, I'd be happy to answer any questions at 

14 this time, and thank you very much.

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Any questions?  If not, 

16 thank you very much.

17 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you.

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Do you have the list?  

19 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Starting off with Rod 

20 Mahoney, Zoe Economou, Renee Horvath.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  The names that were called, if you 

22 would please come to the front seats there, so you'll be 

23 ready to testify as soon as your name comes up.  

24 MR. MAHONEY:  Good afternoon.  My name is Rod 

25 Mahoney.  I live at 1838 Sadora Road, Southwest.  I'm the 
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 1 current president of the South Valley Coalition of 

 2 Neighborhood Associations.  

 3 One thing that hasn't been talked about here is the due 

 4 process that we're interested in today.  I mean, clearly the 

 5 findings and conditions are -- I mean, I got a copy of those 

 6 last night, sent those to a few people, have not had a chance 

 7 to really review those adequately or adapt to these on the 

 8 fly.  I think that there is some issue with due process 

 9 associated with that.  

10  Also, there was another document that was handed out 

11 today relative to the discussions about the water Development 

12 Agreement.  So that's another one that certainly the public 

13 has not had a chance to look at and review, so I think that 

14 portends essentially a continuance of this particular case to 

15 allow us to actually you review and comment.

16 One of the things that also is missing, I believe, in 

17 the conditions is this announcement that actually came out in 

18 the Journal on Sunday is about the upcoming hearing for the 

19 TIDs issue for this particular case.

20 So based upon that then, I believe, that my 

21 recommendation or my suggestion would be that when I started 

22 taking a quick look at this, we have a number of conditions 

23 that were in Level A, and we've talked about a few of those 

24 earlier today, actually 8 through 11 actually pertain to the 

25 water Development Agreement, not just 8 alone.  Also, then 
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 1 there's conditions associated with no net expense that do not 

 2 include any wording associated with forthcoming tax incentive 

 3 district numbers that come out of this forthcoming hearing 

 4 for gross receipts taxes and property taxes.  

 5 Also, what's missing ultimately is conditions associated 

 6 with the specifics for the jobs-to-housing ratio.  That 

 7 actually is pertinent to Level B.  So I believe that there 

 8 needs to be a review of the Level A conditions that were 

 9 actually approved by BCC, and those need to be included in 

10 the Level A so that they don't get lost in transfer, so those 

11 are more explicit.  Specifically there is a table, table 10 

12 that comes off of page 112 that actually talks about the 

13 sequencing of development that actually has the numbers and 

14 so forth associated with the number of houses and jobs 

15 associated with each one of those sequences.  It would be 

16 advantageous, I believe, to carry that table through so it 

17 actually does not get lost.  

18 These documents, as you know, are miles deep, and 

19 there's lots of things that have been talked about about 

20 these various changes that occur.  So that would support a 

21 continuance from my perspective.  Thank you very much.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  Andy questions?  

23 MS. KELLY:  Yes.  I have a question.  

24 Mr. Mahoney, I have been -- I think the TIDs discussion 

25 has been problematic for me, and I understand that it's dealt 
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 1 with by a separate board, but finding no. 6 says that, "We 

 2 find that the plan is consistent with Reserve Area policies 

 3 that call for substantial self-sufficient economic 

 4 sensitivity and development at no net cost to Bernalillo 

 5 County."  I don't see how we can make that finding without 

 6 having some knowledge of what's being financed through the 

 7 TIDs and even if we're not in the approval loop.  

 8 And I guess I also wanted to say that on several 

 9 occasions I've asked for a summary of the -- of what the TIDs 

10 are requesting so that we could at least have some idea of 

11 phasing, and I have never received anything, and I have been 

12 told by the applicant in these meetings that that would be 

13 forthcoming, and it hasn't been.  So I don't know anything 

14 about the TIDs, and that seems to me a big disconnect with 

15 our review process.  I don't feel like our review process is 

16 having any relevance to the discussion of TIDs.

17 MR. MAHONEY:  Well, one of the things that I was 

18 going to do after the hearing today was actually try to get 

19 the economic analysis, which was supposed to be available on 

20 the 15th of October that's going to be presented at the TIDs 

21 hearing.  I would like to see what that looks like so we can 

22 actually take a review of the economic analysis as far as --

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  That what looks like?  What are  

24 you talking about?  

25 MR. MAHONEY:  About the TIDs hearing upcoming --
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Well, we don't hear the TIDs here 

 2 so -- 

 3 MR. MAHONEY:  I understand, but --

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You're going to have to go to the 

 5 County Commission meeting.

 6 MR. MAHONEY:  Okay.  That's -- one of other points 

 7 I want to make and I'll sit down.  We talked about actually 

 8 changing the PCC process here.  It's actually an ordinance, I 

 9 believe, and if we change that process, don't we have to go 

10 through a legal process to be able to modify that in some 

11 way?  We're trying to kind of weave our way around this 

12 because of various things that are missing or not and the PCC 

13 criteria associated with this disconnect that occurs.  So 

14 that process seems to be something that clearly needs to be 

15 reconsidered with the appropriate legal process.  Thank you 

16 very much.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Excuse me, what process are you 

18 talking about?  

19 MR. MAHONEY:  The planned communities criteria 

20 process.  We talked -- the testimony preceding me was talking 

21 about a number of issues that are the lack of linkage between 

22 these things and also trying to sort of fold this in somehow 

23 and mesh it into this -- a square peg in a round hole sort of 

24 situation, and I think that really -- certainly would be 

25 grounds for some significant legal questioning ultimately if 
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 1 that is not addressed properly.  Thank you very much.

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Commissioners, we have a 

 3 choice here.  Lunch is in.  Do you want to break for lunch 

 4 and come back, or go just straight through it?  You want to 

 5 take lunch.

 6 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Can we hear Zoe first.  

 7 She's --

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.  

 9 MS. ECONOMOU:  I've been here all day.  My name is 

10 Zoe Economou.  I live at 214 Riverside, Southwest.  I had 

11 prepared a recorded statement.  It's actually music, thinking 

12 that you would be wired for sound.  I hear here I have to 

13 bring my own laptop or player to do that.  So I don't have a 

14 prepared statement.  I don't have anything.  Seems like we've 

15 been at so many of these meetings, it's hard to think of a 

16 new thing to say.  It's the same old question, the water, the 

17 water the ordinance that are still there.  All these 

18 questions still need to be addressed after how many years, 

19 two years, three years, three years of meetings.  So I'll 

20 leave you with that.  Have a good lunch.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  At this time we're 

22 going to break for a few minutes.  We're going to have lunch, 

23 and we'll be back as quick as we can.  I appreciate you, your 

24 patience, and I know we all been here all day.

25 SPECTATOR:  Will you allow someone else to read a 
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 1 statement if someone has to go to work, a brief statement?  I 

 2 mean, when you come back from lunch.  

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Uh?  

 4 SPECTATOR:  When you come back from lunch.  

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  When we come back from lunch?  

 6 SPECTATOR:  Yeah.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  

 8 SPECTATOR:  Thank you.  

 9 (Note:  Deposition in recess at 12:50 p.m.  

10 and reconvened at 1:30 p.m.) 

11 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Let's see.  So we finished with 

12 Zoe Economou.  Renee Horvath, Jan Esparza, Sarah Nimas Daye 

13 (sic) and Jennifer McCabe.

14 MS. HORVATH:  Okay.  My name is Renee Horvath, and 

15 I'm with the Westside Coalition as their land-use director, 

16 and I'm here just to speak on the Level B Master Plan.  

17 Mainly I talked with the president yesterday, and he agreed 

18 that it is important that this water Development Agreement 

19 should be part of the agreement before this plan moves over, 

20 because it is a concern of our members, mainly because the -- 

21 not so much about the infrastructure that's going to go in 

22 but making sure that there's a -- water supply will meet the 

23 demand for future customers along with existing customers so 

24 there's not crisis in the future and that we're going to be 

25 mandated to conserve even more water and to also meet our 
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 1 Texas, New Mexico water compact, which we hear is a big 

 2 issue, and we don't want the state to be fined.  

 3 So we always thought that this water Development 

 4 Agreement would help address that issue, the making sure we 

 5 have the water supply to meet the demand.

 6 Secondly, the other thing I wanted to comment on 

 7 regarding to open space and design, I've talked about this 

 8 with the Westland Master Plan of using single-loaded streets 

 9 to outline open space areas, so you have the Ceja, a whole 

10 length of Ceja, and I live in the Taylor Ranch area, and we 

11 have found that single-loaded streets, where you put 

12 development on one side of the street and the open space on 

13 the other solves a lot of problems, and I don't see it 

14 mentioned here in the plan unless I just missed it, but I 

15 think you want to have it on top of the Ceja along with the 

16 bottom.  It does show off your open space a lot better and 

17 preserve the views, but it's also soil erosion and drainage 

18 issue down below, which has affected many of our residence 

19 built up against the escarpment.  So I wanted to make sure we 

20 addressed the single-loaded streets.  So thank you.

21 MS. ESPARZA:  Thank you.  My name is Jan Esparza.  

22 I'm a New Mexico native, a valley girl myself, and I 

23 appreciate the Chairman and fellow Committee Members.  

24 I would like to clarify some testimony that I have heard 

25 myself throughout these proceedings from the -- from the 
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 1 developer, and one of the first things I'd like to cover -- 

 2 and I have some extra copies of this as well.  I didn't get 

 3 as many as I wanted.  I have four copies if you --

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Just go ahead and make your 

 5 presentation.  

 6 MS. ESPARZA:  Okay.  So what I want to clarify is 

 7 really the water right existence pertinent to the property 

 8 for which was originally the Westland Development Company.

 9 And so on record, and this is a document from the Office 

10 of the State Engineer.  These -- their water rights have been 

11 -- the surface water rights have been declared since 2000.  

12 So I want to just say I leafed through this real quickly.  

13 Now, this is the 27 acre feet of groundwater rights, and I'm 

14 getting to a point here.  The surface water rights are about 

15 5,500 acre feet, and these are pre 1907 senior rights.  All 

16 these records are on the record of the Office of the State 

17 Engineer as well as the County clerk records right in this 

18 very building.  So what I'm telling you can be validated.  

19 There's lots of laptops here that can go over this.

20 Now, when Mr. Harwood testified, who is a water attorney 

21 for WALH, testified earlier last year in 2015, he only spoke 

22 about the 27 acre feet of groundwater rights.  He neglected 

23 to say anything about the valuable surface rights that is now 

24 in WALH's name on record with the Office of State Engineer.  

25 And this document here is a compilation, and it's a letter to 
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 1 Nancy Cunningham, who is -- who was an office -- OSE 

 2 employee, and he documented that he had put those surface 

 3 rights on record, and it was on record with the County Clerk.  

 4 So, and when this -- and all these change of ownerships, 

 5 by that the way, were signed by Mr. Garrett, and this is just 

 6 a sample of that as well.  So they're quite aware of these.

 7 Now, it came up in the Commission hearing when Maggie 

 8 Hart Stebbins asked specifically the developer about the 

 9 water rights.  She specifically said and I quote, "Does the 

10 Santolina property already have any existing water rights?" 

11 Mr. Hardwood said, "There are groundwater declarations 

12 that have been filed with the Office of the State Engineer, 

13 WALH property throughout the West Side including Santolina."   

14 He never clarified --

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Ma'am, would you wrap this up.  

16 MS. ESPARZA:  I will go ahead and wrap this up.  So 

17 I think there's some inconsistencies, and I would call on the 

18 Commission to -- and the attorneys here to investigate the 

19 reality and what's really on record with the County Clerk as 

20 well as the Office of State Engineer.  Thank you very much.  

21 Appreciate your time.

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  

23 MS. ESPARZA:  Did you want any copies or not.  

24 MS. KELLY:  I'd like one.  

25 MS. ESPARZA:  Also, there is ran excerpt from a 
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 1 water rights attorney, Tessa Davidson, as far as the value of 

 2 those rights, and I've only included the last -- the last 

 3 page of those, but that's where the bulk of that discussion 

 4 is.  Thank you very much.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

 6 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Sarah, Sarah followed by 

 7 Jennifer McCabe, and Juan Reynosa.  

 8 MS. NIMAS DAYE:  Good afternoon, Chairman and 

 9 Commissioners.  My name is Sarah Nimas Daye.  I work in the 

10 South Valley at 2047 Tapia, Southwest.  I'm here today 

11 because I'm urging you not to approve the Santolina Level B 

12 Master Plan.  I really think it's going to impact the people 

13 I work with, which are small-scale farmers in the South 

14 Valley.  We've been growing food in Bernalillo County for the 

15 community and for the Albuquerque Public School, and we 

16 really concerned about the issue of water.  

17 I'm also concerned as someone that's been attending 

18 these hearings both at this level and the Bernalillo   

19 County Commission level in the process.  I know Commissioner 

20 Kelly asked about if the public had seen the documents, that 

21 she only received them yet yesterday at 4:00.  We haven't.  I 

22 thought that the hearing had been moved from July to today, 

23 so you would get the information that you needed to be able 

24 to discuss this.  It sounds like you haven't and that there 

25 was new information presented again by the applicant.  It's 

TR-145
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 something I've witnessed over the last few years is this new 

 2 information, last minute information and sort of rushing you 

 3 without having accurate information.  So I really hope that 

 4 you will not rush, that you will take the time to do 

 5 diligence on this, and I hope that you will not recommend 

 6 moving forward to the BCC.  Seems like there's a lot of 

 7 questions that you had, and I appreciate listening to the 

 8 questions, a lot of, now, things that aren't clear even with 

 9 the attorneys and in your own role and what you can do on 

10 this master plan Level B, and we heard inconsistencies from 

11 John Barney from Parks and Rec.  So lots and lots of 

12 questions from the public and from your Staff about what's  

13 happening.  So I hope that you will -- you will not move 

14 forward with this. 

15 I also want to share that I was supposed to be at work 

16 at 9:00 today, but I was here, and I know a lot of people 

17 can't do that, but I'm able to do that and work with my 

18 co-workers to spend the day here, but I know a lot of people 

19 have left that wanted to give public comment, and one of 

20 those folks left a statement with me to read.  So if it's 

21 possible when you get to her name, she asked if I would read  

22 her statement in her place because she had to go to work.  

23 Thank you.  

24 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Jennifer McCabe followed by -- 

25 okay.  Jennifer.  There you go.  
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 1 MS. McCABE:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman Chavez 

 2 and Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  I 

 3 represent Jan and David Esparza.  I am going to just make a 

 4 comment on item no. 12 -- on the condition no. 12, and it 

 5 does deal specifically with the Level A and the condition 

 6 that the Commission, the Bernalillo Commission put on it 

 7 about the Development Agreement.  

 8 The letter that was sent by Mr. Salazar in 2015 

 9 authorizing -- saying that they had the capacity to serve -- 

10 to take care of this proposed development was conditioned on 

11 two things.  Number one, that the developer either bring wet 

12 water rights to the table for their application or that they 

13 put up a bond so that the Water Utility Authority could 

14 acquire the requisite amount of rights to service this new 

15 proposed development, and neither one of those actions have 

16 been done yet.  So it seems on behalf of my clients from our 

17 perspective that to go forward on a Level B action is too 

18 early, because if, in fact, the developer brings water rights 

19 to the table and they're not appurtenant to the land in 

20 question, which Jan just referred to, then they're just going 

21 to have to go through another jurisdictional process, and 

22 that's the Office of the State Engineer and approving a 

23 transfer of water rights for a different purpose, place of 

24 use, point of diversion.  

25 And so it's not just the Water Utility Authority that 
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 1 has jurisdiction.  The State engineer actually has 

 2 superintending jurisdiction over rights on this.  So if we 

 3 were to go ahead with any Level B sort of action but we don't 

 4 know whether or not the Utility has requisite water rights, 

 5 we don't know -- as far as I'm aware of, there's been no bond 

 6 put forward as action number B from Mr. Salazar's letter, and 

 7 we certainly have not seen any water right application 

 8 provided by the -- to the State Engineer.  I'll stand for 

 9 questions.

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  I have a question for the 

11 attorney.  You know, she's saying something about conditions 

12 that the County Commission put?  

13 MS. McCABE:  The condition is if you've been going 

14 back and forth about the Level A condition about the 

15 Development Agreement -- 

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No, no, no.  But you said that the 

17 -- somebody from the County Commission required that they 

18 have water rights and.

19 MS. McCABE:  Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.  Let me 

20 clarify.  The letter that was written by Mr. Salazar, and I 

21 think it was in March of 2015, that said the Water Utility 

22 Authority has the capability to -- to service Santolina but 

23 that was based on two conditions.  They needed to either, A, 

24 bring water rights and actual wet water in with the 

25 application, or they needed to provide a bond.
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Who wrote those conditions?  

 2 MS. McCABE:  Those are part of the ordinances of 

 3 the Water Utility Authority for new uses.  So if you want to 

 4 have a new development, then you either have to bring -- 

 5 because there's two factors that play here.  We're already 

 6 over -- 

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Where do they need to bring them, 

 8 to the Water Utility Authority or to --

 9  MS. McCABE:  To the Water Authority, sir, so --

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Not us.

11 MS. McCABE:  No, but until they do that, anything 

12 subsequent -- if, in fact, it goes before the State Engineer, 

13 they want to transfer rights in, then everybody has an 

14 opportunity to protest a transfer, and typically 

15 administrative protests take anywhere between a year and 

16 three years at the State Engineer's level.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  But those protests aren't brought 

18 to us.  

19 MS. McCABE:  No, they're not brought to you, but my 

20 point being that -- that until the water is secure and 

21 assured, to do anything down the line seems to be preemptive 

22 because there's a second opportunity for an aggrieved party 

23 at the State Engineer's level to appeal to district court.  

24 So we're not talking about a quick solution unless the 

25 applicant has brought water rights, available water rights, 
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 1 or put up the bond for the Water Utility Authority to acquire 

 2 the water rights.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  That's all right.

 4 MS. HERTEL:  Were those conditions in the letter 

 5 that was written?  

 6 MS. McCABE:  It said subject -- I can't get a copy 

 7 of the letter for you, Mr. Chairman, Commissioner.  

 8 MS. HERTEL:  I've seen the letter or -- in the 

 9 past.  Okay?  But I'm just trying to go back.  The  

10 conditions were not explicitly stated in the letter to --

11 MS. McCABE:  No.  You had to go to the Water 

12 Utility Authority ordinance to find out what those are.  

13 MS. HERTEL:  Better reference those ordinances?  

14 MS. McCABE:  Correct.

15 MS. HERTEL:  The letter references those 

16 specifically.  It said, in accordance with all the conditions 

17 listed in some -- 

18 MS. McCABE:  Per our ordinances, and I'm sorry.  I 

19 don't have a copy of it right in front of me, but it 

20 referenced the specific requirements that are already in the 

21 Water Utility Authority's ordinance for new hookups.

22 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Thank you.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  Thank you.

24 MS. McCABE:  Thank you.

25 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Juan Reynosa, Travis 
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 1 McKenzie, Ramon Rivera.

 2 MR. McKENZIE:  I don't believe Juan Reynosa's here.  

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Name and address for the record.

 4 MR. McKENZIE:  My name is Travis McKenzie, 4015 

 5 Thaxton Avenue, Southeast, 87108.  Yeah, I guess I'll just 

 6 take my minute-and-a-half or two minutes, whatever it is, to 

 7 I guess express my frustration of also -- been in numerous 

 8 these meetings with this Board and as well as with the BCC, 

 9 and just a little disheartened on the democratic process and 

10 hearing public comment and really listening to the 

11 constituents and the community.  So I, kind of like some of 

12 predecessors, it's hard to think of what else to say.  I do 

13 farm in Atrisco at a 300-year-old family farm named Cornelio 

14 Candelaria Organics.  We use water every day to grow those 

15 crops, and water is one of my major concerns with this whole 

16 development plan, but specifically to the Level B, I just 

17 think with the way this whole process has happened this 

18 morning that I want to recommend a continuance, and that I 

19 don't know if I feel comfortable everybody having the right 

20 information to be able to approve something like this, and 

21 it's a little scary, because these big decisions effect our 

22 future generations, effect our children, effects farmers 

23 effects a lot of people that aren't able to be here on a 

24 weekday from 9:00 a.m. to now, almost 2:00.  So I just want 

25 to also honor all the people that can't be here during that 
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 1 time.  I've said that in numerous testimonies in these spaces 

 2 that it's very inconvenient for community to come testify 

 3 during the work week, and thank you to everybody who has 

 4 come, and I would just encourage you guys to be as diligent 

 5 as you can to see if you really feel comfortable approving 

 6 something like this, or if, in my perspective, you might not 

 7 have all the information.  And, again, when documents are 

 8 being submitted the day before or even today, that we don't 

 9 have time to go over those documents, and it's very 

10 disconcerting for us as the community.  And just to end that, 

11 you know, I feel the community's been very outspoken against 

12 this development plan, and we're just, you know, here to 

13 continue that struggle against resisting this development 

14 plan and trying to do smarter development for our city and 

15 for our future generations.  So thank you for the time today.

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.

17 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any questions?  Thank you.

19 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Ramon Rivera followed by E.  

20 Ward.

21 MR. RIVERA:  Thank you, Chairman Chavez and 

22 Commissioners.  My name's Ramon Rivera.  I live at 1314 Calle 

23 de las Lomas, Bernalillo, New Mexico, 87004.  

24 I'm here today to articulate my position to approving 

25 any other plans regarding Santolina development.  I'm a 
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 1 native born New Mexican, a father and currently a student of 

 2 behavior in the Bacherlors Environmental Design department at 

 3 University of New Mexico, minoring in sustainability.  And 

 4 the reason I was concerned, and I've been getting more 

 5 involved in the community engagement on many levels, 

 6 including working at Candelario Organics farm, and why I'm 

 7 attending this meeting is Santolina development has is 

 8 currently been discussed in the school of planning as 

 9 speculative development, and that's lands on -- I agree, from 

10 what I've seen today, that's the development that's being 

11 pushed forth.  It's a development that's serving the 

12 interests of a few at the expense of the community.  It's 

13 serving the interests of a few being able to make a profit, 

14 and it's not considered any -- the full impacts on the 

15 community, and it's not considering big entities trying to 

16 reach out and grab cheap land in the whole process fronting 

17 it as efforts to increase community services.  It's going to 

18 create a big strain on the community, and I just wanted to 

19 articulate my opposition to approving anymore plans regarding 

20 Santolina.  Thank you for your time.

21 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  E. Ward, after 

22 Virginia Necochea.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.  Name and address for 

24 the record.

25 MS. WARD:  Em Ward, 3201 Coors Boulevard, 
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 1 Northwest, R191, and I think I need to be sworn in, 'cause I 

 2 had to move my car when you did the group swearing in.  

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead and raise your right 

 4 hand.  

 5 (Note:  Witness sworn.)  

 6 MR. WARD:  I'm just -- I'm going to open briefly as 

 7 someone who recently presided over community meeting that 

 8 completely bolted out of control, I can appreciate this 

 9 desire and need for orderliness.  I know for only that 

10 sometimes the wiser course of action is to simply let it go 

11 and acknowledge that it is a judgment call, so I hope we're 

12 good.  

13 We have heard today a variety of issues regarding the 

14 Santolina Level B Master Plan including land use and water 

15 service, school funding, historical and natural preservation, 

16 the County's financial commitment, and the changing of 

17 unenforce -- of enforceable "shalls" to unenforceable 

18 "shoulds."   These remain unresolved.  

19 More troubling is that this plan is being presented with 

20 a request for approval with no public notice.  New material 

21 was only available this morning just before the hearing.  It 

22 would be wholly unwise to move forward at this time.  

23 I am a West Side resident.  We have overcrowded schools, 

24 poor jobs-housing ratio, and inadequate public transportation 

25 service.  These issues likely will worsen without a 
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 1 well-considered and defensible approach to further 

 2 development in the western County.  I oppose an incomplete 

 3 plan that fails to protect the plan, fails to protect the 

 4 water, fails to protect the skies, and the futures of our 

 5 children and fails to protect and wisely use our tax dollars.  

 6 Thank you very much for your time and for your public 

 7 service.

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  

 9 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Dr. Virginia?  Is she here?  Is 

10 she gone?  

11 SPECTATOR:  She had to leave.

12 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Christine Suazo, Suaz, 

13 Jaime Chavez, followed by Barbara and I'm not sure if it's 

14 Brother, Susan Sherman and Elaine Hebard.  

15 MR. CHAVEZ  I'd say good morning, but it's good 

16 afternoon.  My name is Jaime Chavez.  I'm not here to 

17 represent Jaime Chavez.  You have been getting my name wrong.  

18 It's J-a-i-m-e, every time you send it to me, please.  

19 I'm here to represent the Atrisco Grant today.  I have 

20 before you -- I have already passed out a number of items 

21 that are for your -- not for your consideration, just for 

22 your information.  And basically the most critical one here 

23 is a letter dated October 21st from -- to Mr. Dewey E. Cave, 

24 the executive director of the Mid Rio Grande Council of 

25 Governments, and in this letter to Mr. Cave -- and this is in 
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 1 your --

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  For the record, your address.  

 3 MR. CHAVEZ:  I'm going to give the land grant 

 4 address of our offices of the Atrisco Grant, and we're on 

 5 Rosendo Garcia in the South Valley, and we're located at 2708 

 6 Rosendo Garcia.  It's been on the records --

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Restart the clock again.  you have 

 8 two minutes.  

 9 MR. CHAVEZ:  No.  I don't have two minutes.  I have 

10 agency status.  It's here before you if you read this letter 

11 right now it'll tell you that, in fact, we are organized as a 

12 political public body.  Atrisco is fairly young entity, but 

13 we have acquired political subdivision status in 2012.  

14 I've also brought you -- this is regarding the state, 

15 and this is a book of -- on land grant law just for your 

16 understanding.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Give it to the Staff there for the 

18 record if you want to.  

19 MR. CHAVEZ:  So that way you can --

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You've got two minutes.

21 MR. CHAVEZ:  -- update yourself and begin to 

22 understand the land grant law.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You've got two minutes.

24 MR. CHAVEZ:  No.  I don't have two minutes.  I have 

25 agency status as it said in this letter from the New Mexico 
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 1 State Legislature.  I'd appreciate it, okay, if you would --

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  It doesn't matter, the status.

 3 MR. CHAVEZ:  You don't care?  

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No.  It's what we decide up here.   

 5 Staff doesn't --

 6 MR. CHAVEZ:  Well, you're making the wrong 

 7 decision.  Okay?  

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Uh?  

 9 MR. CHAVEZ:  You're making a very wrong decision by 

10 not approving the agency -- you don't have to approve the 

11 agency status.  

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You can call it whatever you want.  

13 MR. CHAVEZ:  We have the same type of organization 

14 as the County, okay, and also as the City.  The letter 

15 that -- 

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  But you're not going to sit up 

17 here and speak as long as you want.

18 MR. CHAVEZ:  What?  

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  You can -- you're not --

20 MR. CHAVEZ:  No.  I just want the agency status of 

21 the Atrisco Grant.  Thank you.  

22 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  I mean, Staff don't have status 

23 here.   

24 MR. CHAVEZ:  You gave that gentleman back here 15 

25 minutes.  Okay.  This is our land that we're talking about 
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 1 here, Atrisco land, common lands of Atrisco Grant.  Okay?  

 2 Let's get that straight as well.  This is under Treaty, and 

 3 if you violate the treaty, okay, you're going to have to 

 4 watch out for that as well.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Oh, yeah.  Are you threatening me 

 6 or what?  Are you threatening me?  

 7 MR. CHAVEZ:  Article II, Section 5 is a public --

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Are you threatening me?  

 9 MR. CHAVEZ:  I'm not threatening you.  I said the 

10 Body.  Okay?  

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So do your two minutes, and you're 

12 done.  

13 MR. CHAVEZ:  Really.

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.

15 MR. CHAVEZ:  What are you going to do?  

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  We'll call security.  

17 MR. CHAVEZ:  Okay.  I have agency status.  I have 

18 it here in my hand.  I won't tell you again.  

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  That's fine.  I mean, it doesn't 

20 matter.

21 MR. CHAVEZ:  So what -- what is agency status?  Why 

22 don't you clarify.  

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Nothing here.  I mean -- I decide 

24 how many minutes or who's going to speak and for how long.  

25 MR. CHAVEZ:  The Town of Atrisco Grant is talking 
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 1 with you right now.  

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Uh?  

 3 MR. CHAVEZ:  The Town of Atrisco Grant is talking 

 4 with you right now.   Anyhow, I'm not going to say anything.  

 5 Happy day of the dead to you.  Okay?  I am doing this for my 

 6 ancestors here and for our additional lands.  Okay?  

 7 Just for your information, everything is in here in this 

 8 package.  This comes from Mr. Jerome Padilla, the president 

 9 of the Atrisco Grant, a letter to Mr. Mark Sanchez, executive 

10 director, Bernalillo County Water Utility Authority, also, to 

11 Tom Blain of New Mexico State Engineer's Office, because I 

12 was going to read these into the record, and Mr. Jess Ward, I 

13 guess, who is retired now.  I don't know if he is or not, but 

14 New Mexico Office of the State Engineer.  That's in your 

15 packet right there.  You've done it again.  Thank you very 

16 much.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.

18 MS. CONNIE  CHAVEZ:  Barbara, and I think is it 

19 Bonham?  Susan Schuurman.  Elaine Hebard.   

20 MS. HEBARD:  Good afternoon.  My name is Elaine  

21 Hebard.  I live at 1513 Escalante, Southwest, 87104.  I'd 

22 like to address two points today.  Obviously the BCC -- 

23 sorry, the CPC has a lot of responsibility in terms of 

24 reviewing all of this material and making a recommendation to 

25 the BCC, and with that responsibility there are some things 
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 1 that you have as tools.  One of them is the PCC, the planned 

 2 community criteria.  

 3 In Level A for the planned community criteria it is true 

 4 that the BCC is the approval body for going forward.  

 5 However, in the planned community criteria, if you'll notice 

 6 for Level B, the B -- you are the approval body.  So when we 

 7 talk about the fact that you need to approve or the BCC needs 

 8 to approve the documents with the ABCWUA, you need -- you 

 9 guys are the approval body.  The locus of approval is clear, 

10 and it was clear in the PCC and in the Development Agreement 

11 that the County signed with the applicant.  

12 So I would suggest that -- respectfully that 

13 Mr. McGregor and Mr. Stomp need to work together to bring 

14 forward at least some documents showing the necessary 

15 criteria for you to make the recommendations for the BCC to 

16 act.

17 The second point that I want to make is that the TIDs, I 

18 know, are not before you, but the request is for 45 percent 

19 gross receipts taxes and 45 percent of the property taxes be 

20 kept within the TIDs for Santolina.  That will make a 

21 difference for the rest of the County and the City, and it 

22 hasn't been evaluated, and I don't see how you can recommend 

23 that this go forward without looking at those -- those 

24 values.  

25 We all know that there is about $710 million in the 
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 1 County that is not being covered with any type of funding for 

 2 infrastructure needs, unmet infrastructure needs.  The $36 

 3 million bond on the -- on the ballot for next week is 

 4 one-twentieth of that unmet need.  Those needs are going to 

 5 continue to grow, and if we don't have everybody contributing 

 6 their fair share but keeping it for green field development 

 7 will make us have bigger needs as we go into the future.  So 

 8 I would respectfully request that you do not recommend 

 9 approval of this proposal at this time but get the documents 

10 that you need to do your duty.  Thank you.

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  Any questions?  That's 

12 it.

13 SPECTATOR:  You had said earlier that you would 

14 allow a statement to be read from people that had to --

15 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Do we have a letter from somebody 

16 that -- 

17 SPECTATOR:  Yeah, she sent it to me.  You read her 

18 name, but she had to go to work, so she sent it and she gave 

19 her address.  

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Do you feel a letter that we 

21 can -- 

22 SPECTATOR:  It's on my phone.  She texted it to me.  

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Go ahead and read it.  

24 SPECTATOR:  Okay.  Her name is Sue Schuurman.  You 

25 said her name and her address is 2112 Charlevoix, Northwest, 
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 1 and she had to go to work.  This was her statement she wanted 

 2 to share with you:  

 3 "My name is Susan Schuurman, and I'm the coordinator of 

 4 the Albuquerque Center for Peace and Justice.  Commissioners 

 5 derive their power, authority, and legitimacy from the 

 6 consent of the people.  They promise to represent the 

 7 interests of their Chair constituents.  There has been 

 8 consistent and widespread opposition to the Santolina 

 9 development proposal.  If this Commission approves the 

10 project, it will be abrogating it's solemn and sacred 

11 responsibility to represent the interests of the community, 

12 and if it is approved, it will have represented the interest 

13 of a corporate entity financed by a foreign bank, Barclays of 

14 London.  I urge you to vote against this proposal based on 

15 the overwhelming opposition of your constituents who are 

16 trying to protect our limited water resources much like the 

17 water protectors trying to stop the Dakota access pipeline.  

18 Thank you."

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  Is that it?  The 

20 applicant, do you have any closing comments?  Keep them 

21 short.  Okay?  

22 MR. STROZIER:  I will.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

23 Just -- I just wanted to reiterate that I do have copies of 

24 the changes that I had kind of gone through with you all to 

25 the draft findings and conditions.  I'm happy to provide 
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 1 those to you all if you -- if you think it would be helpful, 

 2 and otherwise we are -- we are here to answer any additional 

 3 questions that you might have.  

 4 I -- I guess I should clarify the -- in terms of the -- 

 5 what came up in one the last commenter's about the authority, 

 6 and I think it is correct that the planned communities 

 7 criteria says that Level B plans are approved by the County 

 8 Planning Commission or by the City Planning Commission.  In 

 9 this case, the County also adopted the PC zone, which is very 

10 clear that the authority rests with the County Commission for 

11 this approval.  So I believe that's the -- that overrides the 

12 planned communities criteria and that's why this is a 

13 recommendation.  So I just thought I would clarify that and 

14 any other questions you have at this time, and I do have 

15 copies.  Thank you very much.

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Give those to Enrico.

17 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chair.  

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  

19 MS. KELLY:  I know everyone's tired, but we haven't 

20 talked at all about sequencing and --

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  About what?  

22 MS. KELLY:  The sequencing plan that they presented 

23 in this draft, which I think is an important thing, and we've 

24 all been asking to see it.  So could I ask Jim a couple of 

25 questions about it?  
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Sure.  Jim, one of the 

 2 Commissioners has some questions.

 3 MS. KELLY:  So just, first of all, I appreciate 

 4 your reinsertion of the trails and bikeways plan in this 

 5 version and also that you presented the phasing plan.  

 6 MR. STROZIER: Yes.

 7 MS. KELLY:  I think that's a welcomed addition.

 8 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you.  

 9 MS. KELLY:  I just -- is the plan consistent with 

10 the text where the text talks about the phase -- first phase 

11 residential area is located in an area with existing urban 

12 development and services capacity, and I don't have the page 

13 number.

14 MR. STROZIER:  So, yes.  So let me see if I can get 

15 to the phasing map myself, sequencing.

16 MS. KELLY:  It's like a page 113.  

17 MR. STROZIER:  One thirteen?  

18 MS. KELLY:  Something like that.  

19 MR. STROZIER:  So there are existing services and 

20 development just to the north of -- of that area, which is 

21 the existing Tierra West Mobile Home Park.  There are 

22 utilities and infrastructure along Atrisco Terrace, and so 

23 that's -- that's kind of the core.  We did talk at length 

24 with Staff about the first -- where the first phase should 

25 be; wanted to make sure it was in an area that was 
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 1 developable, had -- that we had parks and schools and those 

 2 trail and open space corridors through there in terms of the 

 3 first residential phase, and it was large enough to 

 4 accommodate that, and then between that area and the mobile 

 5 home park and the Interstate and the development along 

 6 Central Avenue is primarily the town center and 

 7 non-residential at that point.  So I believe we are 

 8 consistent with that in the sequencing plan.

 9 MS. KELLY:  Do the phases relate to the zoning 

10 districts that are in a different exhibit?  

11 MR. STROZIER:  Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Kelly, 

12 they do, and what we -- so we tried to look at, number one, 

13 the residential sequences and looked at the residential 

14 village areas and the portions of those.  We also looked at 

15 them separately, the non-residential sequences, and those 

16 were looked at distinctly, and then within those residential 

17 villages we looked at the -- those are obviously in our Level 

18 B land-use plan.  They're broken down into more precise 

19 different types of residential.  So we also tried to make 

20 sure that we had low density, medium density, high density 

21 and some of those services.  

22 So you'll notice in the table that goes along with that, 

23 there are some jobs associated with the residential 

24 sequencing, and that's primary related to schools and other 

25 types of facilities that would be within the residential 
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 1 village but aren't necessarily 100 percent residential.  So 

 2 we did tie those -- so we looked at the -- at the sequence 

 3 related to infrastructure and those types of issues.  We also 

 4 looked at it in terms of the zoning and then also the 

 5 land-use characteristics.  So we tried to put all three of 

 6 those together.

 7 MS. KELLY:  So that phasing plan becomes the basis 

 8 of your agreements that are being reached with the DOT and 

 9 APS?  

10 MR. STROZIER:  Yes.

11 MS. KELLY:  And do they relate to the TIDs?  

12 MR. STROZIER:  So they -- we have also made sure 

13 that they don't contradict that they are -- so the PID 

14 districts that were just -- that are approved by the County, 

15 these are consistent with those districts, and they're also 

16 consistent with the proposed TID districts as well.  Those 

17 aren't approved yet, and so we will need to look at if -- if 

18 and what gets actually approved by the -- by the Commission 

19 on that, but so far we've tried to make sure that there isn't 

20 any contradiction between those various district boundaries, 

21 and we are -- and this is very much -- and actually, when you 

22 talk about schools -- so when we initially laid this out, the 

23 school that we had shown was just to the west of that 

24 sequence.  We actually -- based on our conversation with 

25 Albuquerque Public Schools planning group, we actually 
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 1 shifted that.  That was one of the changes.  One of the few 

 2 changes that we made to the land-use plan is to make sure 

 3 that that school was in the first phase of the residential 

 4 village.  So we did adjust -- we did try to make adjustments 

 5 to make sure that that phase was a complete -- a complete 

 6 phase, if you will.

 7 MS. KELLY:  So is there a mechanism that the phases 

 8 will be complete and not incomplete?  That's been one of the 

 9 continuing concerns is that we have portions of subdivisions 

10 that don't have all the services that they need, like police 

11 and fire.  Is there a mechanism to be sure that each 

12 community is complete before the next one is initiated?  

13 MR. STROZIER:  I don't believe that there is a 

14 mechanism that -- it might -- that might be something that 

15 the Development Agreement addresses.  The plan does not.  

16 Although I will say that the -- there is a logic behind the 

17 sequencing of the different phases, and they are adjoining, 

18 adjacent to each other, and there is a logic behind those, 

19 and then there's a practical side of that, which is obviously 

20 that if we're extending infrastructure, building roads and 

21 waterlines and storm drainage systems, that we don't want -- 

22 we don't want to be doing that for one little group of houses 

23 over here and then spend a whole bunch of more money on the 

24 other side of the road and jump into phase two before we have 

25 a substantial amount of completion on -- on that first phase.  
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 1 So there's a practical side of that, but that's something 

 2 that could be addressed in the Development Agreement.  We 

 3 haven't really talked about that, per se, other than the 

 4 logic behind how those sequencing areas work and how they 

 5 make sense from a first, second, third.

 6 MS. KELLY:  I think that would go a long way 

 7 towards addressing the planned communities criteria.

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  Thank you.

 9 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you very much.

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Staff, closing comments.

11 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, just a couple of comments 

12 and just depending upon the direction that the Commission 

13 decides to take on this, there could be more discussion about 

14 findings and conditions that were drafted by Staff, and then 

15 the agent has responded, but I did want to respond to one 

16 comment, and it was something that came up.  I believe it was 

17 in a possible finding and then possible condition related to 

18 archeological study, and again, this is something that it may 

19 not be that critical to this plan moving forward, but I did 

20 read the language that was added in the plan, and it really 

21 didn't say anything about the content or the substance or 

22 anything that was revealed through the archeological study, 

23 and it just -- it said that, "Due to the sensitive nature, 

24 that it can't be discussed," and I don't agree with that.  I 

25 think there are some things that can be discussed that at 
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 1 least give some indication about what the study revealed and 

 2 is specific to Santolina.  

 3 And then, likewise, for the mitigation study, the 

 4 language that was provided was very generic, but it didn't 

 5 relate to the -- the findings of the archeological study.  So 

 6 that's where I was -- I was suggesting that more information 

 7 be added in the plan, not the sensitive information, but at 

 8 least something that gives a nature of what type of remains 

 9 exist in the Level B plan area, and we have talked about some 

10 of those in previous hearings, and there's no reason why 

11 there can't be a mention that, well, there is an aviation 

12 arrow.  There are so many prehistoric sites or historic 

13 sites, and then the mitigation strategy would tie into how 

14 those -- specifically those might be addressed.  So that's 

15 where that came from.  I just felt the language was 

16 insufficient that wouldn't provide any guidance as we proceed 

17 through the development of this -- of this community.  

18 On the other hand, the condition does request that there 

19 be -- and I guess there's a request to remove all the 

20 language, that there will need to be additional surveys as 

21 Level C plans or subdivision plans come in.  So -- but it's 

22 just -- you know, you read something, and it's not any 

23 substance to it.  I thought it really didn't do justice to 

24 the survey that was done.  

25 So that is my only comment except to say that, again, we 
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 1 -- the recommendation at the time the Staff Report was done 

 2 was -- and earlier today was for a continuance to allow the 

 3 documentation that has come in to be adequately compiled and 

 4 circulated and reviewed and in addition to the outstanding 

 5 conditions related to water and archeology -- I'm sorry.  

 6 It's been a long day, and the platting of the property, and 

 7 then some of the language that has been brought up today, but 

 8 again, that's -- that's up to you, and with that, I stand for 

 9 questions.

10 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Questions?  

11 MS. HERTEL:  I have a question.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.

13 MS. HERTEL:  So I'm going to go back to how all the 

14 data was collected and whatnot and put into the matrix, and 

15 can I -- can I assume that what is in the findings and 

16 conditions reflects the un -- the items left open in the 

17 matrix right now so that there's no other loose ends in the 

18 matrix that haven't been captured by the findings and 

19 conditions?  

20 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Hertel, it 

21 does reflect some of some of the -- a majority of the items 

22 in the matrix, but also, as we've been discussing that 

23 particular language, in Section 1.1 that we've gone back and 

24 forth about, and based on that, some additional language was 

25 added in the findings and conditions from -- particularly 

TR-170
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 from John, and so that hasn't been decided on, but it -- it 

 2 sounds like the applicant still wants to keep that language 

 3 and then, to remove the conditions that John Barney had 

 4 proposed that were related to that language.  I think he felt 

 5 that there needed to be some clarification about the process 

 6 for Parks and Open Space.

 7 MS. HERTEL:  No.  I'm not suggesting that we remove 

 8 any of the language.  I just wanted to make sure that all the 

 9 loose ends were gathered up and were reflected someway that 

10 there's not something that's missing from here, that all your 

11 agency comments and -- your agency comments are included in 

12 your findings and conditions.  We're not missing anything?   

13 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Hertel, I 

14 did go through the matrix and tried to pull out all the 

15 information that was outstanding whether it was for findings 

16 or conditions.

17 MS. HERTEL:  Okay.  Great.  So essentially this 

18 captures -- that last sentence we were talking about earlier, 

19 this captures the last 15 percent, approximately 15 percent 

20 of loose ends that had -- that were left in the matrix.  

21 That's great, and you've done a great job.  Thanks.

22 MS. VEREECKE:  Thank you.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  If not, 

24 close the floor.  

25 What's the pleasure of the Commission?  
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 1 MS. KELLY:  Well, in my opinion it should be 

 2 continued.  It just seems like there's a lot of outstanding 

 3 issues.  The public only saw the draft findings and 

 4 conditions -- I don't even know if they saw them today other 

 5 than probably were discussed by this group.  

 6 I still have continuing concerns about the water 

 7 agreement condition.  I'd like to see this have as a 

 8 condition that they reach an agreement with APS and the DOT, 

 9 and I really think we should take the finding out that 

10 they're able to develop with no net expense.  I just 

11 absolutely don't have any knowledge about that based on the 

12 materials we've been given.

13 MS. HERTEL:  What number is that?  

14 MS. KELLY:  Pardon me?

15 MS. HERTEL:  What number finding are you referring 

16 to?  

17 MS. KELLY:  Oh, it's 6, that it's, "Consistent with 

18 reserve area policies that call for substantial 

19 self-sufficiency."  So I'm just saying, I think that progress 

20 is being made.  I think that the phasing plan is good.  I 

21 mean, personally, and I've expressed this before, I think 

22 really if the size was more in keeping with what was expected 

23 of Level B, which is a much smaller area, I think a lot of 

24 this would be so much more manageable, but I don't think it's 

25 ready for approval today in my opinion.
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 1 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  I would agree.  I don't think 

 2 it's ready for approval today either, and I would like to see 

 3 a continuance, but I'd like to see some really clean 

 4 documents so that we can really know what we're looking at 

 5 ahead of time, findings and conditions that are presented, 

 6 and if the applicant has changes to those findings and 

 7 conditions, that we get those ahead of time as well.  Doing 

 8 it at the last minute with insertion, you know, it's 

 9 complicated.  This is a complicated thing, and in order for 

10 me to make a reasonable decision about moving this plan 

11 forward or not, I need to have the information that is -- 

12 that I can digest in a way that I can understand in order to 

13 make a good decision.  So I would make a recommendation for a 

14 60-day continuance, 60 days because of the holidays coming 

15 up.  You know, everybody has stuff to do.

16 MS. HERTEL:  I agree generally that we are not 

17 ready to act to this today.  I don't have a problem with the 

18 way the findings and conditions were written by Staff, but I 

19 am bothered by the fact that they weren't available to the 

20 public in a timely manner so the public could address and 

21 make comments on that.  So given that's my only concern that 

22 the public have ample time, I would -- I would suggest a 

23 30-days continuance, because I think -- you know, so much 

24 information is -- they have accomplished a great deal in the 

25 last 60 days or whatever it was since we last heard this, but 
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 1 I'm bothered that the -- once again, that the public didn't 

 2 have time to see the findings and conditions.  So 30-day 

 3 continuance would be my recommendation.

 4 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Is that a motion?  

 5 MS. HERTEL:  In the matter of SPR2016-0001, I make 

 6 a motion for a continuance for 30 days.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Do we have a second to that?  All 

 8 right.  As the Chairman, I don't make motions, but I can make 

 9 a second.  So I'll second that for the purpose of having a 

10 vote on it.  Okay.  Motion's been made.  It's been second.  

11 All those in favor signify by saying aye.

12 MS. HERTEL:  Aye.

13 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Aye.  Opposed?  

14 MR. COLLIE:  No.

15 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  No.

16 MS. SERNA:  No.

17 MS. KELLY:  No.

18 MS. HERTEL:  All right.  So if we don't pass that, 

19 what are we --

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Well, you know, we just wait for 

21 another motion, because any action that we take here, the 

22 applicant can appeal.  So it doesn't matter what we do.

23 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  So I'll make a motion.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.

25 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Agenda Item No. 9, SPR2016-0001 
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 1 for a 60-day continuance.

 2 MS. SERNA:  Second.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Moved and second.  All those in 

 4 favor signify by saying aye.

 5 COMMISSION:  Aye.

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Opposed?  Okay.  Sixty days is 

 7 what November -- January, the January meeting.

 8 MR. COLLIE:  Mr. Chairman, can I make a request?  

 9 Since we have 60 days, it would help me -- and this, I guess, 

10 is a request to Staff.  It would help me if -- if someone 

11 spent a little time maybe the classic matrix and picked out 

12 those areas where there's continuing to be substantive 

13 difference between Staff comments and what the applicant 

14 wants, so that it's very clear to this Commission what it is 

15 we need to decide and give direction on.  It seems to me we 

16 just kind of wander from one topic to another and wait until 

17 somebody brings it up, and it would be very helpful to know 

18 what are the critical issues the Commission really needs to 

19 put its foot on and to work through.

20 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I agree with that.  And any 

21 Commissioner feels free to call Staff at any time and, you 

22 know, discuss that.  So -- but I agree with you.  Thank you.  

23 Any other business, Enrico?  

24 MR. GRADI:  Chairman Chavez, Members of the 

25 Planning Commission, no further business.  Stand for any 
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 1 questions.

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Questions of Staff?  No?  We're 

 3 ready for a motion to adjourn.

 4 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  So moved.  

 5 MS. SERNA:  So moved.  Second.  

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Second.  All those in favor, 

 7 signify by saying aye.

 8 COMMISSION:  Aye.  

 9 (Note:  Hearing adjourned at 2:22 p.m.)  
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 1 (Note:  Hearing in session at 9:06 a.m.)

 2 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Let's get this meeting started.  

 3 Planning Staff.

 4 MR. GRADI:  Good morning.  Can you hear me?  Good 

 5 morning, Chairman Chavez, Members of The county Planning 

 6 Commission.  This is a one of several special hearings to 

 7 hear the Level B Santolina Master Plan request.  We have 

 8 case number SPR2016-0001.  

 9 As you all know, this case is being divided up into 

10 various sections pertaining to the different elements of the 

11 Level B Planned Communities criteria.  Today's hearing will 

12 involve primarily around the issue of transportation, and we 

13 have a number of speakers here today.  We will begin the 

14 hearing this morning with Catherine VerEecke, who will give 

15 an introduction.  Staff has provided the Planning Commission 

16 and any else that's interested with a format for the hearing 

17 today.  We will begin with the Staff introduction, County 

18 Public Works Staff taking approximately 30 minutes.  We have 

19 time for agencies such as Mid-Region Council of Governments 

20 and New Mexico Department of Transportation.  Then we'll 

21 move into the applicant's and agent's presentation, and no. 

22 5, we have half an hour allocated for public comment.

23 If there's any questions regarding the format or any 

24 other items, I stand for questions.  With that -- 

25 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No.  That's fine.  
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 1 MS. VEREECKE:  Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members 

 2 of the Commission.  My name is Catherine VerEecke, and I'm 

 3 with the Planning Department, and I have been coordinating 

 4 the Santolina case since it first began in 2013.  

 5 And just as a review, the CPC considered this case in 

 6 2000 -- the Level A plan, 2014, recommended approval to the 

 7 County Commission of the Level A plan, and the County 

 8 Commission approved the Level A plan in June of 2015.

 9 So what is transpiring now is the review of a Level B 

10 plan, which is for a portion of the entire 13,700 acre site, 

11 and this request is for about 4,200 acres.  So it is for a 

12 specific portion of the site and, then, for more specific 

13 details of this specific portion of the Santolina area.  So 

14 just to keep in mind that the general concept of Santolina 

15 has been approved, and now, we're focusing on how Santolina 

16 will build out.

17 So as Enrico said and as you recall, the Commission has 

18 elected to have a series of four hearings for Santolina 

19 Level B plan.  So this is the second -- this is the first in 

20 the series of hearings.  The focus is on transportation.  

21 The next hearing will be in May will be on land use and 

22 zoning, and what has happened with this -- this Level B 

23 request is the general plan has been submitted back in 

24 January.  That's been under review.  There is a section 

25 within the plan on transportation, which is one of the key 
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 1 elements that really determines the network and the 

 2 functioning of the Santolina development as it builds out.

 3 It also relates to land use, and they -- land use and 

 4 transportation go together.  The transportation needs to be 

 5 adequate to service the proposed land uses.  

 6 So since the last hearing in March where the Commission 

 7 decided to have the series of hearings, there have been 

 8 discussions between Staff and agencies and the applicant 

 9 focusing on transportation.  At the end of March, there was 

10 a matrix that was submitted focusing on transportation and 

11 how the transportation plan addresses any of the issues that 

12 have been raised by Staff about transportation and how the 

13 applicant and the agents will be addressing those, whether 

14 it is within this process, like by revising their plan or by 

15 some other action such as submitting additional plans.  So 

16 this has been available since March.  

17 There has also been another document that has been 

18 submitted about the mitigation of impacts of the development 

19 on different areas near by Santolina.  So those have all 

20 been under review to for the last few weeks.  They've also 

21 been available on the website, bernco.gov/santolina, and my 

22 understanding is there has been a number of discussions 

23 between our Staff and of the applicant in trying to work 

24 through the issues.  So, again, the focus of the discussion 

25 today is on transportation, and with that, I will hand over 
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 1 to my associate, Richard Meadows from Public Works, and he's 

 2 going to go into greater detail about where we are with the 

 3 review of the transportation element.  Thank you.

 4 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you, Catherine.  

 5 My name's Richard Meadows, and I'm the technical 

 6 planning manager with the infrastructure planning department 

 7 within Public Works, and good morning to Mr. Chair and 

 8 Commission.

 9 So I want to start out with just going over the Planned 

10 Communities Criteria for a Level B master plan such as 

11 Santolina for transportation.  So -- so there's seven items 

12 that are listed in the criteria, and I'm going to be going 

13 through each one, and I have the various comments that have 

14 been brought up from -- from Public Works and from various 

15 agencies for -- listed under each of the criteria.

16 So there's the -- there's the overall build-out of 

17 Santolina estimated to build out by 2065.  This is the Level 

18 A that was approved last year.  So everything that we're 

19 presenting at Level B must tie back to Level -- Level A.  

20 So -- so the first thing is back when Level A was 

21 approved, there was a number of conditions that were 

22 approved with it by the BCC, and so I've listed those here, 

23 and so I wanted to report today that all of the conditions 

24 have been met; that the consultant did submit a revised 

25 Level A transportation plan, and the main thing in that plan 
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 1 was that it used the new 2040 forecast.  So the Mid-Region 

 2 Council of Governments adopted a Metropolitan Transportation 

 3 Plan last year, and it has new population forecasts through 

 4 2040, and so one of the conditions of approval was to redo 

 5 the transportation plan based on that new forecast as well 

 6 as there were a number of things that we asked be modified 

 7 in the road networks, such things as that there be more of a 

 8 grid pattern to the road network, that in the proposed urban 

 9 center that the arterials go around the arterial of the 

10 urban center rather than through the middle of the arterial 

11 center, that there be a new parallel road to I-40, that 

12 there be better connectivity to the south and the north from 

13 the development.  

14 And one of the new things in the -- in the plan is that 

15 Paseo Del Norte is actually shown as a freeway with the 

16 right-of-way for a freeway like is being proposed north of 

17 I-40.  So the -- so the transportation analysis takes all of 

18 that into account.  

19 Okay.  So then we get Level B, which we're going to 

20 discuss today, and so we have to evaluate it according to 

21 the criteria, and there's a number of things that we ask 

22 that the consultant look at, and down halfway on the page, 

23 one the main things is the Planned Communities Criteria asks 

24 that there be an air quality study prepared, and so one of 

25 the things that's happening this year is that Bernalillo 
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 1 County, as of June, will no longer be a non-attainment with 

 2 the EPA for carbon monoxide.  So previously the Air Quality 

 3 Board for the City and the County would model a large master 

 4 plan like Santolina, like they also did with the 

 5 Metropolitan Transportation Plan, to see if there were air 

 6 quality impacts.  Well, because this non-attainment status 

 7 will be in effect, they will no longer do that, but we're 

 8 still -- because it is a criteria, a required criteria in 

 9 our Planned Communities Criteria, we have asked that the 

10 consultant still prepare an air quality study.  They will be 

11 hiring a subconsultant to do that, and we ask that it be 

12 presented to this Body at the June environmental meeting on 

13 the master plan.

14 Okay.  So one thing we're very pleased about in Level B 

15 is that it's -- we have more phasing to it.  So we have a 

16 2025 phase as well as a 2040 phase, and that just gives us 

17 more information that we can look at and consider.

18 So this is what the 2025 layout of the road network 

19 will look like.  So you can see from north to south Atrisco 

20 Vista is a main -- it's an existing roadway, but it will 

21 became a main spine and as well as Dennis Chavez serving on 

22 the southern end of the development.  

23 So I've kind of circled or highlighted some information 

24 that's presented with the 25 -- 2025 plan.  For instance, in 

25 terms of development, we have 6,200 new housing units being 
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 1 proposed, and we have 8,677 jobs being proposed.  So a 

 2 jobs-to-housing ratio of 1.47.  And that's a really key 

 3 number for this discussion today.  Everything revolves 

 4 around that jobs-to-housing ratio.

 5 And then I've also circled some other information about 

 6 the road network.  For instance, some of the -- some of the 

 7 roads reach capacity, and we're going to talk about the 

 8 impacts of traffic from those roads exceeding capacity, and 

 9 you can kind of just see that -- you know, that there are 

10 some roads that we really need to focus on.

11 I sort of wish I had a pointer.  Okay.  So here's the 

12 2040 network, and you can see it's much more built out.  

13 Again, you've got Atrisco Vista.  You've got -- now, you've 

14 got Paseo Del Volcan on the -- sort of the west end of the 

15 development.  

16 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chair.  

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Hold on just a minute.  

18 MS. KELLY:  I'm sorry.  

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.  

20 MS. KELLY:  So, Richard, can you just point us to 

21 what you're looking at so we can see it on this graphic?  

22 MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I would need to be able to 

23 point to the screen, so --

24 MS. KELLY:  Is there an attachment that's -- 

25 MR. MEADOWS:  Let's see.  Let me get my mouse.  
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 1 Let's see.  Okay.  Do you see it now?  

 2 MS. SERNA:  Is it -- what we wanted is on our 

 3 screen.

 4 MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.

 5 MS. SERNA:  You're not getting it?  Okay.  

 6 MR. MEADOWS:  See anything?  Okay.  All right.  

 7 That helps.  Okay.  So 20 -- thank you for that, 

 8 Commissioner.

 9 So okay.  Now, this is Paseo Del Volcan.  In 2040 that 

10 becomes a major arterial north and south.  This is Atrisco 

11 Vista.  This is the beginning of the loop road that will 

12 circle the development, and now, you've got -- the Gibson 

13 west extension comes up the escarpment, and that's serving 

14 kind of the middle part of the development, and this is, of 

15 course, Dennis Chavez, but you've also got this -- this is 

16 the industrial park over here off of Shelly Road as part of 

17 Level B as well, and you can see this is the parallel road 

18 that we asked to be added to the network so that the traffic 

19 is not all on the I-40 frontage road.  So that's a real 

20 important piece of the network.

21 So now you can see in 2040, total units, 10,500 

22 approximately housing units and then the jobs, about 12,800, 

23 and you can also see the breakdown by the types of jobs.  

24 You've got basic retail and service.  So you can see -- you 

25 know it's assumed that there'll be a lot of basic industrial 
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 1 kinds of jobs created as well as service-type jobs that are 

 2 being proposed.

 3 Over here on this chart you can begin to see that 

 4 there's -- well, here, you can see that the network, again, 

 5 in some places is exceeding capacity.  So those are -- those 

 6 are the roadways that we need to be concerned about.  Okay.  

 7 So --

 8 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Can I ask you a question before 

 9 you move on?  

10 MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chair.

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  When you're doing the roads, do 

12 you have communications or -- like, with Albuquerque Public 

13 Schools or the Albuquerque bus network, where bus stops 

14 should be in here and where school buses should have 

15 parking?  You know, one of the things that I see everywhere, 

16 especially with the schools, is the children are out there 

17 on the street waiting for the bus, and if we're planning for 

18 roads and streets around here, we have a high school up 

19 there that I assume a lot of the kids go on the bus.  Are 

20 those things considered into your plan when you're figuring 

21 these roads out, where bus stops are and where school bus 

22 stops are?  

23 MR. MEADOWS:  Mr. Chair and Commission, that's a 

24 great question, and I didn't -- I didn't see that 

25 considered.  The consultant can talk about that when they 
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 1 present, because I didn't see that in the report.

 2 Now, I do know that they're looking at school sites, 

 3 and they are considering enrollment in terms of the traffic 

 4 that's generated.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I understand that -- 

 6 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- but I think your department 

 8 should be looking at these kids when they're getting picked 

 9 up, that they're being picked up in a safe place, and if 

10 we're designing almost a city -- 

11 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- you know, it just doesn't make 

13 sense to me that we're not taking this into consideration as 

14 to where, you know, putting -- you know, if we're putting -- 

15 we're requiring bus stops and requiring school bus stops.  I 

16 think that's very important, because right now, in our 

17 transportation in the City and the County, I don't think 

18 there's such a thing, and the school buses are parking in 

19 the middle of the street to pick up kids, which, you know, 

20 they have their signs and everything else, but it's still 

21 dangerous for our kids, and I think that's something that we 

22 should start considering into our road systems.

23 MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Yeah.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  

24 That's -- that's a great suggestion, and we'll take another 

25 look at it.  I know at this level, Level B, we're looking at 
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 1 kind of the major roads, the arterials, and the collectors, 

 2 and generally those bus stops are on more of the residential 

 3 roads, but we will certainly make sure that that is part of 

 4 the report.

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.

 6 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Oh, wait.  My other question is, 

 8 does the department communicate or get together with the 

 9 school system, APS, or somebody about those roads when 

10 you're -- is it MRCOG involved to -- who is -- would get 

11 these people involved, you know, in here as far as you know?  

12 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.  In fact, Christie just -- 

13 Mr. Chair, just came up and reminded that we do -- the 

14 County does sit on the blues team, and that's a committee 

15 that APS has to look at traffic issues related to school 

16 locations.  So we are pretty involved with APS.

17 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So we do have comments in here 

18 somewhere about -- from APS about comments of road 

19 department or whatever's being done?  

20 MR. MEADOWS:  I'll let Catherine answer that.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  We'll get to that later.  

22 I just kind of wanted to bring that into the discussion.

23 MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Thank you.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Uh-huh.  

25 MR. MEADOWS:  So some of the comments we received 
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 1 about the traffic circulation system have to do with 

 2 functional classification, that there be consistent language 

 3 in how those -- those roadways are being referred to.  We 

 4 asked that some design techniques be added related to green 

 5 infrastructure and things like adaptive signals that the 

 6 County is using on some of our major arterials.

 7 And then both the City and MRCOG and DOT had a number 

 8 of comments related to the circulation system.  They 

 9 reminded us, for instance, that Gibson Boulevard is a city 

10 roadway, and it needs to be built to their standards, that 

11 as it goes through the escarp- -- up the escarpment, enough 

12 right-of-way needs to be considered for that.  MRCOG brought 

13 up the point that we really need to look at how roadways 

14 will be built out and widened as the build-out and the 

15 phasing of the development occurs.

16 They asked us to look at something called "last mile 

17 connections."  So that, for instance, is if somebody rides 

18 the bus -- and there is some information in here about a 

19 public transportation system -- that there be trail and 

20 bikeway and sidewalk connections for those people to get 

21 from the bus stop to their homes, and that would apply as 

22 well to school buses, to look at the Route 54 transit 

23 corridor as it ties into the development, things like that, 

24 better -- more clarity as far as how the document refers to 

25 the Metropolitan Transportation Plan scenarios.  
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 1 And then DOT wanted to remind us that we need to be 

 2 acquiring right-of-way early and up front of the 

 3 development, especially for quarters like PDV, that we look 

 4 at the cost-sharing for how we're going to build those 

 5 facilities, especially those new interchanges that are being 

 6 proposed with the development.  

 7 So overall, based on the jobs-to-housing ratio 

 8 assumptions, the network performs pretty well.  So, again, 

 9 if they reach that 1.7 jobs-per-housing unit, the network 

10 performs pretty well, and so we look at things like are 

11 there acceptable level of services.  There's some exceptions 

12 where it doesn't quite do as well as we'd like, and I'm 

13 going to talk about that.  Does it reduce the VMT or vehicle 

14 miles traveled?  It does do that by 2025, but by 2040, 

15 there's a slight increase in vehicle miles traveled, and 

16 that usually -- that portends that people are having to 

17 drive farther, and maybe it's causing some air-quality 

18 issues when we see an increase in VMT.  So that's one of the 

19 reasons why we're asking for that air-quality study.  

20 And then they do in the report talk about something 

21 called "transportation demand management," and that's very 

22 important to us at the County, that we work with the major 

23 employers that locate in these industrial parks and business 

24 centers, that they do provide things like flex time, that 

25 they do provide incentives for their employees to carpool or 

TR- 15
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 take the bus, so forth.  So there's a number of things that 

 2 can be done in the -- in the private sector with the 

 3 County's encouragement to -- to bring down the number of 

 4 single-occupancy vehicles.

 5 So, again, I kind of summarized some of the findings in 

 6 the 2025 phase and the 2040 phase, and I will, if this works 

 7 -- so, for instance, you'll see by 2025, vehicle miles 

 8 traveled, that goes down a bit.  Vehicle hours traveled, so 

 9 the amount of time you're spending in your vehicle, that 

10 goes down significantly, and then vehicle hours of delay, 

11 that goes down significantly, and so those are all good 

12 things, and this is compared to the trend scenario that's in 

13 the Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  So with Santolina, 

14 with creating jobs in this area, fewer people will have to 

15 cross the river.  More people can stay on the West Side, and 

16 so that would generally improve the transportation 

17 experience or the motorist's or the commuter's experience on 

18 the -- on the network.  Vehicle hours of delay, that's 

19 generally talking about congestion, so the congestion would 

20 come down.

21 So by 2040 though, again, some of the indicators look 

22 better.  The one we were concerned about is vehicle miles 

23 traveled goes up by 2 percent approximately over what's 

24 being projected in the trend scenario of the Metropolitan 

25 Transportation Plan.  And this -- for everybody's 
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 1 information, this -- this is the Mid-Region Council of 

 2 Government's Metropolitan Transportation Plan for 2040.  It 

 3 was adopted last year by Bernalillo County as well as all 

 4 the other jurisdictions in the region.  

 5 And just like for land-use planning, the County Staff 

 6 uses the Comprehensive Plan.  Transportation Planning Staff, 

 7 this is our Bible.  This is what we -- we follow.  So 

 8 everything in Santolina is being compared to how it performs 

 9 against what's in the Long-Range Transportation Plan.  

10 So a little bit more about the MTP.  So there's two 

11 scenarios in it.  There's a trend scenario, which this is 

12 basically if things build out like they have in the past, it 

13 will continue, and that's what the population forecast is 

14 based on.  

15 But then there was also what they called a preferred 

16 scenario, and the preferred scenario tries to encourage more 

17 in-fill, more development around employment centers and 

18 activity centers and along the major transit corridors, and 

19 so I wanted you to see while Santolina does very well 

20 against the trend scenario, it doesn't do quite as well 

21 against this preferred scenario of the MTP.  

22 So other things that are in the Metropolitan 

23 Transportation Plan is that we try to improve our existing 

24 network over building a lot of new roads, and we try to have 

25 more transit projects to deal with -- with the traffic 

TR- 17
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 conditions in the region, and then the preferred scenario, 

 2 like I said, encourages more development to happen around 

 3 these activity centers, and I do have to say, Santolina does 

 4 provide a number of activity centers, employments centers, 

 5 and so they are using this kind of centers and corridors 

 6 type of strategy as well.

 7 But you can kind of see that -- if I can get my mouse 

 8 to work -- in the Long-Range Transportation Plan, a number 

 9 of the proposed new roadways to be built that are publicly 

10 funded are shown in blue, and then the purple roadways are 

11 proposed to be privately funded.  So -- so the Long-Range 

12 Transportation Plan really encourages us to use our public 

13 transportation dollars to build more of our infrastructure 

14 where it already exists, and it encourages private funding 

15 for the -- for infrastructure that's located farther out in 

16 new developments.

17 So in terms of how it confers -- compares to the 

18 preferred scenario, you can -- you can see it still does 

19 very well in terms of creating jobs for Santolina, and .73 

20 is a number for the whole West Side that you would see with 

21 Santolina.  It still does better than the trend, and it does 

22 better than the preferred on other things.  However, the 

23 preferred scenario of the MTP does much better.  Vehicle 

24 miles traveled decreases by 5 percent.  Vehicle hours 

25 traveled, 17 percent.  Twenty-eight percent for delay, and 
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 1 for river crossings, with Santolina it kind of breaks even.  

 2 It's -- doesn't increase, doesn't decrease.  With the 

 3 preferred scenario you get a decrease in the river 

 4 crossings.

 5 In the MTP they also have emissions.  So we'll see when 

 6 we get the air-quality study how it kind of stacks up, but 

 7 with the preferred scenario, there would be an 8 percent 

 8 decrease in the greenhouse gasses, like CO2.  

 9 So other -- other comments had to do with roadway 

10 cross-sections, and we like the roadway cross-sections in 

11 general.  They conform to the design guidelines that are in 

12 the MTP.  There's one that County Development Review Staff 

13 is a little concerned about that would have very narrow 

14 roadways for residential areas.  So we're recommending if 

15 that's used, that it either be for private streets or there 

16 be a variance request.  

17 We also ask that there be an addition of a -- of 

18 another category of roadway, a major local that would have a 

19 60-foot right-of-way.

20 Okay.  So this -- this criteria on this page refers 

21 back to what I mentioned earlier, transportation demand 

22 management.  It's a way to reduce the number of people that 

23 are driving in single-occupancy vehicles, so -- and 

24 Santolina will do a lot of these things.  It provides 

25 pedestrian and bicycle facilities.  It provides dedicated 
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 1 transit lanes and future roadways.  There's good 

 2 connectivity to employment centers and commercial centers, 

 3 and they're located along these transit routes, and then it 

 4 recommends, like I mentioned earlier, that there be 

 5 coordination between the County, Rio Metro, MRCOG, ABQ Ride, 

 6 with employers to encourage more people to carpool or use 

 7 transit.  

 8 And I have some comments that I added in terms of 

 9 transit -- adding more transit information to the plan and 

10 adding more connectivity to the trail network that's in the 

11 plan.  So I'll show you on these slides.

12 This shows the proposed -- and this probably wouldn't 

13 happened until 2040, but it shows the proposed transit 

14 network on the north part of the development would connect 

15 to Central, and Central's where the new rapid transit 

16 project is being proposed.  So there would be a connection 

17 to the transit center that's at Unser and Central, and then 

18 on the south, there would be a major transit line along 

19 Dennis Chavez, and that would connect to the Rail Runner 

20 station, and then I just asked that they add some of the 

21 other transit networks that exist in the area around 

22 Santolina.  And then on this map, I've identified some areas 

23 where we're asking for better connectivity of the trail 

24 network that's being proposed in Santolina to better connect 

25 these -- where people live and where they work.
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 1 Okay.  So this criteria talks about maintaining level 

 2 of service.  So we evaluate all transportation projects in 

 3 terms of how well do they perform for level of service, and 

 4 so for the most part, the roadways do well, again because 

 5 there's going to be lots of jobs on the West Side.

 6 So I'm just going to go straight to the list.  So this 

 7 is a list of about 22 intersections where the level of 

 8 service doesn't perform as well as we'd like, and we usually 

 9 refer to that level of service D, and these would be inter 

10 -- interchanges or intersections where the capacity would be 

11 exceeded, and there would need to be some improvements made 

12 to those facilities.

13 So, for instance, if it's an interchange, it might 

14 require that you add some lanes to the ramps, or it may 

15 require that you install traffic signals there.  Some of the 

16 interchanges, it may require that you have more through 

17 lanes, or you have more -- add more turn lanes to them to 

18 move traffic better.

19 So those are -- those are all the intersections that 

20 were identified, and so the consultant did provide us a 

21 report, a mitigation report that in detail looks at all 

22 those intersections, tells us what do we need to do to bring 

23 them up to acceptable performance and how much will it cost.  

24 So, again, on a map, you can kind of see where -- where 

25 these intersections and interchanges are located, and you 
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 1 know -- for instance, this would be Paseo Del Volcan 

 2 interchange, which it doesn't exist yet, needs to -- needs 

 3 to be constructed.  This is Atrisco Vista, future 118th 

 4 Street interchange, 98th Street interchange and the 

 5 approaches to it on the Interstate.  This would be Gun Club 

 6 and 100 -- I'm sorry.  This would be Gibson and 118th 

 7 Street.  This is Dennis Chavez.  So you've got Unser and 

 8 Coors and Isleta.  All of those links are going to be 

 9 effected.

10 Over here you can see sections of the Dennis Chavez 

11 across the river are effected.  There's some sections of 

12 Central Avenue that are effected.

13 So we asked the consultant, "Well, how -- how would we 

14 mitigate the impacts from -- from Santolina on these 

15 intersections?"  And they did provide that report.  So I've 

16 kind of listed some of the things that are proposed to 

17 improve them.  The cost, about $65 million to make the 

18 improvements of these locations by 2040.

19 So we also asked what are the costs for building all of 

20 these new roads and the interchanges, improvements, 

21 transportation improvements to the area, and this is 

22 provided in that mitigation report for your information.

23 Now, in this -- in this transportation section, we 

24 don't deal with how that's going to be paid for.  The 

25 consultant had said -- has said that's going to be in the 
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 1 Development Agreement, but those are -- those are things to 

 2 consider.  How -- how will it be paid for, private 

 3 financing, TIDs, impact fees, federal local bonds?  So, you 

 4 know, how much public funding?  How much private funding?  

 5 Is it a mix of the two?  Those things need to be worked out, 

 6 but here's the cost.  So by 2025, about $100 million in 

 7 improvements.  2040, almost another $100 million.  So those 

 8 are things to consider.

 9 So finally, we asked for some conditions of approval, 

10 and so we asked by -- within 30 days of the BCC's approval 

11 of Level B that we receive a revised Level B transportation 

12 master plan with all the technical documents that addresses 

13 all the comments that have been brought up by the agencies 

14 and by us, and that those things be added to the text or to 

15 the maps, and we asked that by -- also by that time that the 

16 Development Agreement also addresses how are these things 

17 going to be paid for?  How will that be a no net cost to the 

18 County.  We'd like to see that.  

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Hold on just a -- 

20 MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You know, we get into the no net 

22 cost.  As far as we're concerned we have to follow that.  

23 Now, that's not something that we're going to decide here.  

24 That's something that the County Commission has to -- 

25 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.
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 1 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- decide.

 2 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  So, you know -- I mean, when it 

 4 comes to approving something with those agreements in it, 

 5 it's not what we're going to approve.

 6 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  It's something that the County 

 8 Commission only has the authority to approve.

 9 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  And that's 

10 why I have it after the BCC approval that that be spelled 

11 out.

12 And then -- so then the second part is what are the 

13 things that we would like approved by the time this -- this 

14 Body approves Level B, and so we'd like to receive an 

15 addendum to -- to the Level B document that has all the 

16 comments addressed, and they -- and the consultant has 

17 provided us with a spreadsheet, as Catherine mentions, that 

18 tells how they're going to address the comments.  So we'd 

19 like that to be an addendum to Level B, and then we'd like 

20 that air-quality study to be completed and presented to this 

21 Body by June 2015.  

22 So that basically concludes my presentation, and I'll 

23 stand for any comments and/or questions.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  I have a comment.  You know, 

25 getting back to the transportation and the -- and I saw it 
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 1 where you addressed transportation with the -- with the City 

 2 and the buses and all these things.  I'm kind of amazed that 

 3 we're not doing the same thing with the public schools.  

 4 Public schools probably have, I don't know, probably more 

 5 buses than the City of Albuquerque has, because I think the 

 6 Albuquerque Public School is handling their own bus system 

 7 now, and you know, you drive -- you drive down a road, like 

 8 in the South Valley, and school buses stop in the middle of 

 9 the street with no intersection.  When the kids get off, 

10 they have to cross right there in the middle, and here we 

11 are actually building like a new city out there, and we're 

12 not even taking those into consideration.

13 One of the things -- and you were talking about 

14 right-of-ways, and that's why this is important.  I think 

15 those right-of-ways and everything else should be negotiated 

16 with the developer as to where those school buses and every 

17 -- and I'm sure the -- I don't know how APS handles their 

18 routes or whatever, but I'm sure they do have a system, and 

19 I know one thing right now is they don't have nowhere to 

20 park their buses when they're picking up kids.  So they have 

21 to park in the middle of the street, and I think if we're 

22 planning a new area or new city or whatever this is going to 

23 be here, that we should be taking in -- transportation 

24 should be taking that into consideration, because the 

25 schools are there.  The kids are going to be there.  It's 
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 1 not something that's going to come.  If -- if this thing is 

 2 built, those things are going to happen immediately, and 

 3 probably before the jobs come the kids are going to be going 

 4 to school.  

 5 So, you know, I'm really -- I'm really concerned about 

 6 that, because like I said, I can see it where we're doing 

 7 something in the Valley or somewhere where the roads are 

 8 already in there, but here we have an opportunity that the 

 9 roads are going to be built, and I think that we should 

10 think of everything that we can to make this thing work 

11 better, not only for jobs and everything else, but the 

12 schools, too, because I've noticed that that's one of the 

13 things.  There's overcrowding, transportation of schools, 

14 and everything is coming into play every time we build 

15 something, and we usually take the schools after it's built, 

16 and then we start figuring what we're going to do there.  

17 And I think we, as planners, need to start thinking of 

18 those things before.  I know we're not going to get 

19 everything right, but we should at least be planning for it 

20 in the future, and I think this is an opportunity for us to 

21 include -- and I'm talking about bus -- bus stops for -- for 

22 the school system and where they can park on the side of the 

23 road and load the kids and get them off. 

24 The other thing is to have them close to an 

25 intersection where they can across the street.  Right now, 
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 1 they stop in the middle of the block, and kids are running 

 2 across the street there, and it's -- that's very dangerous.  

 3 So I think that's just planning that we need to do, and I 

 4 haven't heard anything in that area -- 

 5 MR. MEADOWS:  Right.

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- as far as planning, and I 

 7 don't know if the County is talking or the developer is 

 8 talking to the schools about this, because I know the 

 9 schools have their system for transportation, and this 

10 should be included in this plan.

11 MR. MALRY:  Mr. Chairman.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.

13 MR. MALRY:  Mr. Chairman, maybe I can shed a 

14 little bit of light on this question since I worked for APS 

15 for a number of years.  What we normally try to do is locate 

16 the school site first.  Then we consider the roads, et 

17 cetera, et cetera.  So it's a matter of what come first, the 

18 chicken or the egg here.  So that's what we used to do is 

19 locate the school site.  Then we worry about the roads and 

20 so forth and so on, Mr. Chairman.  That's what we used to 

21 do.  I don't know whether that's changed now or not.  Thank 

22 you, Mr. Chairman.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I don't know if any new 

24 schools are going to be added on the West Side, or if it's 

25 going to take some more added schools.  Maybe we can ask.  I 
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 1 think I saw a school board member in here.  

 2 MR. QUEZADA:  Yeah, I'm here.  

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I think -- is that your 

 4 district -- 

 5 MR. QUEZADA:  Yes.  It is my district.

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- up here?  I wasn't sure, but 

 7 maybe we can ask him that question, but I think it's 

 8 something that we need to discuss before anything is 

 9 approved here.  Thank you.

10 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you.

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions of Staff?  

12 Commissioner.

13 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman.

14 Richard, so were there changes made -- or how was the 

15 forecasting model modified in order to meet the vehicle 

16 miles traveled, et cetera, that you articulated?  

17 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and 

18 Commissioner Kelly.  And I'll let the consultant explain it 

19 in more detail, but basically they used the forecast 

20 prepared for -- by MRCOG and those totals, so -- and I have 

21 a sheet here.  So for Bernalillo County, the projection is 

22 another 300,000 people in Bernalillo County by 2040 and 

23 another 130,000 jobs.  So they keep -- they have to keep 

24 those numbers, those control numbers constant, and whereas 

25 in the trends scenario and the preferred scenario of the 

TR- 28
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 Long-Range Plan, that -- those people and those jobs are 

 2 spread out throughout the County or in different locations, 

 3 and they're more concentrated in Santolina.  So more of 

 4 those people would, you know, live in Santolina rather than 

 5 elsewhere in the County, and more of those jobs would be 

 6 concentrated in Santolina rather than elsewhere in the 

 7 County.  So -- so they stayed within those totals, but they 

 8 just moved people around, and then they divided Santolina up 

 9 into what they call data analysis zones, and with that, they 

10 were able to analyze where those future people would live 

11 within Santolina and how they would -- how they would 

12 interface with the transportation system and possibly impact 

13 the transportation system.

14 MS. KELLY:  The information that you presented 

15 today wasn't available to us before, right?  Is that -- is 

16 that right?  Because I don't remember seeing the circles, 

17 and can we get a copy of that from you at some point?  

18 MR. MEADOWS:  Sure.  Mr. Chair and Commissioner, 

19 so it should all be in the Level B report that's online, but 

20 I just -- I arranged it a little bit differently in my 

21 presentation and circled it and all that.  So I can -- I can 

22 certainly share that with you.

23 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.  The -- how did the -- how 

24 does the location of this proposed street network relate to 

25 terrain management?  And I know that that's a future 
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 1 discussion, but it seems to me that the locations of the 

 2 major arterials, et cetera, that there needs to be some 

 3 definition of how they're going to respect terrain in order 

 4 to have the terrain management component work.  How do you 

 5 see those relating to each other?  

 6 MR. MEADOWS:  Mr. Chair and Commissioner, 

 7 fortunately a lot of where Santolina is going to develop is 

 8 flat land, but there's exceptions to that.  There's an 

 9 escarpment, the ceja on the west mesa, and a lot of that is 

10 being proposed as open space, not -- not developed, and 

11 there's examples of where roads would need to cut through 

12 that escarpment such as Gibson Boulevard.  Of course, Dennis 

13 Chavez already goes up the escarpment, but for the most part 

14 I would say that the network is in areas that's fairly flat 

15 terrain, and that's where the development is going to be.

16 MS. KELLY:  But they're talking about adding a 

17 green infrastructure component to the roadway network, and 

18 so is that going to effect right-of-way widths?  How are -- 

19 you know -- 

20 MR. MEADOWS:  Right, Mr. Chair and Commissioner -- 

21 MS. KELLY:  I guess what I'm concerned about is 

22 there enough information at the Level B transportation 

23 network that can allow a plat to be reviewed?  Because 

24 essentially that would be the next stage of this process.

25 MR. MEADOWS:  Commissioner, Chair, my 
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 1 understanding is that we won't see that until Level C when 

 2 actual subdivision plats start to come in.  So this is still 

 3 a pretty general master plan level, but I believe that there 

 4 could be some additions to the Level B text, the report that 

 5 would show how -- how the rights-of-way would be able to 

 6 provide for green infrastructure, other kinds of amenities, 

 7 or improvements that we might look past.  

 8 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Is that it?  Any other questions 

10 before we get into the other Staff?  Thank you very much.

11 MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  I --

12 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, I just wanted to respond 

13 to one of the questions that you were asking about the 

14 involvement of APS in this process.  So they have reviewed 

15 all the documents that have been submitted by the applicant 

16 so far, and they have provided general comments related to 

17 the development of schools, and those are in the Staff 

18 Report.  They did receive the transportation section that 

19 we're looking at this time, but they did not provide any 

20 comments, but I do know that they are very involved in this.  

21 They did provide lengthy comments about what their 

22 requirements will be for siting of schools and for 

23 development of schools, and my understanding is that they 

24 are working with the developer to come up with specific 

25 plans, but just to say that in the third public -- special 
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 1 public hearing that there will be -- part of the discussion 

 2 will be about schools and in terms of the plans for schools, 

 3 funding of schools, and infrastructure related to schools. 

 4 So that will be -- that will be part of the discussion in 

 5 June, and we'll make sure that the APS Staff is here at that 

 6 time to address those questions, but I think that's a good 

 7 issue that you're raising about provision of bus stops and 

 8 services along the roads.

 9 So we'll keep that in mind as we're proceeding through 

10 this process, and potentially that's something that --

11 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  And I understand that.  You know, 

12 my concern was not where the schools are going to go or 

13 whatever, but we're talking about transportation.  School 

14 buses are transportation, and I think it's appropriate that 

15 we discuss this when we're talking about roads and what -- 

16 you know, they talked about city buses, where they're going 

17 to go, where the connection's going to be, all these things, 

18 but we don't talk about school buses, where they're going to 

19 go.  We're talking about right-of-ways, about getting 

20 right-of-ways for a lot of these things from the developer, 

21 I guess, and I think that discussion should be when we're 

22 talking about transportation, and I agree with you.  We -- 

23 you know, the schools are very important.  We probably need 

24 to talk more about them, but right now, we're talking about 

25 transportation.  That's what I'd like to, you know, keep it 
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 1 at, and nobody was mentioning them now. 

 2 I don't -- I don't want to build this thing or tell 

 3 them what to do and then later on they come back with, 

 4 "Well, we didn't include this, or the kids -- where the 

 5 buses park."  And I think when we're talking transportation 

 6 -- because I know the Albuquerque Public Schools now -- and 

 7 I saw it on the news where they're handling their own bus 

 8 system now.  I think they -- they got their own facility for 

 9 buses right now and -- on Osuna or somewhere.  They bought a 

10 piece of property where they're going to handle all their 

11 transportation, just like the City does, and I think it's 

12 appropriate that now, before we get into -- or away from the 

13 transportation part, that we try to figure those things out, 

14 too.  And that's why I brought it up.  

15 And I understand about there's a lot of issues about 

16 schools and where they should be and population and what -- 

17 you know, those things, but I'd appreciate it if we can keep 

18 our comments to the transportation of the schools, and 

19 nothing was brought up with that as far as transportation 

20 goes so -- and people saying that they talked, but I'd like 

21 to see it on the -- in the plan, and that's what we're -- 

22 that's what we're going to approve is a plan, not something 

23 that they're going to say, "Well, later on we're going to 

24 talk to them."  

25 I'll ask those questions of the developer, and I'm glad 
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 1 we have a school board member from that district here, and 

 2 we can ask him, too, as to -- I don't know what the schools 

 3 are planning or what they do up there, but I'm glad that 

 4 somebody from the school system is here in our hearings and 

 5 hearing what we're doing, because usually education and 

 6 schools are the last thing we talk about once we build 

 7 something, and we have a lot of overcrowding on the West 

 8 Side.  So I think it's kind of important.  

 9 And when we bring up the Staff here -- and I'm going to 

10 ask the school board member if he wants to talk for the 

11 Albuquerque Public Schools.  He is a member from that 

12 district as to -- I don't -- what they're planning, I don't 

13 know what the schools are planning over there or if our 

14 agent has talked to them.  I don't know, you know.  So I'm 

15 just trying to find out information.  Okay?  

16 MS. VEREECKE:  Okay.  Thank you.

17 MS. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman.

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  

19 MS. KELLY:  I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.  I had another 

20 question I forgot to ask Richard before we -- 

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yeah.  Go ahead.  Richard.

22 MS. KELLY:  I was interested in what you said 

23 about the air quality being in non-attainment status in June 

24 of 2016 and that the air quality report won't be modeling.  

25 I didn't know that we were going to be out of attainment 
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 1 status.  What are the implications of that?  

 2 MR. MEADOWS:  Mr. Chair and Commissioner, my 

 3 understanding is, like, the last 30 years we were out of 

 4 attainment with the EPA, and there were a new number of 

 5 things we had to do as a region, and one of them was 

 6 whenever there was a large master plan, like Santolina, the 

 7 air quality would model it and tell us what those impacts 

 8 are.  And in this case, I contacted them and they were -- 

 9 they told me that because as of June we'll be in attainment 

10 again with the EPA, that they'll no longer be providing that 

11 service to us, but because it is a requirement of the 

12 Planned Communities Criteria, I still wanted to acquire 

13 that, and so instead the consultant is going to hire a 

14 specialist, specialist consultant to do that kind of a 

15 study, and we'll have that available in June to look at.

16 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

17 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you.  

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Next, we're going to have 

19 the County -- the agencies, MRCOG and New Mexico DOT, and I 

20 don't know if the school board member from the school board, 

21 if you would like to say a few words as far as 

22 transportation goes, because that's all we're discussing 

23 today when we get to the schools, and I don't know if you 

24 have any information for transportation.  I know you're very 

25 involved with the schools in that district but -- 
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 1 MR. QUEZADA:  Mr. Chair, Members of the 

 2 Commission, I actually came here this morning -- 

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Name and address for the record, 

 4 please.  

 5 MR. QUEZADA:  This is -- I'm Steven Michael 

 6 Quezada, APS School Board Member for District 5.  

 7 I did come this morning, because my concern was 

 8 transportation and was transportation -- we're talking about 

 9 Santolina.  We have identified where we are going to put 

10 schools, but I -- but I wanted to come today to talk about 

11 how we're -- how I'm trying to convince the developers to do 

12 more school choice, and with school choice, means there's 

13 going to be more transportation issues.  I'm trying to go 

14 against fighting -- building the big giant high schools and 

15 get more magnet schools -- I guess you could call them 

16 charters schools, more school choice, more focused education 

17 for our children here in this community.  I believe it's the 

18 biggest issue that is facing not only our graduation rates 

19 but our success as educators.

20 So what our concern is, is that now you have an 

21 opportunity to put a type of transportation in a community 

22 that, you know, we were hoping that we could eliminate 

23 school buses, to be honest with you, and go into public 

24 transportation like a lot of communities throughout the 

25 country are focusing on.  It is really difficult for our 
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 1 school budget and to be adding transportation.  As you said, 

 2 Mr. Chair, that we have had to go into the school bus 

 3 system.  We're not really happy about that.  I don't think I 

 4 have to talk to the Commission on the insufficient funding 

 5 for education and Albuquerque Public Schools and throughout 

 6 the State of New Mexico, but we still have to start looking 

 7 at ways where we could start trying to get out of the busing 

 8 system and have proper transportation for our children to 

 9 get to all schools and not just public schools, but we're 

10 really fighting for an UNM campus and a CNM campus on the 

11 Southwest Mesa.  

12 So I'd like to really thank you for considering this 

13 and bringing this up.  It's a major issue that we are going 

14 to have to look at moving forward.  This project's going to 

15 be a huge strain on the Albuquerque Public School budget, 

16 and we need to start figuring out now.  We need to hold the 

17 feet to the fire of these developers that they do this 

18 properly and that you, as a Commission, make sure that that 

19 happens.  

20 And I think a lot of people here are only here to make 

21 sure that you are focusing on what's the most important 

22 thing in New Mexico, and the only real natural resource we 

23 have in New Mexico is our children and how we're going to 

24 provide -- moving into the future, how we make sure that we 

25 have ways to save on the budget, spend the money properly, 
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 1 so that we're using the money for the right things.

 2 So that's really what I wanted to come and say today, 

 3 and thank you for letting me sneak in and do it right now 

 4 that you're using this as, you know, a platform as you move 

 5 forward to holding the developers accountable and when it 

 6 comes to transportation.

 7 I'm open for questions if you have any questions for 

 8 me.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Anybody have any questions?  If 

10 not, thank you very much.  I appreciate it -- 

11 MR. QUEZADA:  Thank you.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  -- coming down, and I hope APS -- 

13 and that's the other issue that charters schools -- does 

14 charters schools have buses, too?  

15 MR. QUEZADA:  No.  And that's the problem.  So 

16 we're going to offer magnet schools and schools of choice.  

17 That becomes a transportation issue.  So with the 

18 development of this, you have an opportunity, again, like I 

19 say, to have really great public transportation so 

20 Albuquerque Public Schools doesn't have to continue in the 

21 transportation business, which we really don't want to be a 

22 part of.

23 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

24 MR. QUEZADA:  Thank you.

25 MS. HAINES:  Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of 
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 1 the Commission.  My name is Margaret Haines.  I work with 

 2 NMDOT.  I'm the assistant traffic engineer.

 3 MS. PEREA:  Hello.  My name is Nancy Perea.  I'm 

 4 also with NMDOT District 3.  I'm a traffic engineer for this 

 5 area.

 6 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.

 7 MS. HAINES:  At this time we wanted to reiterate 

 8 our comments to CPC and were also part of the Staff Report, 

 9 so I'll read through those comments, and then we have 

10 another comment.  The NMDOT has program funding in this step 

11 to begin acquiring right-of-way for Paseo Del Volcan.  The 

12 final alignment has not been identified, and spacing between 

13 the interchanges shall be determined by NMDOT and federal 

14 highways.  

15 NMDOT has not identified any funding for the 

16 construction of the proposed roadway extensions or proposed 

17 interchanges or underpasses shown in the 2040 MTP.  If any 

18 of these improvements do become funded, there's no guarantee 

19 that the design or construction would coincide with the 

20 timeframe of the planned phasing.  The developer shall 

21 commit cost-sharing or matching a portion of the 

22 construction costs associated with any future roadway 

23 extensions and infrastructure outside and in the vicinity of 

24 the Santolina area. 

25 If Santolina's phase development occurs prior to 
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 1 funding becoming available for the proposed MTP 

 2 improvements, then those improvements must be installed at 

 3 the cost of the developer.

 4 Based to the transportation analysis prepared in the 

 5 Level B report, increased congestion is projected as early 

 6 as 2025 at several existing interchanges, including but not 

 7 limited to Atrisco Vista Boulevard, 98th Street, and Unser 

 8 Boulevard.  The developer shall identify mitigation 

 9 alternatives for each of these -- of the impacted locations 

10 at each development phase for review by NMDOT and federal 

11 highways prior to finalization of these measures.

12 We also wanted to note that -- we wanted to revise a 

13 note from the Notice of Decision dated December 12th, 2014, 

14 to state this:  Where any approval from NMDOT will be 

15 obtained prior to the improvement or expansion of state 

16 roads identified in the Level A and Level B submittal.  

17 NMDOT and FHWA review and approval will be required for any 

18 Level C plan defining any required modifications and 

19 improvements to I-40 and other state facilities as a result 

20 of the development of Santolina and its roadway network.  

21 The approvals shall itemize financial obligations with 

22 participation and commitments spelled out.  The coordination 

23 of the timeframes for the off-site roadway improvements and 

24 the planned phasing will also need to be identified.  

25 And we understand that we -- we received another report 
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 1 that Catherine mentioned.  The off-site -- on-site and 

 2 off-site locations of interests traffic analysis, we just 

 3 received it few weeks ago.  So we're currently still 

 4 reviewing it. 

 5 MS. PEREA:  Thank you, Margaret.  

 6 So to sum up what Margaret has brought to the attention 

 7 of the Commission from the DOT is there is extreme concern 

 8 from the DOT on the funding for the infrastructure off site 

 9 of this development.  We feel that the analysis identifies 

10 some of the issues but still the tie to how the funding is 

11 going to be taken care of is a big concern to this state.  

12 It should be -- if it's identified as impacted from the 

13 development, we feel that the development should be part of 

14 the funding process.

15 The state has not seen the Development Agreement that 

16 has been put in place with the Commission.  We understand 

17 that is an agreement between the Commission and the 

18 development -- I mean, between the County and the developer.  

19 So the state will have to come up with -- maybe need some 

20 additional understanding and agreement between the developer 

21 on how the infra- -- the off-site infrastructure would need 

22 to be -- would be covered.  

23 One of the items -- oh, there's several items that we 

24 have comments on.  Like Margaret said, we're completing the 

25 analysis, so we'll have more comments in the future, but one 
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 1 of the items in the document of On-Site and Off-Site 

 2 Locations of Interest Traffic Analysis, it does have a page 

 3 at the beginning that talks about the purpose of the report, 

 4 and it does identify, and I'm going to quote, "Nothing 

 5 herein shall be construed to bind or require Western 

 6 Albuquerque Land Holding, LLC, to construct and/or pay for 

 7 infrastructure, nor shall be considered as a proposal for 

 8 funding mechanisms."  

 9 This is a big concern to the DOT.  We need for this to 

10 be identified.  We -- our fear is the infrastructure will 

11 not be able to accommodate any influx based on this 

12 development, and the phasing, as Margaret had spoken of 

13 earlier, the phasing -- I mean, the phasing of the 

14 development may not be in line with the improvements that 

15 the state has identified for the I-40 interchange system.  

16 So those are the comments that the state had at this 

17 time.  Right like we had mentioned, there will be more 

18 comments coming in in reference to this.  We still have 

19 Staff that's reviewing this document.  We are open for 

20 questions.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  You know, the 

22 Development Agreement is done between the state, I guess -- 

23 or I mean, the developer and the County Commission.  So you 

24 have your people involved when -- once it leaves here, 

25 because we don't -- we don't -- we don't get into the 
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 1 Development Agreement, because we don't have authority to -- 

 2 either way to approve it or disapprove it.  It's something 

 3 that the County Commission does.  The County Commission --

 4 MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  You know, once we get past this 

 6 -- and I'm sure Staff has taken into consideration 

 7 everything that you brought up, and anything that we can act 

 8 on, we will, and I'm -- thank you for being here and being, 

 9 you know, involved in this thing.  It's a big project, and 

10 we understand that everybody's strapped for money.

11 MR. PEREZ:  Right.

12 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  It's not that easy to get things 

13 done, and people want to know who's going to pay for what, 

14 and -- and I agree with that.  So I want to thank you for 

15 being here.  Do we have any other questions from Staff?  

16 Commissioner.  

17 MS. KELLY:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  

18 The note that you referenced at the beginning, that is 

19 an addendum to a previous note -- 

20 MR. PEREZ:  It is -- it is right after the title 

21 page of the document.  

22 And I assume, Catherine, that that's been submitted.  

23 It's called Off-Site -- On-Site and Off-Site Locations 

24 of Interest Traffic Study.  So it was part of that document.

25 MS. KELLY:  I was asking about the other note that 
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 1 the other gal read.  Where can we get a copy of that?  

 2 MS. HAINES:  It was -- it was on the Notice of 

 3 Decision dated December 12th, 2014, and then our last 

 4 comment was -- we forwarded it to CPC for revision with our 

 5 Level B comments.

 6 MS. KELLY:  Okay.  Thank you.

 7 MS. VEREECKE:  So you didn't add anything here?  

 8 MS. PEREA:  To?  

 9 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, I was 

10 just asking the DOT Staff, we do have the comments that you 

11 submitted, and I guess that would have been for the March 

12 hearing?  So you haven't submitted anything in addition to 

13 that?  Are you adding more comments now that would be 

14 submitted in the record?  

15 MS. HAINES:  No, not at this time.  I was just 

16 reiterating the note that we revised with this -- with that 

17 hearing with March, but we -- we do not have more comments 

18 now, because we haven't had time to review this document 

19 fully.

20 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, Commissioners, just to 

21 say to the DOT Staff that the Development Agreement is in 

22 the Staff Report, but we can make sure that you get a copy 

23 of it.

24 MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  I guess the -- that 

25 we'll have that discussion off line about how the impacts to 
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 1 the state's facility are brought into the picture or how 

 2 that will be addressed.  Thank you.  

 3 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 4 MS. KELLY:  So I have one more question.  

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.

 6 MS. KELLY:  So it sounds like there's a difference 

 7 of opinion in terms of off-site impacts at three 

 8 interchanges that you named; is that true?  

 9 MR. PEREZ:  Based on the quick review of this new 

10 document, it sounds like there will be more locations, 

11 intersections that we would have comments about, not just 

12 the three that were identified originally.  

13 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Any other questions?  If 

15 not, thank you very much.

16 MR. PEREZ:  Thank you.

17 MS. HAINES:  Thank you.

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Next is MRCOG.  

19 MR. GINGRICH:  Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members 

20 of the Commission.  My name is Andy Gingrich.  I'm a planner 

21 at the Mid-Region Council of Governments.  I'm dressed like 

22 Richard, but I don't work for the County.  I work for the 

23 Mid-Region Metropolitan Planning Organization, which is 

24 within the Council of Governments.

25 On February 8th, before we had the hearing to make the 
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 1 schedule here, we submitted a pretty lengthy round of 

 2 comments regarding this Level B plan.  Also, the Level A 

 3 transportation plan was also revised.  And then there was 

 4 also the Level B transportation plan that was submitted.

 5 So we had comments for all three of those documents, 

 6 and so those comments were really the consolidation of what 

 7 I heard from my colleagues at the MPO.  So I'll do my best 

 8 to present those.  If there are questions that I can't 

 9 answer I'm happy to bring those back to my colleagues and 

10 get them, those more technical answers to you.

11 So today I'd like to do -- just do an overview of those 

12 comments that are kind of general that apply to all topics 

13 and then those specifically of transportation.  We also had 

14 several comments regarding land use, but we could probably 

15 save those for the next hearing.  

16 And before I get started, I think maybe it would be of 

17 benefit to, especially to Commissioners that are new, to 

18 just say a little bit about the MPO, who we are and what we 

19 do.  The Mid-Region Metropolitan Planning Organization is -- 

20 we're responsible for the Longe-Range Transportation Plan in 

21 the region.  This is a map here of the Council of 

22 Government's region, which is four counties and a little bit 

23 of Santa Fe County here, and then the red line here is the 

24 boundary for the Albuquerque metropolitan planning area, and 

25 that's the area that the MPO focuses on.  
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 1 There's a -- there's a little bit more detailed map 

 2 there that kind of shows that, you know, we coordinate lots 

 3 of cities, counties, villages, pueblos, and other agencies, 

 4 as well as the Department of Transportation to look out into 

 5 the long range and evaluate plans going forward for our 

 6 transportation system regionally.  So big picture is zoomed 

 7 out stuff.

 8 So we bring people together.  We put together regional 

 9 goals and policies.  We prioritize and program projects that 

10 -- especially those that have federal dollars associated 

11 with them, and then we also have a -- kind of a short-range 

12 plan of projects called the TIP.  That coordinates with the 

13 state's STIP, statewide program.

14 So some of those key documents that we produced which 

15 Richard mentioned are our Long-Range Plan.  This is it here.  

16 Our future is 2040.  I'm sure you've all read every word of 

17 it.  It's pretty large.  And then another really important 

18 document is the Long-Range Transportation System Guide and 

19 that was passed along with the Long-Range Plan, and both of 

20 these documents are important to Santolina, and the 

21 applicant has referenced them and used them.  So if you have 

22 any questions about generally what the MPO does, I'm happy 

23 to answer those.

24 So we've been -- obviously Santolina is a regionally 

25 significant project, and so we care very much about the 
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 1 character, the general concept, and then also the procedure 

 2 of the development and how it -- how it comes along, how 

 3 it's built.  So we participated in the Level A plans, and I 

 4 think I was at every hearing.  And the -- we had a lot of 

 5 good back and forth with the applicant, and they responded 

 6 to many of our concerns.  Richard mentioned some of them, 

 7 redoing the roadway system so it's much better grid system 

 8 with -- we're a big fan of grids at the COG.  They provide a 

 9 lot of redundancy, a lot of resiliency and options for 

10 changing environments.  They changed around some of their 

11 land-use areas, and so we appreciate that work on their part 

12 and that response on their part.

13 Oh, also, before I go further, I -- the February 8th 

14 comments, it didn't look to me that they were all loaded 

15 onto Accela, so I brought copies of those documents in case 

16 you didn't get the full length.  So I'm not sure.  Maybe 

17 that was --

18 MS. VEREECKE:  They were added as a separate 

19 attachment.

20 MR. GINGRICH:  Oh, you did?  Okay.  Well, just in 

21 case -- yeah, just so you have the full thing.  Okay.  I 

22 won't go over everything in these -- in those documents.  

23 Where was I?  All right.  So, yeah.  So we were happy 

24 to participate in Level A, and there were some concerns that 

25 we had even at the end of the CPC meetings, as some of you 
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 1 might remember, and also the County Commission hearings.

 2 And one of the larger concerns that we have was about 

 3 the phasing strategy that was a part -- put in as part of 

 4 the plan, and those concerns continue into the Level B 

 5 submittal.  We still have the same basic concern there.

 6 This Level B plan is very large.  It's -- 4,000 acres 

 7 is almost a third of the total Level A area, and in terms of 

 8 acreage, that's about the size of Taos, and the Planned 

 9 Communities Criteria, it's kind of unclear to us what an 

10 appropriate size is for a Level B submittal.  It says in 

11 there 650 to 1,200 acres, but that's also describing 

12 villages and urban centers, and so it's just kind of unclear 

13 to us what appropriate size is for Level B.  The closest 

14 comparison we have to proposed Santolina development is Mesa 

15 del Sol.  It's a comparable sized master plan, and their 

16 first phase, Level B phase was large.  It was about 3,000 

17 acres.  

18 However, and I think this is one of the attachments in 

19 the -- in the comments that I passed out.  This is -- it's 

20 kind of hard to see here.  They had four phases outlined in 

21 their Level B plan, in Mesa del Sol, and obviously they 

22 anticipated development sooner than what has occurred out 

23 there, but what has occurred is within that first phase, so 

24 we knew where that growth was going to be first before the 

25 next phase would start to build.  So everything that's kind 
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 1 of a color here is -- is the area for Mesa del Sol is Level 

 2 B.  The green is the first phase.  The blue is the second.  

 3 Yellow is the third.  Red is the fourth.

 4 There's a couple reasons why, not just for knowing the 

 5 locations of the phase, that we're concerned about phasing, 

 6 and that's -- I think that are unique to Santolina, and that 

 7 is that the way that the phases were described in the master 

 8 plan were really tied to the Level B submittals, and so 

 9 those -- those Level B submittals are supposed to be areas 

10 where opportunities to evaluate certain benchmarks for how 

11 the development is coming along, and so if you have a really 

12 large Level B phase, then you don't have these smaller 

13 opportunities to evaluate some of those -- those benchmarks.  

14 So currently all that exists is a 2025 and a 2040 phase.  So 

15 having a more detailed phasing strategy I think would 

16 alleviate a lot of our concerns at the -- at the MPO about 

17 evaluating this development as it comes along.  

18 And that's no net cost or jobs to housing, those kinds 

19 of things that are really critical for the health of the 

20 transportation system, and that phasing has lots to do with 

21 land use and schools and other issues, but I could talk a 

22 little bit about how that's really critical for 

23 transportation planning.

24 The Development Agreement for the Level A plan states 

25 that after the roadways are built, that they'll be conveyed 
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 1 to the public to take care of, and so if there are roads 

 2 built and the phasing is unclear or doesn't -- the 

 3 development doesn't occur, then you may end up with these 

 4 roadways out there that don't have the development to 

 5 sustain it that then the public is responsible for 

 6 maintaining.  

 7 And then there's also issues that we're concerned about 

 8 related to this, and that's kind of the interim stages of 

 9 the roadway development.  The Development Agreement, I 

10 believe, and the Transportation Plan, Santolina 

11 Transportation Plan say that the developer is responsible 

12 for the first two lanes and then is eligible for funding, 

13 public funding for the rest of the roadway to be built.  And 

14 so that's a concern to us because, you know, obviously 

15 you're not going to build a giant roadway at the initial 

16 phases of the development.  You're going to have to wait 

17 until there's appropriate level of development before you do 

18 the next stage of building the road, and so who pays for 

19 that expansion is a question I think we've heard from other 

20 Staff, too.

21 And also those -- in the interim, because the interim 

22 period could be, you know, decades long, will this -- the 

23 first stage of roadway development have the other -- the 

24 infrastructure support, other modes, like bike lanes and 

25 sidewalks and trees and stuff like that.  If you're going to 
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 1 eventually have a very large roadway, how are you going to 

 2 accommodate these other uses in the interim with a very long 

 3 interim period?  So we had questions about that.  

 4 Oh, I want to back up and say that in response to our 

 5 comments, there was a matrix that was put out that -- where 

 6 the applicant responded to comments from -- from other 

 7 agencies.  They did like almost a whole separate section for 

 8 ours, because ours were kind of long, and we really 

 9 appreciate the work that they've -- that they've put into 

10 responding to those.  On this note, they've said that they 

11 -- there's -- they'll -- there's -- the plan is to have a 

12 reasonable portion of these other alternative elements -- 

13 not alternative, the other non-auto elements in each stage 

14 of roadway development, and we appreciate that. 

15 Maybe we have questions about more specifically what 

16 that is, but we appreciate the attention -- the intention is 

17 to have not just an auto-oriented, two-lane road during the 

18 interim stages.

19 But, yeah, the following -- the concern that follows 

20 this is, again, who pays for the construction of these roads 

21 after the first two lanes, and in that matrix, the applicant 

22 has responded that -- that the -- that they're eligible to 

23 apply for other ways of funding those -- those -- that 

24 roadway expansion, and that's true that they're eligible, 

25 but there's not a guarantee of any of those things. 
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 1 And they had pointed to the Level A Development 

 2 Agreement that says that they -- you know, they'll pay -- 

 3 they'll pay their proportionate share of what's referred to 

 4 as "system infrastructure."  I'm not entirely clear on what 

 5 will be classified as "system infrastructure" or not, but in 

 6 terms of the Council of Governments and the MPO and what is 

 7 in our Long-Range Plan, we kind of keep track of both 

 8 private and public records that are proposed into the future 

 9 so we can model the performance of the transportation system 

10 in the future.  

11 There are only two roads right now that are listed for 

12 public funding in -- in the Santolina area, and that is the 

13 Dennis Chavez expansion, and then also the Paseo Del Volcan 

14 interchange on I-40.  There -- everything else is listed as 

15 a private -- privately funded roadway, and in the 

16 applicant's response during -- in their matrix, they said 

17 because there could be some public dollars going into the 

18 system infrastructure in Santolina, then we should start to 

19 consider those as a public, private kind of partnership 

20 funding for those system roadways within Santolina.

21 We're not sure if that's the County's understanding, 

22 but we need to say that if that is the County's 

23 understanding, that -- that those are County public dollars 

24 then or at least not federal dollars.  To get federal 

25 funding for roadways through our process takes -- takes the 
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 1 whole Metropolitan Planning Organization's coordination of 

 2 other agencies to determine how we're going to spend this 

 3 federal money, and that includes a prioritization process 

 4 with specific criteria whether or not you're eligible for 

 5 those funds or not.  

 6 So public -- I mean, if the County's willing to do -- 

 7 pay for part of that system infrastructure, then, yes.  That 

 8 could be technically a public investment on their part, and 

 9 we could list that as public infrastructure in an MTP 

10 listing, but it won't be the federal dollars going into 

11 that.  

12 And we would stress that federal dollars are getting 

13 smaller and smaller and more and more competitive, and as a 

14 region, we've prioritized trying to maintain existing 

15 infrastructure, existing roadway infrastructure, and also 

16 alternative modes of transportation.  So it's -- it will be 

17 hard to acquire those federal dollars for -- well, eligible 

18 to apply, but there will be other priorities in the region 

19 competing for those federal dollars.  I will let the state 

20 speak to their ability to fund these roads.  So that just 

21 needs to be clarified.

22 And the other part of this is the transportation 

23 analysis that was done for the Santolina area even for Level 

24 B did incorporate some of those roadways being widened, and 

25 that means, then, that this analysis kind of assumes going 
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 1 beyond those two lanes to the wider roadways, and so does 

 2 that mean that this analysis kind of assumes that public 

 3 funding kicking in is one of our questions, or is that 

 4 something that the developers plan on paying for.  

 5 But the performance of the network does seem to 

 6 incorporate some of these expansion projects, and we're not 

 7 sure.  Does that mean that the performance of the network is 

 8 dependent on the public funding based on the study?  

 9 Okay.  So moving on, there's -- we just want to say 

10 that here's kind of the -- this is actually the land-use 

11 plan for Level B, but it does kind of do a good job of 

12 showing the grid system.  Well, maybe you can see it very -- 

13 let me zoom in a little bit.  The roadways in these areas 

14 have this grid system, and we like that a lot.  We think 

15 that's really nice.  We think that that's a direct response 

16 from the applicant listening to our concerns about the 

17 roadway design or the system design, and that actually -- 

18 the small grids network in terms of transportation by public 

19 transportation and perhaps even, Chair Chavez, the schools 

20 drop-off situation, I mean, I think -- I think your concern 

21 is a good one, but a grid is a resilient and adaptable kind 

22 of system infrastructure.  So it allows you to kind of plan 

23 routes and plan alternative routes.  You don't -- you're not 

24 dependant on one giant street to deal with all of your 

25 problems and be everything to everybody.  You've got 
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 1 multiple streets that you can kind of choose better routes, 

 2 more appropriate routes, but so -- and that's true for 

 3 public transit, too.  One of the best things you can do for 

 4 transit planning in the future is to have a well-connected 

 5 roadway system that's grided, because then pedestrians can 

 6 find many different ways to get to where they need to go, 

 7 and you can put stops in different kinds of locations and 

 8 really adapt.  

 9 So that grid system is -- is good, and it's -- and it's 

10 something that is a benefit to the development going 

11 forward.  It allows it to be a lot more flexible to a future 

12 that is uncertain.  

13 Same thing with the bike roadway system.  We liked 

14 Richard comments where maybe some extra connections -- but 

15 generally, the applicant's done a really good job of 

16 referring to our Long-Range Transportation Systems Guide for 

17 -- for how we'd -- how we'd like to see the region develop 

18 in terms of especially our bike network and pedestrian 

19 network and trail system. 

20 In terms -- there are some -- some comments we have 

21 about the -- the roadway design, itself.  So these are -- so 

22 these are some of the sections for the largest roads that 

23 are within the transportation section of the Level B plan.  

24 These -- I mean, we appreciate that I think the intention 

25 was for the applicant to really incorporate everything that 
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 1 everybody wants into a roadway and to use -- you know, these 

 2 little graphics are actually kind of based on our own 

 3 long-range transportation systems guide, and we appreciate 

 4 that detail, and -- but these are very, very wide roadways, 

 5 and I don't know if they specifically need to be changed, 

 6 but to point out that a really wide roadway is a big barrier 

 7 for pedestrians to cross and move -- move through.  

 8 This is -- I think this is 186 feet, this roadway, and 

 9 that's -- if you would picture one of your City blocks here 

10 downtown, that's almost halfway.  That's about halfway down 

11 the street of one of those blocks.  That's a long distance 

12 for a pedestrian to cross.  Maybe you have a lot of 

13 possibilities with a median to provide a refuge, but it's -- 

14 generally, the more smaller arterials you have that are 

15 well-connected, the better it is for pedestrians, and you 

16 can still move quite a lot of traffic on more -- more and 

17 smaller roads than one giant large road. 

18 That's not to say this is entirely inappropriate, but 

19 we'll be engaged when the specific proposals of the roadway 

20 designs come through and where they are, but this next to 

21 anything that the pedestrian might want to get to is -- is 

22 -- could be a problem.  But we appreciate the intention to 

23 try and incorporate medians and bike lanes and sidewalks and 

24 that kind of thing.  

25 Let's see.  Oh, and also, the applicant responded -- we 
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 1 had suggested kind of giving a little bit more detailed 

 2 thought to how you would put these principal arterials that 

 3 are next to activity centers or urban centers, and they said 

 4 that they would take a look at that.  So we appreciate that 

 5 response, too.

 6 Okay.  One last thing, and I don't know if you can see 

 7 this.  This is from the -- this is page 22 in the Level A 

 8 transportation plan, which was redone, is that I want to 

 9 just mention -- I think it's for the benefit of everyone, 

10 because we get a lot of questions about this -- how exactly 

11 our socioeconomic forecasts were -- are included as a part 

12 of this planning process.  So maybe I should back up and 

13 just describe a little bit about our forecast in general, 

14 what it is.  

15 During our MTP, our Long-Range Transportation Plan, one 

16 of the biggest things we do there is we try to model the 

17 future roadway network and see how it performs, and a 

18 necessary step to doing that is to model where the people 

19 are and where their jobs are, and so how are they going to 

20 go from where they live to where they work or services they 

21 need.  So we have to do a land-use forecast to be able to 

22 figure that out, and that is a model that runs, and it's -- 

23 also incorporates interviews we do with -- with County Staff 

24 about developments that are happening in certain areas and 

25 what's building and maybe what's -- what could be build or 
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 1 where there's interest.

 2 So that is what we call in our Long-Range Plan the 

 3 "trend scenario."  That's based on at the time which -- that 

 4 we did the models.  So this was passed in April of last year 

 5 with a base year of 2012 based on the policies that 

 6 currently exist, what are -- what is the zone -- what would 

 7 the zoning currently allow?  What are the master plans that 

 8 are approved or which ones have started?  Based on current 

 9 plans and policies, where are we headed?  

10 Then there was mention also of the preferred scenario, 

11 which I could touch on.  We did an alternative scenario, 

12 which looked at what if we changed a little bit about where 

13 we are going.  What if we allowed some density in certain 

14 areas, for example, and have the model run and see what the 

15 benefits are, and we could then quantify that, you know, by 

16 investing, by doing more in-fill, by investing in existing 

17 infrastructure.  By changing around some of our zoning, we 

18 could have meaningful improvements, but that would entail, 

19 then, that changes would have to be made by our member 

20 agencies to implement some of the principles there, so that 

21 the trend is kind of where we're going.  A preferred 

22 scenario is kind of if we chose to take these actions, 

23 there's demonstrated benefits to that.

24 So what was done for Santolina was essentially a 

25 Santolina scenario.  So the -- Santolina is to be able to 
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 1 model it, you had -- you had to build the whole thing out to 

 2 see how it performs.  However, both the preferred scenario, 

 3 the trend scenario, and this scenario, to run our model, we 

 4 have to take the growth forecast that -- we call them 

 5 control totals, which is the total number of people in the 

 6 region and make sure that that's the number we end up with 

 7 in terms of people.  We can move them around different 

 8 places, but we have to end up with the same number.  Those 

 9 numbers come from the GO spatial population studies 

10 department at UNM.  So people say, "The COG says we're going 

11 to grow."  We don't say we're going to grow.  GPS says we're 

12 going to grow, and we try to figure out where those people 

13 are going to be.

14 So this transportation plan had to stick with those 

15 same control totals, which meant that you had to -- because 

16 there's a difference between the trend scenario and the -- 

17 and the -- what's expected development by the applicant, we 

18 had to take areas in the region that were developed that 

19 were kind of similar, like the other master plans on the 

20 West Side, Mesa del Sol, and reallocate that growth and put 

21 it in Santolina to be able to evaluate their full build-out, 

22 because we had to end up with the same number of people.

23 So the -- and the -- this is something that is really 

24 clear.  There's nothing that's not being said here.  It's 

25 clear in the Level A Transportation Plan.  Page 22 says 
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 1 that, "The 2040 trend forecast developed by MRCOG does not 

 2 include the level of development anticipated by WALH."  So 

 3 there's very -- there's just an expectation of development 

 4 by the applicant that is not the same as the trend scenario 

 5 for MRCOG.  

 6 But that is an appropriate way to perform, if that's 

 7 your underlying assumption, that this area is going to be 

 8 built by 2025 and 2040.  That's the appropriate method to 

 9 use for this kind of analysis, and they work closely with us 

10 to do that analysis, but I want to be clear about what those 

11 underlying assumptions are, because we get that question a 

12 lot.  So I guess that's it.  If -- if there are any 

13 questions I can answer -- 

14 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any questions of -- 

15 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  I have one.

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead.  

17 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Well, I have a couple of 

18 comments and then a question.  I'm sad that this feels like 

19 we're doing it all over again when we're talking about 

20 phasing and that that's a major issue for you all, and I 

21 also want to know, you mentioned that you had to reallocate 

22 in your trend analysis reallocation for Mesa del Sol.  Mesa 

23 del Sol is not built out the way it was anticipated.  Is 

24 that what you're saying?  

25 MR. GINGRICH:  Yes, Mr. Chair and Commissioner 
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 1 Chavez.  So Mesa del Sol does build out in our trend 

 2 scenario, so because we have in our -- we have anticipated 

 3 growth coming into the region, and so by 2040, our model 

 4 kind of takes this big growth and places it in areas that 

 5 can grow, and Mesa del Sol is one of those areas in our 

 6 model, but in order to kind of populate Santolina without -- 

 7 you know, we wouldn't want to depopulate existing areas to 

 8 put into Santolina.  That wouldn't be appropriate.  We 

 9 wanted to make sure that -- that we're putting growth into 

10 Santolina that -- that would be accommodated other places in 

11 our trend scenario.  So we wanted similar -- you know, I can 

12 only use the word "competition," but if Santolina is kind of 

13 competing for development with other areas in the region, we 

14 wanted to make sure that this scenario was using growth in 

15 those kinds of similar areas than just anywhere in the 

16 region.  We didn't want to take people randomly out of the 

17 region and move them to Santolina.  Does that make sense?  

18 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Yeah.  Thank you.

19 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  

20 Commissioner.  

21 MS. KELLY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

22 I'm probably not going to phrase this very well, 

23 because I'm not sure exactly what I want to ask, but if 

24 you're reallocating growth in order to develop a Santolina 

25 scenario, is there a way to show what impact that has on the 
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 1 transportation system and other projects that are already in 

 2 the pipeline for funding for other areas of the region?  Do 

 3 you know what I'm asking?  Can you translate -- 

 4 MR. GINGRICH:  I think so.  I'm just wondering if 

 5 I know how to answer that with appropriate -- I mean, I 

 6 don't know if I have the technical capacity to answer that.  

 7 So I may have to get back to you on that.  I'm not sure -- 

 8 the Santolina scenario would include the building of roads 

 9 inside Santolina.  Richard might be able to answer this.  

10 I'm not sure about -- because we also, as a part of our 

11 trends scenario, model the future roadway networks.  So, 

12 like, if there was an expansion project elsewhere in the 

13 region in 2040, was that still built -- and that area 

14 doesn't grow as much, does that -- is that still built in 

15 the Santolina scenario?  I don't know.  

16 Richard, do you know if the entire trends -- trends 

17 network was built in the Santolina transportation model?  

18 I can get that answer to you for --

19 MR. MEADOWS:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Kelly, you 

20 know, I -- you know, I -- we talked about the areas, the 

21 roadways that are impacted by Santolina, but it also 

22 benefits a lot of roadways.  So there may be -- and we 

23 didn't make this kind of analysis, but it may be that 

24 there's some roadways that would have needed improvements, 

25 but because they benefit from more jobs on the West Side, 
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 1 they benefit from Santolina, they no longer need those 

 2 improvements.  So -- so there's also a plus side to what we 

 3 presented that, you know, there may be some roadways that 

 4 actually need fewer improvements, because there's more jobs 

 5 on the West Side.

 6 MS. KELLY:  Thank you.  I realize it's a 

 7 complicated question.  I just needed an answer.

 8 MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any other questions?  If not, 

10 thank you very much.

11 MR. GINGRICH:  Thank you.

12  Oh, Commissioner, I'm sorry.  I wanted to mention 

13 quick, it's not entirely Santolina specific, but the Council 

14 of Governments is currently undergoing a big study for 

15 trying to figure out how to improve planning for schools and 

16 transportation across the region and how to do better 

17 coordination with the school system and long-range 

18 transportation planning.  So if you're interested in that, I 

19 can forward you information about that study that's 

20 currently going on.

21 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Appreciate that.  Thank you.

22   Is that it, Staff?  

23 MS. VEREECKE:  Mr. Chair, that is it for Staff and 

24 agencies.  So the next presenter would be the applicant and 

25 agent.
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 1 MR. STROZIER:  You know I love talking to you 

 2 guys.

 3 MS. NELSON:  Thank you.

 4 MS. CONNIE CHAVEZ:  Thank you.  

 5 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Okay.  Go -- go ahead.

 6 MR. STROZIER:  All right.  Thank you, 

 7 Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.  My name is Jim Strozier, 

 8 principal with Consensus Planning, and I'm here today 

 9 representing Western Albuquerque Land Holdings.  

10 Before I get started on my presentation, I wanted -- a 

11 number of issues came up in the discussion earlier in the 

12 hearing, and I wanted to just kind of hit on a couple of 

13 those things, because I think they were -- there were some 

14 important items that came up.  Do I need to swear in for 

15 this?  

16 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  No.  

17 MR. STROZIER:  We're not -- we're not -- 

18 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  This is just a hearing.  We're 

19 not going to decide anything.

20 MR. STROZIER:  Okay.  Got it.  So in terms of -- 

21 Mr. Chairman, you brought up the school transportation 

22 issue, and -- and I think that -- it hadn't occurred to me.  

23 We have -- we have had meetings with -- with APS with the 

24 facilities planning group, but we have not talked -- we 

25 talked more about locations and where the schools should be 
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 1 and their -- their criteria in terms of what types of 

 2 streets.  I will also say that we've given a lot of thought 

 3 to making sure that all the way down to the neighborhood 

 4 level, local streets, all the way up to the bigger streets, 

 5 that there are opportunities for other modes of 

 6 transportation to be included in those streets, specifically 

 7 pedestrian and bicycle, and then we also have an off-street 

 8 open space network that will have trails, and I know that 

 9 there are a lot of different techniques that we're seeing 

10 being used with those neighborhood schools and walking, 

11 school buses, those types of things that are trying to get 

12 kids not to have to use -- not to have to use a school bus, 

13 and so -- so we have given thought to that.  

14 But I would -- I would make the offer that we will 

15 coordinate with County Staff and try and set up a meeting 

16 specifically with APS.  I'm not sure who the right person is 

17 at APS to talk about those issues, but I -- but I think it's 

18 important that we do have a follow-up conversation 

19 specifically about transportation and APS's needs relative 

20 to transportation, and I hadn't thought of that specifically 

21 in that context, and I appreciate you bringing that up, and 

22 we will try and follow up on that after this hearing.  And 

23 so I think that covers that.  

24 Similar to that is this concept of the "last mile" that 

25 was brought up relative -- and I think that is also 
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 1 addressed with the idea of that -- the term today is 

 2 "complete streets," and that's incorporating the different 

 3 modes of transportation into street design.  For a long time 

 4 street design was primarily about moving automobiles only, 

 5 and everything else was kind of secondary to that.  The idea 

 6 of "complete streets" is bringing all those other modes into 

 7 the equation at that -- at that level and same thing with 

 8 the trails.  We want to make sure that -- and I'm -- we are 

 9 looking at some of the suggestions relative to connectivity 

10 that we've gotten and trying to make some changes.  

11 And so the other comment I guess I would make, and this 

12 gets to some of MRCOG's comments, we focused our matrix and 

13 our responses primarily on the transportation aspects, but 

14 transportation and land use is very much intermingled in a 

15 plan like this, and certainly that's where MRCOG lives.  

16 They live in that junction between land use and 

17 transportation.  So there's going to be some cross-over 

18 between the comments and how we're addressing them today 

19 with this matrix versus our next hearing, which is going to 

20 focus on land use.  So hopefully at the next hearing we'll 

21 kind of close some of those connections -- connect some of 

22 those dots between those -- between those issues.

23 We are very cognizant of the centers and corridors.  We 

24 have been working with the Staff on the update to the 

25 Comprehensive Plan that's currently underway, primarily 
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 1 being led by the City, but we are working with that.  We're 

 2 coordinating with Catherine and Enrico on our comments and 

 3 concerns relative to that process.  And then we'll also look 

 4 at the residential street sections and the comments that 

 5 Richard Meadows made regarding that.

 6 Commissioner Kelly, you brought up the green 

 7 infrastructure and incorporating that.  We have tried to 

 8 make sure that that is just like -- I would say that that's 

 9 also part of my definition of "complete streets" that those 

10 -- that those streets not only include the mobility aspects 

11 but how you deal with storm water, drainage facilities, how 

12 you deal with landscaping and creating shade and minimizing 

13 the impact of those roadways on the natural side of the 

14 environment, and so that is also part of that -- of that 

15 equation, and if -- we'll look back at it and make sure -- 

16 if we haven't expressed that clearly enough, we will make 

17 sure that we -- that we do, because that is a part of our 

18 thinking relative to these streets.

19 I also appreciate the comments about TDM, 

20 transportation demand management, and transit.  We are 

21 working on those issues as well.  

22 Some of those things, especially on the transportation 

23 demand management side, are really -- I think we can set the 

24 stage for those with this level of planning, but really when 

25 we get a large employer, that's when you really get into the 
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 1 nuts and bolts about preferred parking spaces, for carpool, 

 2 ride-share programs, those kinds of things, and that's 

 3 really integrated directly with the operation and management 

 4 of the facility, itself.  Flex schedules, all those things 

 5 factor into that and making sure that we have -- are then 

 6 circling back to -- with transit to make sure if it's 

 7 appropriate even to have a special stop or rethink where we 

 8 thought a route might be in order to make sure that we're 

 9 providing that level of service.

10 So that's all part of that level of discussion that 

11 happens a little bit later in the process, but we do want to 

12 make sure and agree with setting the framework for that at 

13 this time.

14 It was brought up about the size, I guess, and we 

15 recognize that, and I think we've made some comments 

16 directly to that, but in terms of -- one thing I would point 

17 out with Mesa del Sol is that the Level B plan that we all 

18 think of as Mesa del Sol's Level B plan is actually the 

19 second Level B plan.  The initial Level B plan was focused 

20 100 percent on recreation and open space, and that was 

21 actually done by the County, and so that's where the 

22 amphitheater and the soccer fields -- and that's almost -- I 

23 think it's about 700 acres, maybe even 1,000 of -- of land 

24 that was focused.

25 So we have almost a thousand acres of open space in our 
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 1 initial Level B, because we wanted to commit to the 

 2 preservation and dealing with the ceja escarpment as part of 

 3 our initial phase of development.  So I just want to make 

 4 those comments before I get started, and I will try and go 

 5 through this quickly, because once again, I think a lot of 

 6 this was covered by the Staff.

 7   The project team, it hasn't changed.  Matt Looke is 

 8 here today from Garrett Development Company.  Eric Wrage is 

 9 here from Bohannon Huston.  Malika Keem (sic) is here from 

10 my office, and so we've got a great team that's working on 

11 this project, and I think you heard a number of times that 

12 the responsiveness and the level of attentiveness that we, 

13 as a team, have tried to pay to our responses in terms of 

14 when we've gotten comments, we've taken those comments 

15 seriously.  We've sat down.  We've had meetings.  We've 

16 tried to respond to every one of those, and that's really 

17 the purpose of that matrix, and we plan to do that style of 

18 matrix for each of the upcoming hearings as well, so we show 

19 you how we're addressing those comments.  

20 I don't need to spend any time on that.  I think that 

21 Mr. Meadows actually went through pretty good detail of the 

22 Level A conditions of approval.  So, once again, we -- we 

23 have the Level A plan that went through.  It had certain 

24 conditions.  Some of those conditions specifically related 

25 to transportation, and so we have dealt with those, and we 
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 1 have addressed those, and I think you heard that.

 2 This graphic really, I think, it gets to some of the 

 3 conversation and -- that we had earlier about responding to 

 4 comments, and one of the significant comments, and you heard 

 5 it from MRCOG today, was about the grid, and this just shows 

 6 you the Level B plan kind of superimposed into the overall 

 7 grid network for the entire Level A.  So it's always a 

 8 challenge.  We think about the first phase, but we have to 

 9 think of the first phase in the context of the whole.  So 

10 this just shows you how we -- how we're doing that relative 

11 to the transportation side of things, and you can see the 

12 different land uses associated with the project.

13 Then, of course, this is the Level B plan.  We are -- 

14 at the next hearing, we will have some refinements to this 

15 plan, because as I mentioned, we are meeting with APS.  We 

16 are meeting with CNM.  We are meeting with County Staff.  We 

17 have a meeting set up next -- next week or is it -- soon 

18 with -- 

19 MS. VEREECKE:  Tomorrow.

20 MR. STROZIER:  Tomorrow.  Too many meetings going 

21 on too many times -- tomorrow with MRCOG and the Planning 

22 Staff and trying to connect some of those dots.  So we 

23 aren't waiting around to finish the transportation 

24 conversation to move into the land-use conversation.

25 I'm not going to spend much time on this, but obviously 
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 1 the other aspects of this presentation and the analysis that 

 2 we do is to deal with how are we specifically responding to 

 3 the Planned Communities Criteria and its requirements that 

 4 it states we need to do A, B, and C related to a Level B 

 5 plan.  

 6 We have pulled out those things related to 

 7 transportation specifically, and I think Mr. Meadows also 

 8 went through these, so I'm not going to spend time, but just 

 9 so you know, the matrix that we -- that we've prepared is 

10 broken out into Accela comments where a specific agency, 

11 like MRCOG, had extensive comments.  We pulled those out 

12 separately so you can see exactly how we dealt with and 

13 responded to MRCOG.  We also have a specific section on the 

14 Level A conditions and then the Level B criteria from the 

15 Planned Communities Criteria.

16 So I think, Mr. Chairman, at the last hearing, you 

17 expressed very, very pointedly that we needed to make sure 

18 that when we came back for these hearings, that we had 

19 addressed those criteria and the requirements, and so we've 

20 done that specifically to help you all and Staff how we've 

21 done that.  And so that's an iterative -- iterative process 

22 between ourselves and Staff.  And so we've gone through 

23 those.  

24 I think this -- in terms of the roadway sections, once 

25 again, we've tried to address the roadway sections for a 
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 1 variety of types of streets, and what we want to do with 

 2 these is to make sure not only that we're addressing the 

 3 road, itself, once again, but the bike facilities, so bike 

 4 lanes, the sidewalks, and landscaping.  And so you see a lot 

 5 of attention to landscaping on -- on these and making sure 

 6 -- because one of the things we know, especially on the 

 7 bigger streets is, if you have -- you can have the nicest 

 8 sidewalk in the world, but if it's right on the curb and 

 9 people are driving by you at 45 miles an hour, and 

10 especially trucks and buses, it's not a very comfortable 

11 place to walk, and so it's important for us to set some of 

12 these things up up front early so that the expectation is 

13 clear when these streets get built how that landscaping and 

14 sidewalks work together.

15 Same thing with the bike lane.  As you get on the 

16 slower streets, on the narrower streets, a bike lane that 

17 just has a stripe between you and the cars is fine, but when 

18 you get to the larger streets, having some sort of buffer, 

19 and if you're familiar with -- and I can speak to a couple 

20 of these examples along Coors Boulevard north of I-40.  When 

21 you get I think it's about to Saint Pius, they have the 

22 buffer, that they've got a striped buffer between the travel 

23 lanes and the bicycle lanes, and it's really effective.  

24 When I first saw it, I thought, "I'm never going to 

25 ride my bike on that."  I actually went out on a tour with 
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 1 one of the members of GABAC, which is the Greater 

 2 Albuquerque Bicycle Advisory Committee, and we rode that 

 3 section.  We rode a number -- we did a number of things, but 

 4 we rode that section, and I can say that I was very 

 5 positively impressed with how -- how safe it felt, and 

 6 that's not a road that I would have thought I would have 

 7 felt safe on a bicycle on.  So it does work.  

 8 The other -- right down the way, when you get down to 

 9 Andalucia, you can see where the landscaping and the 

10 sidewalk is buffered from one another, and once again, it's 

11 a very pleasant place to walk as opposed to sections of the 

12 sidewalk that are closed.  So that's why we looked at these 

13 in this level of detail, and we've broken that down for a 

14 number of streets.  That -- so those facilities don't do you 

15 any good if they're not connected to one another and 

16 connected throughout the project.  

17 So I think Mr. Meadows also referred to this exhibit 

18 that talks about the pedestrian and bicycle network, and so 

19 that is also an important aspect of the thinking.  At Level 

20 A we talked about the systems and making sure that you think 

21 about each of those systems and how not only they work but 

22 the whole -- but also how they're integrated with each 

23 other.  This is one of those -- this is one of those 

24 systems.

25 Transit network, I would say that this is one of those 
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 1 -- those topics that as we move forward and as things start 

 2 to happen, this is one of those areas that I hope is going 

 3 to change.  I hope it's going to get more extensive.  I hope 

 4 that it's going to -- we're going to see it become a bigger 

 5 part sooner as things develop, but in terms of the thinking 

 6 and dealing with -- so where do we attach to the existing 

 7 trip transit system?  How do we bring that out?  How do we 

 8 serve those areas?  This -- this was an attempt to get at 

 9 kind of an initial phase of how that might work.

10 So we heard a lot about the model, and I am going to 

11 talk to you about -- I've got about a half an hour to talk 

12 to you about details of the model.  No.

13 So the model is -- and this gets back some of the 

14 questions I believe, Commissioner Kelly, in terms of the 

15 overall -- the -- how those -- that process for analyzing 

16 the impact of Santolina as it's compared to -- so you sort 

17 of have, you know, there's the trend scenario that was 

18 adopted, and then -- then there's this process that we went 

19 through, and it's very -- it's very detailed in terms of 

20 looking at the socioeconomics and building up that model, 

21 not only for what's going on around us, but then breaking it 

22 down and doing that level of detail in terms of the 

23 assumptions, land use, number of dwelling units, number of 

24 jobs in each of these sub-areas.  So it breaks that down, 

25 and it -- and we work with -- extensively with the COG and 
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 1 their -- their existing transportation model and their 

 2 existing socioeconomics to come up with how that's done.  it 

 3 is modeled as a multimodal system.  

 4 We analyzed 2025 and 2040, and the reason we did that 

 5 was because 2040, obviously that's the MTP.  So we know 

 6 every -- the model was set up to do that, but they -- MRCOG 

 7 had interim -- an interim time period that was 2025 that we 

 8 work with them on getting the socioeconomics and the model 

 9 input for that year as well.  So that was the year that 

10 worked within their framework as well.  

11 All right.  So, once again, work closely with COG.  The 

12 -- they're the keeper of the model.  So it's not our model.  

13 We have to work within their model, and we included the 

14 Santolina roadways into that.

15 So I won't go through -- spend a lot of time on this, 

16 but once again, so a long process to go through and make 

17 sure that the socioeconomics are all working within those 

18 control totals for this, and this is important.  So the 

19 Santolina scenario doesn't add additional population.  So 

20 you don't -- you don't take population and say, "Well, 

21 Santolina's going to have X number of people in it."  Those 

22 aren't -- those aren't new or different people than were 

23 already included in the model.  

24 So the question is, what happens if you take some of 

25 those people that might be going elsewhere and you put them 

TR- 77
B. JULIAN SERNA, CCR

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



 

 1 here.  That's really the purpose of that model, and same 

 2 thing with those jobs.

 3 So let's see.  So -- so we include -- it includes the 

 4 metropolitan planning area, has Sandoval County, including 

 5 Rio Rancho, and it also has Valencia County.  So one of the 

 6 things when we talk about the region and where that growth 

 7 is going to go, we did tend to -- a lot of times we have 

 8 conversations about what happens in Albuquerque and what 

 9 happens in the outlying areas of Bernalillo County, but the 

10 region, actually what gets modeled, is much larger than 

11 that.  

12 So we start thinking about what happens if that growth 

13 that might be happening in -- at the north end of Rio Rancho 

14 actually happens in Santolina?  What happens to those 

15 roadway networks?  And what happens if some of the jobs that 

16 were anticipated to happen up in the northern part of Rio 

17 Rancho actually happened here on the west I-40 corridor?  

18 What does that do to the overall transportation system?  

19 So that's -- and I think you already heard these 

20 numbers.  So 311,000 is the population increase that's 

21 included in that model for up to 2040.  That's in Bernalillo 

22 County only.  The population increase for the region is up 

23 to 400 -- is 438,000.  So most of those are happening in 

24 Bernalillo County, but the trend scenario has a significant 

25 number of those folks going into those outlying areas.  And 
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 1 same things with job.  We look at what the jobs are related 

 2 to the overall -- the overall system.

 3 So the 2025, I think Richard went through a lot of 

 4 this.  Let me see if there's anything I just want to kind of 

 5 highlight on some of this.  I think as you heard from him, 

 6 there's a significant positive at the 2025 level to impacts 

 7 to the road, to the road network, river crossings, things 

 8 like that.  That -- that gets less as we get out to 2040.  

 9 It's still there.  It just -- just gets a little bit less.  

10 But so one of the things that -- and if you looked at 

11 the transportation analysis, these graphics, I think they're 

12 interesting because, for instance, this calls out -- so 

13 what's the difference between the existing trend scenario 

14 and the Santolina scenario as it relates to positives and 

15 negatives to the road network?  And this just focuses on -- 

16 this graphic looks at the a.m. peak, for instance, and you 

17 can see areas that were red.  Maybe they stay red or get -- 

18 they become yellow, or they become green in the scenario.

19 So this is a good way to see -- and we've got these -- 

20 these maps done for all the different scenarios for a.m.  

21 peak, p.m. peak, ADT.  So those comparisons are in there, 

22 and they do show you -- it's a pretty easy way to look at it 

23 and see what the difference is between the two.

24 So that was a.m.  This is p.m.  Once begin, the red are 

25 the areas that are over capacity, and these are the areas 
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 1 where there's change occurring in those, and so you can see 

 2 what happens between the trend scenario, the existing model, 

 3 and when we add Santolina.

 4 So this is just that information broken down into a 

 5 table, and we'll make this presentation available, and it 

 6 will -- to Catherine.  It will be posted on the website.  So 

 7 everybody will have access to this information, but what you 

 8 see here is relative to -- so vehicle miles traveled.  

 9 That's VMT.  This is at 2025.  We have a 1.6 percent 

10 reduction.  Vehicle hours traveled, so vehicle hours 

11 traveled is basically looking at how much time you have to 

12 spend in your car to get -- to make those trips, and that's 

13 a significant reduction, and some of that is -- and I think 

14 we talked about this at Level A where if we have a -- we 

15 have a roadway system.  We've built all these lanes of road.  

16 We have -- we have river crossings, and we have -- we're not 

17 using that system very efficiently right now because of the 

18 jobs-housing imbalance on the West Side.  So everybody is 

19 traveling one direction in the morning, and then they're all 

20 traveling in the same direction -- same direction back over.  

21 So you have a lot of capacity in the -- if you're -- if 

22 you're -- if you've ever done a reverse commute, you know 

23 how pleasant that is, and you're watching all the people 

24 stacked up on the other side of the roadway.  So the idea is 

25 to try and use that system more efficiently.  
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 1 So that's part of the reason why we see some of these 

 2 -- these positives in the numbers in terms of the time that 

 3 you are taking to make a trip.  If you're reverse commuting 

 4 or using the capacity in a different way, you can -- people 

 5 can travel faster, more efficiently on those systems.

 6 So average speed is another way to look at that.  

 7 Delay, that looks at congestion.  All these numbers are what 

 8 the model gives us related to the transportation system.  

 9 And when we get to 2040, as I mentioned, it's not as 

10 good, but it's still -- but it's still good.  It gets a 

11 little bit closer.  I'm not sure exactly why that is, but 

12 same -- same kind of analysis.  We look at a.m. and p.m. at 

13 the 2040 in terms of the difference in that roadway network 

14 and the impacts to that.  I think one thing that we see is 

15 at 2040 a lot of things start to get bottled up over all 

16 with or without Santolina.  So there's more congestion.  

17 There's more -- there's more vehicles out there on the 

18 roads.  We also looked at the p.m. peak.  That tends to be 

19 the worst one in terms of traffic congestion.  

20 So this is the -- and I think Richard also touched on 

21 this.  This is the area that we looked at where those -- 

22 specific impact areas that we looked at in our subsequent 

23 analysis.

24 So the model tells us, okay, here's what happens to the 

25 system overall, and then here are some areas where we have 
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 1 specific concerns about.  We'd like you to look at each of 

 2 these spots in detail, and this map basically shows you all 

 3 those spots that we looked at in detail.  And you could see, 

 4 a lot of them are not in Santolina.  So it's looking at what 

 5 impacts are happening and what mitigation might be needed in 

 6 those areas in order to make improvements.

 7 So I'm not going to spend a lot of time on this, but 

 8 obviously there's costs associated with all of this.  

 9 There's costs associated with improvements to existing 

10 intersections, the existing facilities, and then there's 

11 costs to build new facilities.  And so those costs are 

12 something that we have been looking at and coordinating with 

13 the Staff on in terms of the network within Santolina, once 

14 again, and so that -- we also broke that down 2025, 2040, 

15 the cost of those and then system infrastructure, which is 

16 outside of the project.  Oh, I've got a slide out of order 

17 here.  I apologize for that, but that should have been with 

18 the 2040 -- 2040 results.  

19 I won't spend a lot of time on these numbers, but once 

20 again, you can see that everything gets a little bit closer, 

21 jammed up in 2040.  I think that's indicative of what we see 

22 for 2040 with or without Santolina, but there's some of the 

23 places where we had a positive impact.  We might have a 

24 slight negative impact, and some of the areas where we had a 

25 big positive impact, we have less of a positive impact at 
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 1 2040.  We have a lot of time between now and then to work on 

 2 some of those things, so that's -- that's the good news.

 3 So, once again, we've -- in that matrix we've tried to 

 4 go through all of the comments and concerns and address 

 5 them.  And, once again, that's happened with written 

 6 responses.  That's happened in meetings.  We tried -- this 

 7 has been a very, very good process I would have to say in 

 8 terms of the level of communication and coordination that's 

 9 -- has been taking place and will continue to take place on 

10 this, and there's a lot of work that gets done in a short 

11 amount of time on both sides of this.  So we certainly 

12 appreciate and recognize the amount of work that Staff is 

13 doing on this as well.

14 So next steps, we'll be back to you to talk about land 

15 use, and -- and that's going to be critical, and I think 

16 it's good that we talked about transportation first, because 

17 you'll see when we start talking about the land uses, those 

18 relationships, and why it's important that we are -- we've 

19 given the thought that we have to that network and the grid 

20 and the "complete streets" aspects and how that relates to 

21 the different neighborhoods that we're trying to create and 

22 things that are important to make those neighbors work, like 

23 commercial activity nodes and schools and parks.  How do we 

24 get -- how do we make sure that those things are integrated?  

25 So that will be part of the next -- the next hearing.  
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 1 And I think that is it for my presentation.  We'd be 

 2 happy to answer any questions.  Eric Wrage is here if you 

 3 want to dig really deep into the model and the technical 

 4 aspects.  He can explain all those acronyms and the numbers 

 5 in detail, but we'd be happy to address any of your 

 6 questions at this time.

 7 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Any questions?  

 8 MR. MALRY:  Mr. Chairman.

 9 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Go ahead, Commissioner.  

10 MR. MALRY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

11 Jim, I want to thank you for working with the schools 

12 and our Staff and other entities that's necessary to get 

13 this job done.

14 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you.  

15 MR. MALRY:  I really appreciate what you doing.  

16 This is a much better product than you had last year.

17 MR. STROZIER:  Oh, thank you.  We do try and learn 

18 as we go forward.

19 MR. MALRY:  I feel a lot better with this deal 

20 than I did last year, and I just want to thank you for the 

21 work you're doing, and keep up the good works.

22 MR. STROZIER:  Thank you.

23 MS. NELSON:  Mr. Chair.

24 MR. JOE CHAVEZ:  Yes.  Go ahead.

25 MS. NELSON:  I will let you know you're not 
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 1 required to give it today, but do you have a response to 

 2 MRCOG's comments about your big street being too big for 

 3 people to cross?  

 4 MR. STROZIER:  We have looked at that, and we're 

 5 continuing to look at that, and I imagine that will be part 

 6 of our conversation tomorrow.  We have also looked at the 

 7 interface where those big streets, and so -- so one thing I 

 8 will say is those big streets are pretty limited in terms of 

 9 the plan area.  So we have Dennis Chavez, and we have 

10 Atrisco Vista, and we have Paseo Del Volcan.  And we have 

11 anticipated -- and we've -- so just so you all are aware, so 

12 when we talk about Paseo Del Volcan out there in the world, 

13 most of the time we're talking about the interchange at I-40 

14 and Paseo Del Volcan north of I-40, and that's the area that 

15 has been designed and planned, and it's to be a freeway-type 

16 facility, has a very large right-of-way, and there was a 

17 full environmental document that was done in the planning 

18 and design for that, and that connects all the way to 550 on 

19 the north.  It goes through Sandoval County.  It goes 

20 through Rio Rancho, and it connects up there, and the north 

21 leg of that at Rio Rancho, if you've been out there and 

22 driven by Sue Cleveland High School and out to City Center 

23 and the Star -- the Rio Rancho City Hall and the Star 

24 Center, that -- that section of Paseo Del Volcan at the 

25 north end has been built.  Nothing's been built at the south 
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